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VISION AND MISSION STATEMENTS

Dynea Pakistan is Market Leader
in its core and diversified business,
delighting its customers by
providing quality products at
competitive price through
development of market, product
range, technology and human
whilst ensuring sound return to
stakeholders.

Vision

Maximize productivity and sales of
Formaldehyde, Resins for wood-
based panel industries and
Moulding Compounds and provide
satisfaction to customers.

Mission



Board Structure

The Board is made up of professionals with strong backgrounds in financial management, legal affairs, technical
development and manufacturing operations. There are two committees, namely the Audit Committee which incorporates
Risk Management and the Human Resources and Remuneration Committee, reporting to the Board.

Memberships of the Board and its committees are detailed in the Directors' Report.

Dynamics and Functioning of the Board

Board meetings are held quarterly and otherwise as required. Attendance and participation are good and directors
are available at other times to support management, in particular with compliance and legal matters. Their input is
highly valued and much appreciated by both management and myself.

A consequence of Covid has been that the Board and its committees have not been able to meet in person. This has
necessitated that meetings have been conducted via Zoom videoconferencing. I wish to thank the backroom people
for setting up the meetings and ensuring their smooth operation.

A highlight of the current year has been the revision and updating of the Company's Articles of Association to bring
them into line with the latest versions of the Code of Corporate Governance and the Companies Act.

I personally oversaw a review of Board Performance carried out via a series of questionnaires pertaining to the Board
and its committees. The main work-ons were a desire by members of the Board to be more involved with management
in strategy development and succession planning.

Business Strategy Governance

In a mature market such as that in which the Company finds itself, it is not always easy to devise a strategy going
forward. The strategy developed in 2010 to rebuild the Company was fully supported by the Board and the results
speak for themselves.

The current strategy is to begin growing the Company's manufacturing base and improving efficiency. The first phase
is an expansion and debottlenecking of the Gadoon factory which is almost complete.

Financial Reporting Process, Internal Audit and Internal Controls

The Board contains a strong representation of directors with backgrounds in finance, banking and business management.
Systems are in place to ensure that financial management of all aspects of the Company's operations are managed
with transparency, honesty and integrity. I feel that the outsourcing of the internal audit function to PwC adds further
strength to the financial management of the business by giving an unbiased overview of the Company's operations.

Risk Management

The Board is very conscious of the need to evaluate and manage risk to ensure business continuity. As noted last
year, the Board was overseeing a project to strengthen the IT system against unauthorised infiltration. This project
has been extended to an upgrade of the Company's ERP system to SAP.
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Monitoring Role

The Audit Committee and Board have implemented a programme whereby a number of Company policies and
procedures are presented for review and updating at their meetings. Efforts are ongoing to maintain corporate
governance compliance at a time of increasingly stricter requirements.

Supporting and Advisory Role

As mentioned earlier in this review, the Directors willingly give of their time and expertise on a regular basis. This is
important to management. Beyond that, the Company often outsources support services that are beyond the scope
of the Board and management to provide.

The Chairperson's Role

I see my role as Chairman as that of a leader and facilitator. I am not based in Pakistan and Covid has curtailed my
ability to visit Pakistan as often as I would like. However, with the assistance of modern communication systems I am
able to maintain a mentoring and advisory role during my periods of absence.

All in all, I think the Company's steady improvement in performance during the last several years is a reflection of the
performance of the Board and its management. I wish to thank my fellow directors for having faith in me to continue
in my role as Chairman. The direction and guidance provided by the Board of Directors is hereby acknowledged.

It is with thanks that I sign off on this review.

-Sd- through email

Karachi: Donald Jenkin
September 03, 2021 Chairman

05DYNEA PAKISTAN LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2021

CHAIRMAN’S REVIEW REPORT



The Directors of your Company are pleased to present the Annual Report together with the Company's Audited
Financial Statements for the financial year ended June 30, 2021.

The Board of Directors

The Board of Directors of the Company as at the Balance Sheet Date is as follows:

Economic Environment

Despite major challenges, measures taken by the government have resulted in a sustainable recovery of the Pakistan
economy. Following the initial shock wave generated by Covid-19, the government by its positive initiatives has achieved
a strong economic performance in 2020-21. There will undoubtedly be future challenges moving forward but the
Company is optimistic that the recovery will continue.

Company Affairs and Principal Activities

The Board aims to ensure that shareholders are informed of all major developments affecting the Company's state
of affairs. Information is communicated to the shareholders in the annual report, interim quarterly reports and through
the information portal of the Pakistan Stock Exchange as and when required.

The Board encourages shareholders' participation at the Annual General Meetings and Corporate Briefing Sessions
to ensure a high level of accountability. The Company's financial statements are available on the Company's website
and an officer is designated to answer all shareholder enquiries.

The Company is principally engaged in the manufacture and sale of formaldehyde and formaldehyde-based resins,
adhesives, and thermosetting moulding compounds.

1. Dr. Donald Jenkin Director & Chairman Non-Executive

2. Mr. Shabbir Abbas Director & Chief Executive Officer Executive

3. Mr. Ameen Mohammad Bandukda Director Non-Executive

4. *Mr. Murtaza Lalan Director Non-Executive

5. Mr. Adnan Afridi Director Independent

6. Mr. Andalib Alavi Director Independent

7. Ms. Anam Fatima Khan Director Independent

S.No. Name Status Type of
Directorship

* Mr. Murtaza Lalan has resigned with effect from September 01, 2021.

The Board has co-opted Mr. Tariq Ahmed Khan in place of Mr. Murtaza Lalan w.e.f September 07, 2021.
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Business Review

Operations

Sales revenue during 2020-21 was Rs. 6,827.20 million compared to Rs. 4,492.45 million in the previous financial
year and the profit before tax was Rs. 1,328.75 million compared to Rs. 358.66 million in the previous financial years.

a. Resin Division

Turnover of the Resin Division in 2020-21 was Rs. 2,670.72 million compared to Rs. 1,920.91 million in the previous
financial year, a growth of 39.03%. The segment result of the Resin Division was Rs. 453.02 million compared
to Rs. 136.30 million for the previous financial year.

b. Moulding Compound Division

Turnover of the Moulding Compound Division in 2020-21 was Rs. 4,156.48 million compared to Rs. 2,571.54
million in the previous financial year, a growth of 61.63%. The segment result of the Moulding Compound Division
was Rs. 1,132.66 million compared to Rs. 443.05 million for the previous financial year.

Financial Performance

Following are the summarised financial results of the Company for the year 2020-21:

---------- (Rupees '000') ----------

 2020-21 2019-20

Sales Revenue 6,827,204 4,492,455

Gross Profit 1,635,883 783,342

Profit Before Taxation 1,328,754 358,664

Profit After Taxation 938,609 253,349

Earnings per Share in Rupees 49.73 13.42

Plant Expansion

In response to increasing demand of our customers, the Company expanded its moulding compound capacity at the
Gadoon factory during the year. The combined efforts of the management, officers, engineers and workers of the
Company in conjunction with the installation and commissioning team from the supplier ensured that the new plant
started on time with no disruption of supply to customers. Based on its expansion programme and ongoing efficiency
gains, the Company has budgeted to maintain its profitability in the coming year and to continue to grow in the years
ahead.

Contribution to the National Exchequer

The Company's contribution to the National Exchequer in the form of various taxes and levies for the year under review
was Rs. 1,719 million (2019-20 was Rs. 1,069 million).

Remuneration Policy for Non-Executive Directors (including Independent Directors)

The Board reviewed the remuneration policy of Directors in line with prevailing market conditions as determined by
independent benchmarking. The importance of attracting and retaining high quality directors cannot be over-emphasised,
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both from the perspective of shareholders and management. The current Board members provide Company management
with valuable support and input outside of meetings. This has been a significant contribution to the growth of the
Company in recent years. It is therefore proposed to revise the fees paid to non executive and independent directors
for attending Board and Committee meetings from Rs. 75,000/- to Rs. 100,000/-. Disclosure with respect to the
remuneration of directors and the chief executive is given in Note No. 43 to the Financial Statements.

Performance Evaluation of Board of Directors and its Committees

In accordance with the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019, the Board has carried
out an evaluation of performance of its individual members, the Board as a whole and the performance of its committees.

The Board evaluation process was conducted internally by the Chairman of the Board by circulating an evaluation
assessment questionnaire to the directors to provide feedback on performance. Overall, the evaluation outcome was
positive and encouraging.

Risk and Uncertainties

Despite implementing SOPs in accordance with Government guidance in order to manage the Company's operations
with respect to Covid-19, business could be adversely affected by a number of factors including but not limited to a
reduction of people resources due to illness or localised lockdowns, unavailability of key supplies, major lockdowns
due to Covid-19, and temporary or permanent closure of our customers' businesses. Additionally, the imposition of
further duties or tariffs, changes in governmental regulations, measures to be taken by the government to control
inflation, foreign currency fluctuations, entrance of new competitors, changes in the rate or method of taxation or a
deterioration in the security situation may negatively impact the Company's business.

The Company is also facing increases in logistics costs and delayed deliveries due to global disruption of shipping
as a consequence of Covid-19. The supply chain management team is pro-actively engaging with suppliers and
shipping companies to ensure that adequate supplies of key raw materials are available as required.

Both the Board and Company management constantly evaluate various risks and they take appropriate measures
to minimise their impact wherever possible.

Future Outlook

Covid-19 will continue to affect the Company's operations for the foreseeable future. By the Grace of Almighty Allah,
the Company is on track to deal with the various situations as they arise.

Subject to ongoing economic stability and the impacts of Covid-19 being kept under control, the Company strongly
believes its management team and factory workforces together with our customers' businesses remaining healthy
will ensure that sales targets for the coming year will be achieved.

Debottlenecking is in progress at Gadoon which will increase production capacity of moulding compounds by 6,000
MT and formaldehyde by 10,000 MT.

In line with the positive indicators being shown in the construction industry, tableware manufacturing and other
interconnected industries, the Company will continue to seek additional growth opportunities. As part of this strategy,
the Company is looking to diversify into related industries; that is, to continue to build on what we are good at.
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Health, Safety and Environment (HSE)

Health and Safety has always been the Company's priority and therefore the Company has managed to vaccinate
all its employees against Covid-19 and it is taking steps to inoculate employees' family members. In this connection,
the Company is conducting an ongoing awareness programme about the benefits of vaccination.

The Company has continued to focus on improving its HSE performance. No lost time Injuries were recorded during
the period. Both factories are certified to international safety and environmental management system standards. The
Company complies with all applicable rules and regulations in the formulation, manufacture, labeling and marketing
of its products and it also takes effective measures to reduce discharges of waste products to the environment. The
Company has implemented a project to improve the quality of its liquid waste with the aim of being able to recycle it
back into the processes, thereby reducing its outsourced water usage.

Corporate Social Responsibility

The Company takes its responsibilities to its community environment seriously by contributing in health, education
and environmental care. The Company has been a long-time contributor to the welfare of the Hub community in
Baluchistan in the education and health sectors.

The Company runs a well maintained primary school at Jenson Village in Hub. This school was established primarily
for the children of the Company's employees but other children of the locality are also permitted to study at the school.
Presently, there are 96 students of whom 28 come from the local community. Furthermore, the Company contributes
1% of PBT to a charitable trusts and hospitals.

Adequacy of Internal Financial Controls

Internal audit services continue to be outsourced. During the year, significant and material findings of the internal and
external auditors were addressed on a priority basis by the management and the status was regularly reported to
the Audit Committee.

Based upon the results achieved from reviews, ongoing testing of financial reporting controls and audits conducted
during the year, the Company considers that the existing system of internal controls is adequate and is being effectively
implemented and monitored. The Directors continuously monitor the adequacy, effectiveness and promptness of
internal financial controls.

Transactions with Related Parties:

All transactions with related parties are entered into by the Company in its ordinary course of business and they have
been disclosed in the financial statements under the relevant notes.

Code of Corporate Governance

The Directors and management of the Company are committed to good corporate governance. As required under
the Code of Corporate Governance, the Directors are pleased to state as follows:

1. The financial statements prepared by the management of the Company present fairly the Company's state of
affairs, the results of its operations, cash flow and changes in equity.

2. Proper books of accounts of the Company have been maintained.

3. Appropriate accounting policies have been consistently applied in the preparation of the financial statements
and the accounting estimates are based on reasonable and prudent judgment.
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4. International Financial Reporting Standards have been used as the basis for the preparation of the financial
statements and any departure therefrom has been adequately disclosed and explained.

5. The system of internal control is sound in design and has been effectively implemented and monitored.

6. There are no significant doubts upon the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. Information about
this issue is being presented separately in this report.

7. There has been no material departure from the best practices of corporate governance as detailed in the listing
regulations. A Code of Conduct has been prepared and delivered to every director and employee.

8. The Board of Directors has adopted Vision and Mission Statements.

9. Information about taxes and levies is given in the notes to the accounts.

10. The value of the investments in the Company's provident fund scheme, based on un-audited accounts for the
year ended June 30, 2021, stands at Rs. 111.91 million.

11. Statements are annexed in respect of the following:

i. Key financial data for the last six years.
ii. Pattern of shareholding.

12. During the year under review the Board of Directors convened six times and attendance of the respective directors
was as follows:

1. Dr. Donald Jenkin (Chairman) 6/6

2. Mr. Shabbir Abbas 6/6

3. Mr. Ameen Mohammad Bandukda 6/6

4. Mr. Adnan Afridi 6/6

5. Ms. Anam Fatima Khan 6/6

6. Mr. Andalib Alavi  6/6

7. Mr. Murtaza Lalan 6/6

S.No. Name of Directors Meetings Attended

The Audit Committee convened four times and attendance of the respective directors was as follows:

1. Mr. Adnan Afridi (Chairman) 4/4

2. Dr. Donald Jenkin 4/4

3. Mr. Andalib Alavi 4/4

S.No. Name of Directors Meetings Attended
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Directors Training Programme (DTP)

All directors of the Company are DTP certified as required under the Code of Corporate Governance.

Vend Fee and Permit Fee Case

The Excise and Taxation Department, Government of Sindh (the Department) imposed, vend and permit fee on
methanol, a major raw material used by the Company in the production of formaldehyde. The Company filed a petition
against the imposition of these levies in the Honourable High Court of Sindh (HCS) in August 1996. In June 2001,
the Honourable HCS decided the case in the favour of the Company. However, the Department filed an appeal in the
Honourable Supreme Court of Pakistan (SCP) against the above judgement. The Honourable SCP suspended the
decision of the Honourable HCS and reverted the case back to the Honourable HCS for fresh hearing. In March, 2003,
the Honourable HCS once again decided the case in favour of the Company. The Department once again filed an
appeal before the Honourable SCP.

In December 2019, The Government of Sindh filed an application that the Department does not press the instant and
connected appeals, and that a fresh demand shall be raised following the notification dated 14 February 2002 and
Sindh (Amendment) Abkari Ordinance 2002 notified on 30 October 2002. In addition to that, the Department would
surrender the demand secured by Indemnity Bonds for the period 1990 up to October 2002. The Supreme Court
accepted the withdrawal on those terms. Upon the receipt of the fresh demand from the Department, the Company
intends to approach the relevant Court of Justice to defend the case. No such demand has been raised by the Excise
Department as yet. The Company expects, based on the view of the legal advisor and the merits of the case, that
the decision will be in the favour of the Company. Accordingly, no provision for any liability has been made in
these financial statements. The Board and management are confident that the Company will be able to continue as
a going concern.

The Human Resource & Remuneration Committee convened four times and attendance of the respective directors
was as follows:

1 Mr. Andalib Alavi (Chairman) 4/4

2 Dr. Donald Jenkin 4/4

3 Mr. Ameen Mohammad Bandukda 4/4

4 Ms. Anam Fatima Khan 4/4

S.No. Name of Directors Meetings Attended
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Dividend and Appropriations

In view of the Company's performance during the outgoing financial year, the Directors has already paid an interim
dividend of Rs. 2.50 per share i.e. 50% and now propose payment of Rs. 5/- per share i.e.100% as final dividend to
the shareholders. The Directors have also announced a transfer of Rs. 500 million to the general reserve.

Appointment of Auditors

The retiring auditors, M/s. EY Ford Rhodes, Chartered Accountants, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment
for the ensuing year. They have been given a satisfactory rating under the Quality Control Review Programme of
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan. The Directors recommend that they be reappointed for the
upcoming year.

Acknowledgement

The Directors acknowledge and extend their appreciation to all the stakeholders for their efforts in contributing to the
satisfactory outcome for the current financial year, especially the motivation and support received from the customers
and employees of the Company.

On behalf of the Board of Directors

Shabbir Abbas Anam Fatima Khan
Chief Executive Officer Director

Karachi: September 03, 2021
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KEY OPERATING AND FINANCIAL DATA

FINANCIAL POSITION

SHAREHOLDERS EQUITY 2,381,961 1,584,896 1,378,728 1,274,497 1,055,100  925,304

TOTAL ASSETS 3,407,590  2,345,880  2,360,672  2,275,142  1,292,328  1,190,005

OPERATING RESULTS

TURNOVER 6,827,204  4,492,455  5,140,030  3,858,318  2,497,540   2,418,400

PROFIT/(LOSS)
BEFORE TAXATION  1,328,754  358,664  321,480  379,096  258,910  199,229

TAXATION  (390,145)  (105,315)  (94,579)  (84,209)  (81,932)  (63,882)

PROFIT / (LOSS)
AFTER TAXATION  938,609  253,349  226,901  294,887  176,978   135,347

EARNING / (LOSS) PER SHARE Rs.  49.73  13.42  12.02  15.63  9.38   7.17

CASH DIVIDENDS %  150.00  100.00  50.00  130.00  80.00  50.00

2020-21 2015-162019-20 2018-19 2017-18 2016-17

(Rupees in thousands)
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(Rupees in ‘000)

PROFIT AFTER TAX

2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
0

100,000

200,000

300,000

400,000

500,000

600,000

700,000

800,000

900,000

1,000,000

(Rupees in ‘000)

SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
0

500,000

1,000,000

1,500,000

2,000,000

2,500,000

Reserve Paid-up capital

Resin Moulding Compound Other Income

38.60%
0.42%

60.98%

SOURCES OF INCOME APPLICATION OF FUNDS

53%
12%

0%
9%

5%

21%

Raw Material Duties and Taxes

Man Power Factory and Other Cost

Financial Expenses Profit After Taxation



Name of company: DYNEA PAKISTAN LIMITED

Year ending: JUNE 30, 2021

The company has complied with the requirements of the Regulations in the following manner:

3. The directors have confirmed that none of them is serving as a director on more than seven Listed companies,
including this company;

4. The company has prepared a code of conduct and has ensured that appropriate steps have been taken to
disseminate it throughout the company along with its supporting policies and procedures;

5. The Board has developed a vision/mission statement, overall corporate strategy and significant policies of the
company. The Board has ensured that complete record of particulars of the significant policies along with their
date of approval or updation is maintained by the company;

6. All the powers of the Board have been duly exercised and decisions on relevant matters have been taken by the
Board/shareholders as empowered by the relevant provisions of the Act and these Regulations;

7. The meetings of the Board were presided over by the Chairman. The Board has complied with the requirements
of Act and the Regulations with respect to frequency, recording and circulating minutes of meeting of the Board;

8. The Board has a formal policy and transparent procedures for remuneration of directors in accordance with the
Act and these Regulations;

9. All the directors of the company are certified under Directors' Training Program as prescribed by the Regulations;

10. There was no new appointment of Chief Financial Officer, Company Secretary and Head of Internal Audit during
the year. The changes in remuneration including terms and conditions of employment of Chief Financial Officer,
Company Secretary and Head of Internal Audit were approved by the Board;

11. Chief Financial Officer and Chief Executive Officer duly endorsed the financial statements before approval of
the Board;

2. The composition of the Board is as follows:

a. Male 6

b. Female 1

1. The total number of directors are seven as per the following:

i. Independent directors Mr. Adnan Afridi

Mr. Andalib Alavi

Ms. Anam Fatima Khan

ii. Non-executive directors Dr. Donald John Jenkin

Mr. Ameen Mohammad Bandukda

Mr. Murtaza Lalan

iii. Executive director Mr. Shabbir Abbas

iv. Female director Ms. Anam Fatima Khan
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STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE WITH
LISTED COMPANIES (CODE OF CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE) REGULATIONS, 2019

12. The Board has formed committees comprising of members given below:

a. Audit Committee

Mr. Adnan Afridi Chairman

Dr. Donald John Jenkin Member

Mr. Andalib Alavi Member

b. HR and Remuneration Committee

Mr. Andalib Alavi Chairman

Dr. Donald John Jenkin Member

Mr. Ameen Mohammad Bandukda Member

Ms. Anam Fatima Khan Member

13. The terms of reference of the aforesaid committees have been formed, documented and advised to the committee
for compliance;

14. The frequency of meetings (quarterly/half yearly/ yearly) of the committees were as per following:

a. Audit Committee: Quarterly;

b. HR and Remuneration Committee: Quarterly;

15. The board has outsourced the internal audit function to M/s. A.F. Ferguson & Co, Chartered Accountants (a
member of the PwC network) who are considered suitably qualified and experienced for the purpose and are
conversant with the policies and procedures of the company;

16. The statutory auditors of the company have confirmed that they have been given a satisfactory rating under the
Quality Control Review program of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan and registered with Audit
Oversight Board of Pakistan, that they and all their partners are in compliance with International Federation of
Accountants (IFAC) guidelines on code of ethics as adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan
and that they and the partners of the firm involved in the audit are not a close relative (spouse, parent, dependent
and non-dependent children) of the chief executive officer, chief financial officer, head of internal audit, company
secretary or director of the company;

17.   The statutory auditors or the persons associated with them have not been appointed to provide other services
except in accordance with the Act, these Regulations or any other regulatory requirement and the auditors have
confirmed that they have observed IFAC guidelines in this regard;

18.   We confirm that all requirements of regulations 3, 6, 7, 8, 27, 32, 33 and 36 of the Regulations have been
complied with.

Shabbir Abbas
Chief Executive Officer

Anam Fatima Khan
Director

Karachi:
September 03, 2021
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT 30 JUNE 2021

30 June
2021

30 June
2020

(Rupees)
Note

ASSETS

NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Property, plant and equipment 9 640,433,747 414,796,455
Long-term loans 10 112,376 150,595
Long-term deposits 11 7,195,126 6,673,726
Deferred taxation 12 15,613,048 57,592,846

663,354,297 479,213,622

CURRENT ASSETS

Stores and spares 13 22,069,310 18,827,867
Stock-in-trade 14 1,189,667,787 698,834,091
Trade debts 15 993,363,633 788,497,315
Loans and advances 16 30,158,292 22,917,675
Trade deposits and short-term prepayments 17 8,664,470 4,030,199
Accrued mark-up 1,008,648 479,773
Other receivables 18  –     2,072,449
Taxation - net  –     7,287,513
Cash and bank balances 19 499,303,600 323,719,436

2,744,235,740 1,866,666,318

TOTAL ASSETS  3,407,590,037 2,345,879,940

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES
Authorised share capital

40,000,000 (2020: 40,000,000) ordinary
shares of Rs.5/- each 200,000,000 200,000,000

Issued, subscribed and paid-up capital 20 94,362,065 94,362,065
Revenue reserves 2,287,598,796 1,490,533,711

 2,381,960,861 1,584,895,776

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

Long-term financing 21  108,412,729 140,625,000
Deferred income 22  9,369,812  –
Lease liabilities 23  5,715,128 5,151,891

123,497,669 145,776,891

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Trade and other payables 24  655,695,231 485,191,003
Accrued mark-up 1,583,071 4,592,715
Short-term running finance 25  –     –
Current portion of long-term financing 21  128,206,095 112,500,000
Current portion of deferred income 22  5,492,726  –
Current portion of lease liabilities 23 5,051,544 7,473,667
Taxation - net  99,619,553  –
Unclaimed dividend 26  6,483,287  5,449,888

 902,131,507 615,207,273

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 3,407,590,037 2,345,879,940

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS 27

The annexed notes from 1 to 50 form an integral part of these financial statements.

ANAM FATIMA KHAN
Director

SHABBIR ABBAS
Chief Executive Officer

SHAKEEL UDDIN
Chief Financial Officer
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STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021

30 June
2021

30 June
2020

(Rupees)
Note

Turnover - net 28  6,827,203,543 4,492,454,676

Cost of sales 29  (5,191,320,199)  (3,709,112,293)

Gross profit  1,635,883,344  783,342,383

Distribution costs 30  (197,664,122)  (141,851,255)

Administrative expenses 31  (134,414,410)  (101,460,643)

Reversal of allowance / (allowance) for Expected Credit Loss 15.1  111,311,239  (95,591,292)

 (220,767,293)  (338,903,190)

Other income 32  33,947,556  8,809,382

Operating profit  1,449,063,607  453,248,575

Finance costs 33  (25,343,871)  (58,020,809)

Other charges 34  (94,965,548)  (36,563,783)

 (120,309,419)  (94,584,592)

Profit before taxation  1,328,754,188  358,663,983

Taxation 35  (390,145,628)  (105,314,635)

Net profit for the year  938,608,560  253,349,348

Basic and diluted earnings per share 36  49.73  13.42

The annexed notes from 1 to 50 form an integral part of these financial statements.

ANAM FATIMA KHAN
Director

SHABBIR ABBAS
Chief Executive Officer

SHAKEEL UDDIN
Chief Financial Officer
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STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021

30 June
2021

30 June
2020

(Rupees)

Net profit for the year  938,608,560  253,349,348

Other comprehensive income –     –

Total comprehensive income for the year  938,608,560  253,349,348

The annexed notes from 1 to 50 form an integral part of these financial statements.

ANAM FATIMA KHAN
Director

SHABBIR ABBAS
Chief Executive Officer

SHAKEEL UDDIN
Chief Financial Officer
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021

30 June
2021

30 June
2020

(Rupees)
Note

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Profit before taxation  1,328,754,188  358,663,983

Adjustments for non-cash and other items
Depreciation on operating fixed assets 9.3  103,916,763  119,180,520
Depreciation on right-of-use assets 9.5.1  6,083,042  4,676,682
Amortisation 31  –      536
(Reversal of allowance) / allowance for Expected Credit Loss 15.1  (111,311,239)  95,591,292
Finance costs 33  25,343,871  58,020,809
Deferred income amortized 32  (3,264,690)  –
Gain on disposals of operating fixed assets 32  (2,881,003)  (2,961,201)

 17,886,744  274,508,638

 1,346,640,932  633,172,621

(Increase) / decrease in current assets
Stores and spares  (3,241,443)  4,961,858
Stock-in-trade  (490,833,696)  (15,724,166)
Trade debts  (93,555,079)  44,970,062
Loans and advances  (7,240,617)  7,080,695
Trade deposits and short-term prepayments  (4,634,271)  2,743,245
Accrued mark-up  (528,875)  (222,192)
Other receivables  2,072,449  (2,072,449)

 (597,961,532)  41,737,053

Increase in current liabilities
Trade and other payables  170,504,228  168,808,461

 919,183,628  843,718,135
Finance costs paid  (25,088,825)  (63,849,417)
Income taxes paid - net  (241,258,764)  (82,058,021)
Long-term loans and deposits - net  (483,181)  (5,828)

Net cash generated from operating activities  652,352,858  697,804,869

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Fixed capital expenditure  (329,876,287)  (38,437,828)
Proceeds from disposal of operating fixed assets  6,183,921  3,008,043

Net cash used in investing activities  (323,692,366)  (35,429,785)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Long-term financing - net 40  (1,643,638)  (112,500,000)
Lease rentals paid 40  (10,922,614)  (6,152,894)
Dividend paid 40  (140,510,076)  (46,991,157)

Net cash used in financing activities  (153,076,328)  (165,644,051)

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents  175,584,164 496,731,033

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of year  323,719,436  (173,011,597)

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of year  499,303,600  323,719,436

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and bank balances 19  499,303,600  323,719,436
Short-term running finance 25  –      –

 499,303,600  323,719,436

The annexed notes from 1 to 50 form an integral part of these financial statements.

ANAM FATIMA KHAN
Director

SHABBIR ABBAS
Chief Executive Officer

SHAKEEL UDDIN
Chief Financial Officer
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021

Issued,
Subscribed
and paid-up

capital

General
reserve

Unappropriated
profit Total Total

Revenue Reserves

(Rupees)

Balance as at 30 June 2019  94,362,065  991,000,000  293,365,705  1,284,365,705  1,378,727,770

Transferred to general reserve  –     150,000,000  (150,000,000)  –      –

Final dividend for the year ended
30 June 2019 @ Rs. 2.5 per share  –     –     (47,181,342)  (47,181,342)  (47,181,342)

Net profit for the year  –     –     253,349,348  253,349,348  253,349,348

Other comprehensive income  –     –     –      –      –

Total comprehensive income for the year  –     –     253,349,348  253,349,348  253,349,348

Balance as at 30 June 2020  94,362,065  1,141,000,000  349,533,711  1,490,533,711  1,584,895,776

Transferred to general reserve  –     200,000,000  (200,000,000)  –      –

Final dividend for the year ended
30 June 2020 @ Rs. 5 per share  –     –     (94,362,134)  (94,362,134)  (94,362,134)

Interim dividend for the year ended
30 June 2021 @ Rs. 2.50 per share  –     –     (47,181,341)  (47,181,341)  (47,181,341)

Net profit for the year  –     –     938,608,560  938,608,560  938,608,560

Other comprehensive income  –     –     –      –      –

Total comprehensive income for the year  –     –     938,608,560  938,608,560  938,608,560

Balance as at 30 June 2021  94,362,065  1,341,000,000  946,598,796  2,287,598,796  2,381,960,861

The annexed notes from 1 to 50 form an integral part of these financial statements.

ANAM FATIMA KHAN
Director

SHABBIR ABBAS
Chief Executive Officer

SHAKEEL UDDIN
Chief Financial Officer



1. THE COMPANY AND ITS OPERATIONS

Dynea Pakistan Limited (the Company) was incorporated on 20 June 1982, in Pakistan as a public limited company
and is listed on the Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited. It is engaged in the manufacture and sale of formaldehyde,
urea /melamine formaldehyde and moulding compound. The registered office of the Company is situated at Office
No. 406, Parsa Tower, Plot No. 31/1/A, Block-6, P.E.C.H.S, Shahrah-e-Faisal, Karachi, Pakistan.

2. GEOGRAPHICAL LOCATIONS AND ADDRESSES

Geographical locations and addresses of all the business units are as under:

Location Business unit

Karachi
Office No. 406, Parsa Tower, Block-6, P.E.C.H.S, Shahrah-e-Faisal, Karachi, Sindh Registered Office
Office No. 405, Parsa Tower, Block-6, P.E.C.H.S, Shahrah-e-Faisal, Karachi, Sindh Sales Office

Hub
A101-105, A132-136, H.I.T.E., Hub Chowki, Distt. Lasbella, Baluchistan Production Plant

Gadoon
34-A, 34-B, 35 & 38-A Road-3, Industrial Estate, Gadoon Amazai,
District Swabi, Khyber Pakhtunkhwa Production Plant

3. STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable
in Pakistan. The accounting and reporting standards applicable in Pakistan comprise of International Financial Reporting
Standards (lFRSs) issued by International Accounting Standard Board (IASB) as notified under Companies Act, 2017
(the "Act"); and provisions of and directives issued under the Act. Where the provisions of and directives issued under
the Act differ from the IFRSs, the provisions of and directives issued under the Act have been followed.

4. IMPACT OF COVID-19 ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Covid-19 is a global pandemic which has affected the whole world and Pakistan is not an exception. Businesses are badly
affected due to lockdowns to fight Covid-19 since March 2020. The situation, however, has now improved on the back of
steps taken by the Government. The Company has taken all necessary measures for the health and safety of its employees.
Employees were also allowed to work from their homes during Covid-19. The management fully supports the Government's
stance of vaccination. Based on the assessment performed by the management, there is no significant accounting impact
of Covid-19 in these financial statements.

5. BASIS OF MEASUREMENT

5.1 Accounting convention

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention except for certain items as disclosed
in the relevant accounting policies.

5.2 Functional and presentation currency

These financial statements are presented in Pak Rupees which is the Company's functional and presentation currency.

6. NEW STANDARDS, AMENDMENTS, IMPROVEMENTS TO APPROVED ACCOUNTING STANDARDS AND THE
FRAMEWORK FOR FINANCIAL REPORTING

6.1 Amendments to the approved accounting standards and the framework for financial reporting that became
effective during the current year

The Company has adopted the following amendments to International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) and the
framework for financial reporting which became effective for the current year:

28 DYNEA PAKISTAN LIMITEDANNUAL REPORT 2021
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Amendment or framework

IFRS 3 - Business Combinations - Definition of a Business (Amendments);

IFRS 9 / IAS 39 / IFRS 7 - Interest Rate Benchmark Reform (Amendments);

IAS 1 / IAS 8 - Definition of Material (Amendments); and

The Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting.

The adoption of the above amendments to the approved accounting standards and the framework for financial reporting
did not have any material effect on the Company's financial statements.

6.2 Standards, amendments and improvements to approved accounting standards that are not yet effective

The following amendments and improvements to the approved accounting standards as applicable in Pakistan would be
effective from the dates mentioned below against the respective amendment or improvement:

Effective date
(annual periods

Amendment or improvement beginning on or after)

IFRS 9, IAS 39, IFRS 7, IFRS 4 and IFRS 16 - Interest Rate Benchmark
Reform - Phase 2 (Amendment) 01 January 2021

IFRS 16 - Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions beyond
30 June 2021 (Amendments) 01 April 2021

IFRS 3 - Reference to the Conceptual Framework (Amendments) 01 January 2022

IAS 16 - Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds before
Intended Use (Amendments) 01 January 2022

IAS 37 - Onerous Contracts – Costs of Fulfilling a Contract (Amendments) 01 January 2022

IAS 1 - Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current (Amendments) 01 January 2023

IAS 1 - Disclosure of Accounting Policies (Amendments) 01 January 2023

IAS 8 - Definition of Accounting Estimates (Amendments) 01 January 2023

IAS 12 - Deferred tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from a
single transaction (Amendments) 01 January 2023

IFRS 10 / IAS 28 - Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor
and its Associate or Joint Venture (Amendments) Not yet finalized

IASB Effective date
Improvements to accounting standards issued by (annual periods
     the IASB (2018-2020 cycle) beginning on or after)

IFRS 9 - Financial Instruments - Fees in the '10 percent' test
for derecognition of financial liabilities 01 January 2022

IAS 41 - Agriculture – Taxation in fair value measurements 01 January 2022

IFRS 16 - Leases: Lease incentives 01 January 2022

The above amendments and improvements to the approved accounting standards are not expected to have any material
impact on the Company's financial statements in the period of initial application.

Further, the following new standards have been issued by IASB which are yet to be notified by the SECP for the purpose
of applicability in Pakistan and are not expected to have any material impact on the Company's financial statements in
the period of initial application.
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IASB Effective date
(annual periods

Standards beginning on or after)

IFRS 1 - First-time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards 01 January 2004

IFRS 17 - Insurance Contracts 01 January 2023

7. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS, ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS

The preparation of these financial statements in conformity with approved accounting standards requires the use of certain
critical accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise its judgment in the process of applying the Company's
accounting policies. Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are based on historic experience and other
factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised and in any future periods affected.

In the process of applying the accounting policies, management has made the following estimates and judgments which
are significant to the financial statements:

– Residual values, method of depreciation and useful lives of operating
fixed assets and right-of- use assets 8.1, 9.1 & 9.5

– Impairment of financial and non-financial assets 8.3 & 8.15

– Net realizable value estimation 8.4, 8.5, 13 & 14

– Classification and measurement of financial instruments 8.15

– Leases 8.10 & 23

– Provisions 8.13

– Recognition of current and deferred taxation 8.17, 12 & 35

– Contingencies 8.23 & 27

8. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

8.1 Property, plant and equipment

Operating fixed assets

These are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any, except for freehold land which is
stated at cost. Depreciation is charged to statement of profit or loss using the straight line method, at the rates specified
in note 9.1 to these financial statements. Depreciation on additions is charged from the month when the asset is available
for use and in case of disposals up to the month of disposal. Leasehold land is amortised in equal installments over the
lease period of 70 years and 99 years.

Maintenance and normal repairs are charged to statement of profit or loss as and when incurred. Major renewals and
improvements are capitalized and the assets so replaced, if any, are retired.

Gains and losses on disposal of operating fixed assets are recognized in statement of profit or loss in the period of disposal.

Capital work in progress

These are stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any, and represents expenditures incurred and advances
made in respect of specific assets during the construction / erection period. These are transferred to specific assets as
and when assets are available for use.

Right-of-use assets

The Company recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the date the underlying asset
is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if
any, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease
liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the commencement date less
any lease incentives received. Unless the Company is reasonably certain to obtain ownership of the leased asset at the
end of the lease term, the recognized right-of-use assets are depreciated using straight line method. Right-of-use assets

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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are subject to impairment. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the lower of the lease term
and the estimated useful lives of the assets, as follows:

Vehicles 5 years
City office 5 years

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Company at the end of the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise
of a purchase option, depreciation is calculated using the estimated useful life of an asset.

8.2 Intangible assets

These are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment losses, if any, except for intangibles under
development which are stated at cost less impairment loss, if any. Amortisation is charged to statement of profit or loss
using the straight line method.

8.3 Impairment of non-financial assets

The carrying amount of non-financial assets other than inventories are assessed at each reporting date to ascertain whether
there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists then the asset's recoverable amount is estimated. An
impairment loss is recognised as an expense in statement of profit or loss, for the amount by which the assets carrying
amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an assets fair value less cost to sell and
value in use. Value in use is ascertained through discounting of the estimated future cash flows using a discount rate that
reflects the current market assessments of the time value of money and the risk specific to the assets. For the purpose of
assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash flows (cash
generating units) .

An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount.
An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset's carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount
that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment had been recognised.

8.4 Stores and spares

These are valued at the lower of weighted average cost and estimated Net Realizable Value (NRV). Provision /write off,
if required, is made in financial statements for slow moving, obsolete and unusable items to bring their carrying value
down to NRV. 

8.5 Stock-in-trade

These are stated at the lower of weighted average cost and estmated NRV. Cost signifies in relation to:

Raw and packing materials Purchase cost and other direct expenses on weighted average basis

Finished goods Cost of direct materials, labour and proportion of attributable overheads

Goods in-transit Invoice value plus other charges paid thereon upto the statement of financial position date.�

NRV signifies the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of completion and
the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

8.6 Trade debts, loans, deposits, accrued markup and other receivables

Trade debts, loans, deposits, accrued markup and other receivables are stated initially at fair value and subsequently
measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate method. Provision is made on the basis of lifetime ECLs that
result from all possible default events over the expected life of the trade debts, loans, deposits, acrued markup and other
receivables. Bad debts are written off when considered irrecoverable.

8.7 Ijarah rentals

Ijarah payments for assets under Ijarah finance agreements are recognised as an expense in statement of profit or loss
on a straight line basis over the Ijarah term.

8.8 Cash and cash equivalents

These are stated at cost. For the purpose of statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise of cash in hand
and bank balances net off short-term running finance.
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8.9 Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which these are incurred except to the extent of borrowing
costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset. Such borrowing costs,
if any, are capitalized as part of the cost of that asset.

8.10 Leases

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognises lease liabilities measured at the present value of lease
payments to be made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts
expected to be paid under residual value guarantees. The lease payments also include the exercise price of a purchase
option reasonably certain to be exercised by the Company and payments of penalties for terminating a lease, if the lease
term reflects the Company exercising the option to terminate. The variable lease payments that do not depend on an index
or a rate are recognised as expense in the period on which the event or condition that triggers the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Company uses the incremental borrowing rate at the initial
application date if the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. After the commencement date, the
amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments made. In
addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a modification, a change in the lease term, a
change in the in-substance fixed lease payments  or a change in the assessment to purchase the underlying asset.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Company applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases (i.e., those leases that have a
lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement date and do not contain a purchase option). It also applies the
lease of low-value assets recognition exemption to leases that are considered of low value. Lease payments on short-
term leases and leases of low-value assets are recognised as expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

8.11 Trade and other payables

Liabilities for trade and other amounts payable are carried at cost which is the fair value of the consideration to be paid
in future for goods and services received, whether or not billed to the Company.

8.12 Contract liabilities

A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Company has received
consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from the customer. If a customer pays consideration before the
Company transfers goods or services to the customer, a contract liability is recognised when the payment is made or the
payment is due (whichever is earlier). Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when the Company performs under
the contract.

8.13 Provisions

Provisions are recognised in the statement of financial position where the Company has a legal or constructive obligation
as a result of past event, and it is probable that out flow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to
settle the obligation and a reliable estimate of the amount can be made. Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date
and adjusted to reflect current best estimate.

8.14 Deferred income

Benefit of loan at below market rate of interest is recognized as deferred income. It is recognized as income on a systematic
basis over the periods that the related costs, for which it is intended to compensate, are expensed out.

8.15 Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity
instrument of another entity.

Financial assets

The financial assets of the Company mainly include loans, deposits, trade debts, other receivables, accrued mark-up and
cash & bank balances.
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On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at amortised cost, Fair Value through Other Comprehensive
Income (FVOCI) – debt investment, FVOCI – equity investment, or Fair Value through Profit or Loss (FVTPL).

The classification of financial assets is generally based on the business model in which a financial asset is managed and
its contractual cash flow characteristics.

Based on the business model of the Company, the financial assets of the Company are measured and classified as follows:

 –  Trade debts and other financial assets are carried at amortised cost.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are initially recognized at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred and subsequently carried at
amortized cost using the effective interest method. These are classified as current liabilities unless the Company has an
unconditional / contractual right to defer settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the statement of financial
position date. The Company's financial liabilities at amortized cost include certain long-term financing, lease liabilities,
certain portion of trade and other payables, accrued mark-up, short-term running finance and unclaimed dividend.

The Company has not designated any financial liabilities at FVTPL.

Offsetting of financial assets and liabilities

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the statement of financial position if, and only if,
there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net
basis or to realize the assets and settle liabilities simultaneously. Incomes and expenses arising from such assets and
liabilities are also offset accordingly.

Impairment of financial assets

The Company recognises an Allowance for Expected Credit Losses (ECLs) for all debt instruments not held at fair
value through profit or loss. ECLs are based on the difference between the contractual cash flows due in accordance
with the contract and all the cash flows that the Company expects to receive, discounted at an approximation of the
original effective interest rate. The expected cash flows will include cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other
credit enhancements that are integral to the contractual terms.

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for which there has not been a significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses that result from default events that are possible within the
next 12-months (a 12-month ECL). For those credit exposures for which there has been a significant increase in credit
risk since initial recognition, a loss allowance is required for credit losses expected over the remaining life of the exposure,
irrespective of the timing of the default (a lifetime ECL).

For trade debts, the Company applies a simplified approach in calculating ECLs. Therefore, the Company does not track
changes in credit risk, but instead recognises a loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. The Company
has established a provision matrix that is based on its historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors
specific to the debtors and the economic environment.

The Company considers a financial asset in default when contractual payments are 120 days past due, however,
in certain cases, the Company also considers a financial asset in default when contractual payments are 360 days
past due.

Further, the Company may consider a financial asset to be in default when internal or external information indicates that
the Company is unlikely to receive the outstanding contractual amounts in full before taking into account any credit
enhancements held by the Company. A financial asset is written off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovering
the contractual cash flows.

The Company has applied the general approach for other financial assets.

8.16 Employee retirement benefits

Defined contribution plan

The Company operates a recognized provident fund for its permanent employees. Equal monthly contributions are made
to the fund by the Company and the employees in accordance with the rules of the scheme. The Company has no further
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obligation once the contributions have been paid. The contributions made by the Company are recognized as employee
benefit expenses when they are due.

Compensated absences

The Company accounts for these benefits in the accounting period in which the absences are earned. Provisions to cover
the obligations are made using the current salary levels of employees. No actuarial valuation of compensated absences
is carried out as the management considers that the financial impact is not material.

8.17 Taxation

Current

Provision for current taxation is based on taxable income at the current rate of taxation after taking into account tax credits
and tax rebates available, if any. The tax charged as calculated above is compared with turnover tax. Higher of normal
tax or turnover tax is compared with Alternate Corporate Tax and whichever is higher is provided in the financial statements.
Turnover tax is calculated in accordance with the provisions of Section 113 of Income Tax Ordinance, 2001. Alternate
Corporate Tax is calculated in accordance with the provisions of section 113C of Income Tax Ordinance, 2001.

Deferred

Deferred tax is provided on all temporary differences at the reporting date between the tax base of assets and liabilities
and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes. Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, carry forward of unused tax assets
and unused tax losses, to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences, carry forward of unused tax assets and unused tax losses can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduces to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available in future to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilized.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset
is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted
at the reporting date.

8.18 Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised at the point in time when control of the asset is transferred to the customer. Revenue is measured
at fair value of the consideration received or receivable and is recognised on the following basis:

Sale of goods

Revenue from sale of goods is recognised when or as control of goods have been transferred to a customer at a point
in time, when the performance obligations are met. It is recorded at net of trade discounts and rebates, if any.

Other income

– Interest on deposit account and profit on savings accounts are recognized on time proportion basis using effective
interest rate method.

– Scrap sales and any other income is accounted for on accrual basis.

8.19 Foreign currency transactions

Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are translated into Pakistani Rupees at the rates of exchange prevailing on
the date of transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated into Pakistani
Rupees at the rates of exchange prevailing at the reporting date. Exchange differences are taken to statement of profit or
loss.

8.20 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity and recognized at their face value. Incremental costs directly attributable to the
issue of new shares or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.
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30 June
2021

30 June
2020

(Rupees)

Note

Operating fixed assets 9.1  603,719,197 388,658,692

Capital work-in-progress 9.4  22,125,263 11,351,162

Right-of-use assets 9.5  14,589,287 14,786,601

640,433,747 414,796,455
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8.21 Dividends distribution and appropriation to reserves

Dividends and appropriation to the reserves are recognized in the period in which these are approved.

8.22 Segment reporting

Segment reporting is based on the operating (business) segments of the Company. An operating segment is an identifiable
component of the Company that engages in business activities from which it may earn revenues and incur expenses,
including revenues and expenses that relate to transactions with any of the Company’s other components and for which
discrete financial information is available. An operating segment’s operating results are reviewed regularly by the senior
management to make decisions about resources to be allocated to the segment and assess its performance.

Segment results that are reported to the senior management include items directly attributable to a segment as well as
those that can be allocated on a reasonable basis. Unallocated items comprise mainly corporate assets, income tax assets
/ liabilities and related income and expenditure. Segment capital expenditure is the total cost incurred during the year to
acquire property, plant and equipment.

The business segments are engaged in providing products which are subject to risks and rewards which differ from the
risk and rewards of other segments. Segments reported are as follows:

Resin division

The resin division produces urea / melamine formaldehyde and formaldehyde.

Moulding compound division

The moulding compound division produces urea / melamine formaldehyde moulding compound and melamine glazing
powder.

8.23 Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is disclosed when the Company has a possible obligation as a result of past events, whose existence
will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence, of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the
control of the Company; or the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation that arises from past events, but
it is not probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation, or
the amount of obligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliability.

8.24 Earnings per share

The Company presents basic and diluted Earnings Per Share (EPS) data for its ordinary shares. Basic EPS is calculated
by dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company by the weighted average number of
ordinary shares outstanding during the period. Diluted EPS is determined by adjusting the profit or loss attributable to
ordinary shareholders and the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding adjusted for the effects of all
dilutive potential ordinary shares.

9. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENTT
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9.2 Immovable properties i.e. land (freehold land and leasehold land) and buildings thereon, are situated at Hub and Gadoon measuring 17,500 Square meter and 28,273.63 Square meter respectively.

Freehold land 659,961 –    –    659,961 – –    –    –    –    659,961
Leasehold land 43,115,159 –    –    43,115,159 70,99 years 2,523,884 620,847 –    3,144,731 39,970,428
Buildings on freehold land 20,307,457 –    –    20,307,457 10% 20,307,121 336 –    20,307,457 –
Buildings on leasehold land 204,654,724 87,659,110 * –    292,313,834 10% 114,450,020 18,284,677 –    132,734,697 159,579,137
Plant and machinery 853,196,773 10,427,101 (331,566)  1,036,221,380 16.67% 632,105,265  68,510,370 (331,562)  700,284,073 335,937,307

172,929,072 *
Electrical installations 62,397,424 266,015 –    83,444,547 16.67% 38,346,059 8,367,247 –    46,713,306 36,731,241

20,781,108 *
Furniture and fittings 3,080,302 126,000 –    3,206,302 20% 2,659,284 373,237 –    3,032,521 173,781
Office equipment 7,070,965 1,815,550 (142,050) 8,744,465 20% 5,031,743 904,120 (142,050) 5,793,813 2,950,652
Computers and accessories 19,874,543 2,404,230 (776,129) 21,502,644 33% 10,812,837 5,264,285 (722,535) 15,354,587 6,148,057
Vehicles 2,986,586 22,694,000 (5,080,671) 25,139,915 20% 2,448,989 1,591,644 (1,831,351) 3,571,282 21,568,633

4,540,000 ** 1,362,000 **
Storage tanks 2,507,035 –    –    2,507,035 20% 2,507,035 –    –    2,507,035 –

2021 1,219,850,929 37,732,896 (6,330,416) 1,537,162,699 831,192,237 103,916,763 (3,027,498) 933,443,502 603,719,197

281,369,290 * 1,362,000 **
4,540,000 **

1,219,850,929 323,642,186 (6,330,416)  1,537,162,699 831,192,237 105,278,763 (3,027,498) 933,443,502 603,719,197

9.1 Operating fixed assets

Freehold land 659,961 –    –    659,961 – –    –    –    –    659,961
Leasehold land  43,115,159 –    –    43,115,159 70,99 years 1,903,038 620,846 –    2,523,884 40,591,275
Buildings on freehold land 20,307,457 –    –    20,307,457 10% 19,780,786 526,335 –    20,307,121 336
Buildings on leasehold land 203,392,895 1,261,829 * –    204,654,724 10% 96,521,284 17,928,736 –    114,450,020 90,204,704
Plant and machinery 831,773,322 7,207,134 (2,302,831) 853,196,773 16.67% 548,227,956 86,180,140 (2,302,831) 632,105,265 221,091,508

16,519,148  *
Electrical installations 61,100,799 1,296,625 –    62,397,424 16.67% 30,709,368 7,636,691 –    38,346,059 24,051,365
Furniture and fittings 3,080,302 –    –    3,080,302 20% 2,282,262 377,022 –    2,659,284 421,018
Office equipment  6,863,965 207,000 –    7,070,965 20% 4,357,914 673,829 –    5,031,743 2,039,222
Computers and accessories 19,348,043 632,500 (106,000) 19,874,543 33% 5,780,693 5,138,144 (106,000) 10,812,837 9,061,706
Vehicles 2,820,998 212,430 (46,842) 2,986,586 20% 2,350,212 98,777 –    2,448,989 537,597
Storage tanks 2,507,035 –    –    2,507,035 20% 2,507,035 –    –    2,507,035 –

2020 1,194,969,936 9,555,689 (2,455,673) 1,219,850,929 714,420,548 119,180,520 (2,408,831) 831,192,237 388,658,692
17,780,977 *

1,194,969,936 27,336,666 (2,455,673) 1,219,850,929 714,420,548 119,180,520 (2,408,831) 831,192,237 388,658,692

COST ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION
NET BOOK

VALUE

As at
01 July 2020

Additions /
transfers from
capital work-in-
progress* and

right-of-use
assets** Disposals

Depreciation
rate /
years

Charge for
the year /

transfers from
right-of-use

assets**
As at

30 June 2021
As at

01 July 2020 Disposals
As at

30 June 2021
As at

30 June 2021

COST ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION
NET BOOK

VALUE

As at
01 July 2019

Additions /
transfers from
capital work-in-

progress* Disposals

Depreciation
rate /
years

Charge for
the year

As at
30 June 2020

As at
01 July 2019 Disposals

As at
30 June 2020

As at
30 June 2020
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Cost
Balance at the beginning

of the year 16,733,500 3,564,124 20,297,624 –    –    –
Impact of initial

application of IFRS 16 –    –    –    10,433,500 –    10,433,500
Additions –    9,063,728 9,063,728 6,300,000 3,564,124 9,864,124
Transfer to operating fixed

assets (4,540,000) –    (4,540,000) –    –    –
Balance at the end of

the year 12,193,500 12,627,852 24,821,352 16,733,500 3,564,124 20,297,624

Accumulated depreciation

Balance at the beginning
of the year 3,866,039 1,644,984 5,511,023 834,341 –    834,341

Charge 9.5.1 3,119,699 2,963,343 6,083,042 3,031,698 1,644,984 4,676,682
Transfer to operating

fixed assets (1,362,000) –    (1,362,000) –    –    –
Balance at the end

of the year 5,623,738 4,608,327 10,232,065 3,866,039 1,644,984 5,511,023

Net book value 6,569,762 8,019,525 14,589,287 12,867,461 1,919,140 14,786,601

9.3 Depreciation charge for the year has been allocated as follows:

Cost of sales 29 97,335,144 113,887,341
Distribution costs 30 1,442,280 532,355
Administrative expenses 31 5,139,339 4,760,824

103,916,763 119,180,520

9.4 Capital work-in-progress

Plant and machinery 12,408,952 11,351,162
Buildings on leasehold land 5,216,311 –
Advances for vehicles 4,500,000 –

9.4.1 22,125,263 11,351,162

9.4.1 Movement in capital work-in-progress is as follows:

Balance at the beginning of the year 11,351,162 250,000
Capital expenditure incurred / advances made 292,143,391 28,882,139
Transferred to operating fixed assets (281,369,290) (17,780,977)

Balance at the end of the year 22,125,263 11,351,162

9.5 Right-of-use assets

Vehicles Total

(Rupees)

Note

City office Total Vehicles City office

30 June 2021 30 June 2020

9.5.1 The depreciation charge for the year has been allocated as follows:

30 June
2021

30 June
2020

(Rupees)
Note

Cost of sales 29 1,853,047 1,765,047
Distribution costs 30 1,507,895 1,233,730
Administrative expenses 31 2,722,100 1,677,905

6,083,042 4,676,682

30 June
2021

30 June
2020

(Rupees)
Note
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10 LONG-TERM LOANS - secured, considered good

Loan to employees 299,313 332,271
Current portion 16 (186,937) (181,676)

10.1 112,376 150,595

10.1 Interest free loans are granted for purchase of property, motor vehicles and for miscellaneous purposes to the employees
which are repayable within a maximum period of three years as per the Company’s human resource policy. These loans are
secured against the retirement benefits of the employees. These loans are carried at cost due to practicality and materiality of
the amounts involved.

30 June
2021

30 June
2020

(Rupees)
Note

11 LONG-TERM DEPOSITS - unsecured, considered good

Lasbella Industrial Estate Development Authority 4,915,870 4,915,870

Water and Power Development Authority 823,200 823,200

Others 1,456,056 934,656

7,195,126 6,673,726

12 DEFERRED TAXATION - net

Deductible temporary differences arising due to allowance for
    Expected Credit Loss, provisions and lease liabilities 22,581,071 59,751,768

Taxable temporary differences arising due to Accelerated tax
    depreciation and amortisation (6,968,023) (2,158,922)

15,613,048 57,592,846

13 STORES AND SPARES

Stores 14,684,229 12,339,294

Spares 7,385,081 6,488,573

22,069,310 18,827,867

14 STOCK-IN-TRADE

Raw material

In hand 729,792,846 472,914,057

In-transit 335,770,734 178,705,192

1,065,563,580 651,619,249

Packing material 13,163,312 7,222,865

Finished goods 110,940,895 39,991,977

14.1 1,189,667,787 698,834,091

14.1 Includes items amounting to Rs. Nil (2020: Rs. 4.46 million) carried at Net Realisable Value. [Cost Rs. Nil (2020: Rs. 4.94 million)].

30 June
2021

30 June
2020

(Rupees)
Note

15. TRADE DEBTS - unsecured

Considered good 993,363,633 788,497,315

Considered doubtful 57,887,361 184,162,957

1,051,250,994 972,660,272

Allowance for Expected Credit Loss (ECL) 15.1 (57,887,361) (184,162,957)

993,363,633 788,497,315

30 June
2021

30 June
2020

(Rupees)
Note
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15.1 Movement in allowance for ECL is as follows:

Balance at the beginning of the year 184,162,957 88,571,665

(Reversal of allowance) / allowance (111,311,239) 95,591,292

Written-off (14,964,357) –

Balance at the end of the year 57,887,361 184,162,957

16. LOANS AND ADVANCES - considered good

Loans - secured
Executives 287,500 208,335

Employees 2,836,185 1,760,439

Current portion 10 186,937 181,676

3,310,622 2,150,450

Advances - unsecured
Suppliers and contractors 26,847,670 20,767,225

30,158,292 22,917,675

17. TRADE DEPOSITS AND SHORT-TERM PREPAYMENTS

Deposits - unsecured, considered good 3,462,309 400,051

Prepayments 5,202,161 3,630,148

8,664,470 4,030,199

18. OTHER RECEIVABLES

Workers' Profit Participation Fund (WPPF) 18.1 –    2,072,449

–    2,072,449

18.1 Movement in Workers' Profit Participation Fund (WPPF) is as follows:

Balance at the beginning of the year 2,072,449 (2,329,116)

Interest 33 –    (26,322)

Charge 34 (70,249,177) (19,427,551)

Payments 67,927,551 23,855,438

Balance at the end of the year (249,177) 2,072,449

19. CASH AND BANK BALANCES

Cash at banks

Current accounts 19.1 56,681,292 37,202,001

Savings accounts 19.2 313,352,782 257,247,909

Deposit account 19.3 129,269,526 29,269,526

499,303,600 323,719,436

19.1 Includes an amount of Rs. 5.825 million (2020: Rs. 1.373 million) in an Islamic bank.

19.2 Includes an amount of Rs. 46.331 million (2020: 30.169 million) placed with an Islamic bank carrying profit at the rates ranging
from 3.25% to 7.06% (2020: 3.25% to 7.06%). Profit rate under conventional banking relationship is at the rates ranging from
6.50% to 11.25% (2020: 6.50% to 11.25%) per annum.

19.3 Represents deposit with a conventional bank and carries interest at the rates ranging from 7% to 10.99% (2020: 7% to 10.99%)
per annum.

30 June
2021

30 June
2020

(Rupees)
Note
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20 ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND PAID-UP CAPITAL
30 June

2021
30 June

2020
(Rupees)

8,316,000 8,316,000 Fully paid in cash 41,580,000 41,580,000

10,556,413 10,556,413 Issued as bonus shares 52,782,065 52,782,065

18,872,413 18,872,413 94,362,065 94,362,065

Number of ordinary
shares of Rs. 5/- each

30 June 2021 30 June 2020

20.1 AICA Asia Pacific Holding Pte. Limited (a related party), incorporated in Singapore having its registered office at 43 Shipyard
Road - 628135, Singapore, held 4,716,216 (2020: 4,716216) ordinary shares representing 24.99% (2020: 24.99%) shareholding
as of the reporting date.

20.2 Voting rights, Board selection, right of first refusal and block voting are in proportion to the shareholding.

21. LONG-TERM FINANCING - secured

Term loan 21.1 140,625,000 253,125,000

Temporary Economic Refinance Facility (TERF) 21.2 95,993,824 –

236,618,824 253,125,000

Current portion (128,206,095) (112,500,000)

108,412,729 140,625,000

21.1 Represents utilized portion of term loan obtained from a conventional bank amounting to Rs. 500 million (2020: Rs. 500 million).
The facility carries a mark-up at the rate of three months' KIBOR plus 0.35% (2020: three months' KIBOR plus 0.35%) per
annum. This is repayable latest by August 2022 in sixteen equal quarterly installments which commenced from November 2018
and is secured against equitable mortgage and hypothecation of the Company's operating fixed assets.

21.2 Represents utilized portion of facility obtained from a conventional bank for import of plant and machinery under State Bank
of Pakistan (SBP) scheme of TERF amounting to Rs. 150 million (2020: Nil). The facility carries mark-up at the rate of 1% base
plus 0.75% spread (2020: Nil) per annum.The SBP allowed rate as per the scheme is up to 5% per annum. However, the effective
interest rate is calculated as 7.64% per annum and the loan has been recognised at the present value. The loan is repayable
in sixteen equal quarterly installments commencing from February 2022 discounted at the effective rate of interest. The differential
mark-up has been recognised as deferred income (as mentioned in note 22) which will be recognized as income over the period
of the facility. The financing is secured against equitable mortgage and hypothecation of the Company's operating fixed assets.

30 June
2021

30 June
2020

(Rupees)
Note

22 DEFERRED INCOME
30 June

2021
30 June

2020
(Rupees)

Note

Balance at the beginning of the year –    –

Recognized 18,127,228 –

Amortized 32 (3,264,690) –

Balance at the end of the year 22.1 14,862,538 –

Current portion (5,492,726) –

9,369,812 –

22.1 As aforementioned in note 21.2, the purpose of the deferred income is to facilitate the Company by letting it to borrow funds
for new or BMR of the existing project at below-market interest rate, in light of the Covid-19 pandemic. The deferred income is
conditional upon the Company importing plant and machinery either for new or BMR of existing projects.
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23 LEASE LIABILITIES

The Company has entered into various lease agreements with an Islamic financial institution in respect of vehicles. The lease
arrangements carry mark-up at the rate of KIBOR plus 2.75% (2020: KIBOR plus 2.75%). Rentals are payable in equal monthly
installments whereas repairs and insurance costs are borne by the Company. These are secured against promissory notes.

The Company also has lease contract for the city office having lease term of 5 years. In general, the Company is restricted from
assigning and subleasing the leased assets. These lease contracts include extension and termination options subject to the
mutual consent of the Company and the lessor. The Company is bound by certain covenants which includes but are not limited
to payment of certain taxes and to exercise reasonable care.

30 June
2021

30 June
2020

(Rupees)
Note

Lease liabilities 10,766,672 12,625,558

Current portion (5,051,544) (7,473,667)

23.1 5,715,128 5,151,891

Balance at the beginning
of the year 10,794,762 1,830,796 12,625,558 8,914,327 –    8,914,327

Impact of initial implication
of IFRS-16 –    –    –    –    3,564,125 3,564,125

Additions –    9,063,728 9,063,728 6,300,000 –    6,300,000

Accretion of interest 901,124 608,463 1,509,587 1,862,327 365,837 2,228,164

Payments (8,519,647) (3,912,554) (12,432,201) (6,281,892) (2,099,166) (8,381,058)

Balance at the end of the year 3,176,239 7,590,433 10,766,672 10,794,762 1,830,796 12,625,558

Current portion (2,983,932) (2,067,612) (5,051,544) (5,642,871) (1,830,796) (7,473,667)

192,307 5,522,821 5,715,128 5,151,891 –    5,151,891

23.2 The amount of future minimum lease payments, together with the present value of the minimum lease payments, and
the periods during which they fall due are as follows:

23.1 Movement in lease liabilities is as follows:

Vehicles Total

(Rupees)

City office Total Vehicles City office

30 June 2021 30 June 2020

30 June 2021

Within one year 5,857,355 5,051,544 8,628,160 7,473,667

Later than one year and not
later than five years 6,443,776 5,715,128 5,540,992 5,151,891

Total lease payments 12,301,131 10,766,672 14,169,152 12,625,558

Less: Financial charges
allocated to future periods (1,534,459) –    (1,543,594) –

Present value of lease payments 10,766,672 10,766,672 12,625,558 12,625,558

Less: Current portion (5,051,544) (5,051,544) (7,473,667) (7,473,667)

5,715,128 5,715,128 5,151,891 5,151,891

30 June 2020

(Rupees)
Lease payments

Present value of
lease payments Lease payments

Present value of
lease payments

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021



42 DYNEA PAKISTAN LIMITEDANNUAL REPORT 2021

24 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Creditors 8,021,692 6,332,423

Bills payable 244,787,040 176,685,162

Accrued liabilities 24.1 & 24.2  292,729,584 225,304,214

Contract liabilities 24.3 6,476,921 5,411,187

Workers' Welfare Fund 24.4 35,175,878 10,459,507

Workers' Profit Participation Fund (WPPF) 18.1 249,177 –

Vend and permit fee payable 24.5 4,552,438 4,552,438

Tax deducted at source 1,691,830 708,934

Sales tax payable - net 62,010,671 55,737,138

655,695,231 485,191,003

24.1 Includes accrual for leave encashment of Rs. 6.09 million (2020: Rs. 16.84 million) and bonus to employees of Rs. 25.59 million
(2020: Rs. 10.22 million).

24.2 Includes an amount of Rs. 111.73 million (2020: Rs. 89.73 million) in respect of Sindh Infrastructure Development Cess.

24.3 These contract liabilities are unsecured and received under normal course of business. Revenue recognized during the year
from amounts included in contract liabilities at the beginning of the year amounts to Rs. 5.41 million. (2020: Rs. 4.56 million).

30 June
2021

30 June
2020

(Rupees)
Note

24.4 Movement in Workers' Welfare Fund is as follows:

Balance at the beginning of the year 10,459,507 7,773,010

Charge 34 24,716,371 10,459,507

Payments –    (7,773,010)

Balance at the end of the year 35,175,878 10,459,507

30 June
2021

30 June
2020

(Rupees)
Note

24.5 Represents amount charged to certain customers in respect of vend and permit fee. Depending on the outcome of the law suit
mentioned in note 27.1.1 to these financial statements, the amount would either be paid to the Excise and Taxation Department,
Government of Sindh or refunded to the customers. The Company discontinued this practice of charging the fee from July 2002
in accordance with the industrial norms.

25 SHORT-TERM RUNNING FINANCE - secured

Represents running finance facilities obtained from various conventional banks amounting to Rs. 750 million (2020: Rs. 750
million). These facilities are secured by joint / first pari passu hypothecation of stores and spares, stock-in-trade and trade debts
of the Company. The rate of mark-up on these facilities ranges from one month KIBOR to six months' KIBOR as bench mark
rate plus 0.50% to 0.75% as spread (2020: one month KIBOR to six months' KIBOR as bench mark rate plus 0.50% to 0.75%
as spread) per annum and mark-up is payable quarterly. The facilities remained unutilized as at the reporting date.

26 UNCLAIMED DIVIDEND

The Company has opened separate bank accounts as required under the provision of section 244 of the Act and the required
amounts have been transferred accordingly.
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27 CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

27.1 Contingencies

27.1.1The Excise and Taxation Department, Government of Sindh (the Department) imposed, vend and permit fee on methanol, a
major raw material used by the Company in the production of formaldehyde. The Company filed a petition against the imposition
of these levies in the Honourable High Court of Sindh (HCS) in August 1996. In June 2001, the Honourable HCS decided the
case in the favour of the Company. However, the Department filed an appeal in the Honourable Supreme Court of Pakistan
(SCP) against the above judgement. The Honourable SCP suspended the decision of the Honourable HCS and reverted the
case back to the Honourable HCS for fresh hearing. In March 2003, the Honourable HCS once again decided the case in favour
of the Company. The Department once again filed an appeal before the Honourable SCP.

In December 2019, the Honourable SCP disposed off the appeal on the basis that the Department would not press the instant
and connected appeals, and that a fresh demand shall be raised following the notification dated 14 February 2002 and Sindh
(Amendment) Abkari Ordinance 2002 notified on 30 October 2002. In addition to that the Department would surrender the
demand secured by Indemnity Bonds for the period from 1990 up to 2002.

As of the reporting date, no fresh demand has yet been received from the Department against Vend and Permit fee amounting
to Rs. 1,415.62 million (2020: Rs. 1,257.84 million) determined on the basis of consumption of methanol by the Company since
November 2002.

The consignment is being released by paying Rs. 3 cash per bulk gallon and issuing indemnity bond of Rs. 14 per bulk gallon
under protest.

Upon the receipt of the fresh demand from the Department, the Company intends to approach the relevant Court of Justice to
defend the case. The Company expects, based on the view of the legal advisor and the merit of the case, that the Company
has strong grounds to challenge such a demand and its challenge is likely to succeed. Accordingly, no provision for any liability
has been made in these financial statements.

27.2 Commitments

27.2.1 Outstanding bank guarantees 23,883,947 23,883,947

27.2.2 Outstanding letter of credits 504,307,016 158,235,932

27.2.3 Commitment for capital expenditure 7,956,652 9,400,000

28 TURNOVER - net

Local sales 8,132,291,384 5,349,425,515

Sales tax (1,292,165,942) (847,868,597)

Sales return (11,752,285) (8,159,284)

Trade discount (1,169,614) (942,958)

(1,305,087,841) (856,970,839)

28.1  6,827,203,543 4,492,454,676

28.1 Revenue earned from the normal operations of the Company is Shariah Compliant.

30 June
2021

30 June
2020

(Rupees)
Note
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Raw and packing material consumed

Balance at the beginning of the year 480,136,922 469,201,963
Purchases 4,673,172,720 2,987,396,639

5,153,309,642 3,456,598,602
Balance at the end of the year (742,956,158) (480,136,922)

4,410,353,484 2,976,461,680

Manufacturing expenses

Indirect material consumed 10,347,122 6,492,787
Stores and spares consumed 89,429,850 57,057,046
Fuel and power 238,546,628 178,730,111
Salaries, wages and other benefits 327,819,416 262,494,239
Rates and taxes 671,255 1,212,885
Insurance 2,536,500 2,449,797
Repairs and maintenance 23,450,743 9,310,113
Vehicles running and maintenance 10,374,253 8,066,796
Ijarah rentals –    1,260,543
Postage, telephone and telex 2,122,707 1,775,571
Storage and handling charges 22,886,262 18,837,908
Travelling and conveyance 888,306 445,890
Printing and stationery 2,015,652 1,041,393
Depreciation on operating fixed assets 9.3 97,335,144 113,887,341
Depreciation on right-of-use assets 9.5.1 1,853,047 1,765,047
Internet charges 1,467,132 1,338,093
Water and conservancy cost 3,027,842 2,865,021
Gas expense 959,334 1,181,314
Others 16,184,440 10,831,570

851,915,633 681,043,465
Cost of goods manufactured 5,262,269,117 3,657,505,145

Finished goods

Balance at the beginning of the year 14 39,991,977 91,599,125
Balance at the end of the year 14 (110,940,895) (39,991,977)

(70,948,918) 51,607,148
5,191,320,199 3,709,112,293

30 DISTRIBUTION COSTS

Salaries and other benefits 23,313,607 21,142,042
Cartage and freight 160,303,389 108,400,766
Rent, rates and taxes 30.1 677,088 587,512
Insurance 1,841,885 2,502,437
Repairs and maintenance 784,472 173,206
Vehicles running and maintenance 3,099,739 2,091,672
Postage, telephone and telex 1,440,583 1,472,363
Travelling and conveyance 1,534,664 2,067,185
Printing and stationery 111,647 96,459
Electricity 459,250 602,013
Depreciation on operating fixed assets 9.3 1,442,280 532,355
Depreciation on right-of-use assets 9.5.1 1,507,895 1,233,730
Sales promotion 356,500 335,000
Others 791,123 614,515

197,664,122 141,851,255

30.1 Includes short-term lease expense amounting to Rs. 0.468 million (2020: Rs. 0.442 million).

29 COST OF SALES

30 June
2021

30 June
2020

(Rupees)
Note
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Salaries and other benefits 81,177,877 63,321,461
Insurance 386,880 310,084
Repairs and maintenance 6,074,571 2,909,652
Vehicles running and maintenance 6,633,309 4,187,865
Postage, telephone and telex 1,676,030 1,446,600
Travelling and conveyance 3,023,374 4,253,846
Printing and stationery 1,216,061 770,758
Utilities 841,010 1,200,000
Depreciation on operating fixed assets 9.3 5,139,339 4,760,824
Depreciation on right-of-use assets 9.5.1 2,722,100 1,677,905
Amortisation –    536
Legal and professional charges 5,122,680 7,274,154
Advertisement and publicity 311,470 84,608
Donations 31.1 13,288,393 3,586,500
Auditor's remuneration 31.2 2,115,937 2,107,666
ISO certification fee 881,400 199,526
Others 3,803,979 3,368,658

134,414,410 101,460,643

31.1 Includes donations made to Mohamed Ali Habib Welfare Trust, Indus Hospital, Sindh Institute of Urology & Transplantation,
Habib Education Trust and Pateints Aid Foundation. None of the directors of the Company or their spouses had any interest in
any of the donees.

31 ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

30 June
2021

30 June
2020

(Rupees)
Note

Statutory audit 1,242,000 1,080,000
Half yearly review 146,000 127,000
Review of Code of Corporate Governance 66,000 57,500
Other certifications 446,656 380,575
Out of pocket and sales tax expense 215,281 462,591

2,115,937 2,107,666

32 OTHER INCOME

Income from financial assets

Profit / interest on savings accounts 32.1 16,960,589 3,518,682
Interest on deposit account 1,775,605 1,996,166

18,736,194 5,514,848

Income from non-financial assets

Scrap sales 386,542 333,333
Insurance claims 1,146,750 –
Gain on disposals of operating fixed assets 2,881,003 2,961,201
Deferred income amortised 22  3,264,690 –
Exchange gain - net 7,532,377 –

15,211,362 3,294,534

33,947,556 8,809,382

32.1 Includes an amount of Rs. 0.606 million (2020: Rs. 0.994 million) earned from an Islamic bank.

31.2 Auditor's remuneration

30 June
2021

30 June
2020

(Rupees)
Note
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Mark-up on long-term financing 19,796,842 42,238,634
Mark-up on short-term running finance 428,031 11,022,454
Interest on Worker's Profit Participation Fund 18.1 –    26,322
Accretion of interest on lease liabilities 32.1 1,509,587 2,228,164

21,734,460 55,515,574

Bank guarantees commission 1,417,313 1,123,544
Bank charges 2,192,098 1,381,691

25,343,871 58,020,809

33.1 Includes an amount of Rs. 0.90 million (2020: Rs. 0.44 million) in respect of lease from an Islamic financial institution.

33 FINANCE COSTS

30 June
2021

30 June
2020

(Rupees)
Note

Workers' Profit Participation Fund 18.1 70,249,177 19,427,551
Workers' Welfare Fund 24.4 24,716,371 10,459,507
Exchange loss - net –    6,676,725

94,965,548 36,563,783

35 TAXATION

Current 347,366,184 147,589,506
Prior 799,646 3,171,470
Deferred 41,979,798 (45,446,341)

35.1 390,145,628 105,314,635

35.1 Relationship between accounting profit and tax expense

Profit before taxation 1,328,754,188 358,663,983

Tax @ 29% (2020: 29%) 385,338,715 104,012,555
Effects of previous year's tax charge 799,646 3,171,470
Deferred 41,979,798 (45,446,341)
Tax rebates (3,853,634) (1,040,085)
Expenses that are admissible in determining taxable profit (34,118,897) 44,617,036

Tax expense 390,145,628 105,314,635

Effective tax rate 29.36% 29.36%

36 BASIC AND DILUTED EARNINGS PER SHARE

Net profit for the year 938,608,560 253,349,348

Weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue during the year 18,872,413 18,872,413

Basic earnings per share 36.1 49.73 13.42

36.1 There is no dilutive effect on basic earning per share of the Company as calculated above.

34 OTHER CHARGES

30 June
2021

30 June
2020

(Rupees)
Note

(No. of shares)

(Rupees)
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37 OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Company is organized into business units based on their products and has two reportable
operating segments as follows:

-  The resin division produces urea / melamine formaldehyde and formaldehyde; and
-  The moulding compound division produces urea / melamine formaldehyde moulding compound and melamine glazing powder.

Resin
division Total

(Rupees)

Moulding
compound

division Total
Resin

division

Moulding
compound

division

30 June 2021 30 June 2020

Turnover - net 2,670,723,828 4,156,479,715 6,827,203,543 1,920,910,662 2,571,544,014 4,492,454,676

Segment result 453,023,277 1,132,655,426 1,585,678,703 136,300,281 443,050,043 579,350,324

Unallocated expenses:

Administrative expenses (134,414,410) (101,460,643)
Distribution costs (37,360,733) (33,450,488)
Other income 30,682,866 8,809,382
Finance costs (20,866,690) (58,020,809)
Other charges (94,965,548) (36,563,783)
Taxation (390,145,628) (105,314,635)

Net profit for the year 938,608,560 253,349,348

Segment assets 1,034,117,303 1,756,170,104 2,790,287,407 822,720,134 1,062,033,016 1,884,753,150
Unallocated assets 617,302,630 461,126,790

Total assets 3,407,590,037 2,345,879,940

Segment liabilities 277,818,840 375,109,906 652,928,745 310,286,062 273,960,341 584,246,403
Unallocated liabilities 372,700,431 176,737,761

Total liabilities 1,025,629,176 760,984,164

Capital expenditure 10,891,101 302,398,485 313,289,586 7,589,134 29,778,194 37,367,328
Unallocated capital expenditure 16,586,701 1,070,500

Total capital expenditure 329,876,287 38,437,828

Depreciation and
amortisation 37,741,014 61,447,923 99,188,937 53,653,711 61,998,678 115,652,389

Unallocated depreciation
and amortisation 10,810,868 8,205,350

Total depreciation and
amortisation 109,999,805 123,857,738

37.1 Administrative expenses, distribution costs (excluding cartage and freight), other income, finance costs, other charges and
taxation is managed on Company basis and are not allocated to operating segments.

37.2 Total sales of the Company were made to customers in Pakistan during the year ended 30 June 2021 and 2020. There were
no sales amongst operating segments of the Company.

37.3 There were no major customers of the Company which constituted 10% or more of the Company's revenue.

37.4 Segment assets and liabilities

Segment assets include all operating assets by a segment and consist principally of property, plant and equipment, stock-in-trade
and trade debts. Segment liabilities include all operating liabilities and consist principally of trade and other payables.
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Segment assets
Allocated segment assets 2,790,287,407 1,884,753,150
Long-term deposits 7,195,126 6,673,726
Deferred taxation 15,613,048 57,592,846
Cash and bank balances 499,303,600 323,719,436
Other unallocated assets 95,190,856 73,140,782

3,407,590,037 2,345,879,940

Segment liabilities
Allocated segment liabilities 652,928,745 584,246,403
Trade and other payables 265,014,520 166,695,158
Accrued mark-up 1,583,071 4,592,715
Taxation - net 99,619,553 –
Unclaimed dividend 6,483,287 5,449,888

1,025,629,176 760,984,164

37.4.2 All non-current assets of the Company at the end of the current and preceding year were located in Pakistan.

37.4.1 Reconciliation of segment assets and liabilities to total assets and liabilities

30 June
2021

30 June
2020

(Rupees)

38.1 Financial assets and financial liabilities

Financial assets

Debts instruments at amortised cost
Long-term loans 10 112,376 150,595
Long-term deposits 11 7,195,126 6,673,726
Trade debts 15 993,363,633 788,497,315
Loans 16 3,310,622 2,150,450
Trade deposits 17 3,462,309 400,051
Accrued markup 1,008,648 479,773
Cash and bank balances 19 499,303,600 323,719,436

1,507,756,314 1,122,071,346

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities at amortised cost
Long-term financing 21 236,618,824 253,125,000
Lease liabilities 23 10,766,672 12,625,558
Trade and other payables 556,567,675 418,285,424
Accrued mark-up 1,583,071 4,592,715
Short-term running finance 25 –    –
Unclaimed dividend 26 6,483,287 5,449,888

812,019,529 694,078,585

38 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

30 June
2021

30 June
2020

(Rupees)
Note

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021



49DYNEA PAKISTAN LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2021

The Company's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks i.e. market risk (including currency risk, interest rate risk and
other price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company's overall risk management programme focuses on minimizing potential
adverse effects on the Company's financial performance. The overall risk management of the Company is carried out by the
Company's senior management team under policies approved by the Board of Directors. Such policies entail identifying, evaluating
and addressing financial risks of the Company. The Company's overall risk management procedures to minimize the potential
adverse affects of financial market on the Company's performance are as follows:

38.2 Market risk

Market risk is the risk that fair value or future cash flows will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market prices
comprise three types of risk: interest rate risk, currency risk and other price risk, such as equity risk.

(i) Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the value of financial instrument will fluctuate due to the changes in market interest rates.
The Company is exposed to interest rate risk in respect of long-term financing and short-term running finance. Management
of the Company estimates that 10% increase / decrease in the market interest rate, with all other factors remaining constant,
would decrease / increase the Company’s profit after tax by Rs. 23.66 million (2020: Rs. 25.31 million). However, in practice,
the actual result may differ from the sensitivity analysis.

(ii) Foreign currency risk
Foreign currency risk is the risk that the value of a financial asset or a liability will fluctuate due to a change in foreign
exchange rates. As of the reporting date, this risk primarily relates to payables in foreign currency.

The Company is exposed to foreign currency risk amounting to Rs. 244.7 million (2020: Rs. 176.7 million) in relation to
foreign currency financial liabilities. Management of the Company estimates that 5% increase / decrease in exchange rate,
with all other factors remaining constant, would decrease / increase the Company’s profit before tax by Rs. 12.2 million
(2020: Rs. 8.8 million). However, in practice, the actual result may differ from sensitivity analysis.

(iii) Equity price risk
Equity price risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of financial instruments will fluctuate because of changes
in market prices (other than those arising from interest rate risk or currency risk), whether those changes are caused by
factors specific to the individual financial instrument or its issuer, or factors affecting all similar financial instruments traded
in the market. As of the reporting date, the Company is not exposed to any equity price risk.

38.3 Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will fail to discharge an obligation and cause the other party to incur
a financial loss without taking into account the fair value of any collateral. Concentration of credit risk arises when a number of
counter parties are engaged in similar business activities or have similar economic features that would cause their ability to
meet contractual obligations to be similarly affected by changes in economical, political or other conditions. Concentrations of
credit risk indicate the relative sensitivity of the Company's performance to developments affecting a particular industry.

Credit risk of the Company arises principally from the loans, deposits, trade debts, accrued markup and bank balances. The
carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure. To reduce the exposure to credit risk on trade
debts, the Company has developed a formal approval process, whereby credit limits are applied to its customers. The management
continuously monitors the credit exposure towards the customers and makes provision against those balances considered
doubtful of recovery. The credit risk on liquid funds such as balances with banks is limited because the counter parties are banks
with reasonably high credit ratings.

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is as follows:

Long-term loans 10 112,376 150,595
Long-term deposits 11 7,195,126 6,673,726
Trade debts 15 993,363,633 788,497,315
Loans 16 3,310,622 2,150,450
Trade deposits 17 3,462,309 400,051
Accrued mark-up 1,008,648 479,773
Bank balances 19 499,303,600 323,719,436

1,507,756,314 1,122,071,346

30 June
2021

30 June
2020

(Rupees)
Note
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Loans, deposits and accrued mark-up as mentioned above are neither past due nor impaired.

The impaired trade debts and the basis of impairment are disclosed in notes 15.1 and 8.15 respectively.

Set out below is the information about the credit risk exposure on the Company's trade debts from its customers.

30 June 2021

Trade Debts (in Rupees)

Days Past Due

Current 0-30 30-60 60-90 90-120 >120 Total

Expected Credit Loss rate 0.27% 25.00% 50.00% 50.00% 100.00% 100.00% 

Estimated total
gross carrying
amount at default 931,910,749 56,131,275 40,105,774 3,583,422 1,454,024 18,065,750 1,051,250,994

Expected Credit Loss (2,490,170) (14,032,819) (20,052,887) (1,791,711) (1,454,024) (18,065,750) (57,887,361)

Amount past due
but not impaired 929,420,579 42,098,456 20,052,887 1,791,711 –    –    993,363,633

Current 0-30 30-60 60-90 90-120 >120 Total

Expected Credit Loss rate 1.71% 17.89% 36.63% 57.38% 86.74% 90.39% 

Estimated total
gross carrying
amount at default 585,641,648 126,152,139 121,771,891 56,445,654 3,667,349 78,981,591 972,660,272

Expected Credit Loss (10,029,319) (22,564,865) (44,605,519) (32,388,820) (3,180,955) (71,393,479) (184,162,957)

Amount past due
but not impaired 575,612,329 103,587,274 77,166,372 24,056,834 486,394 7,588,112 788,497,315

Bank balances

Rating
A1+ 499,303,600 323,719,436

Financial assets other than trade debts and bank balances are not exposed to any material credit risk.

30 June
2021

30 June
2020

(Rupees)

30 June 2020

Trade Debts (in Rupees)

Days Past Due
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(Rupees)

Less than 3
months

3 to 12
months

1 to 5
years Total

30 June 2021

Long-term financing 28,609,997  99,596,098  108,412,729  236,618,824
Lease Laibilities 1,073,977  3,977,567  5,715,128  10,766,672
Trade and other payables 552,015,237  4,552,438  –      556,567,675
Accrued mark-up 1,583,071  –      –      1,583,071
Short-term running finance  –      –      –      –
Unclaimed dividend 6,483,287  –      –      6,483,287

 589,765,569  108,126,103  114,127,857  812,019,529

30 June 2020

Long-term financing 28,125,000  84,375,000  140,625,000  253,125,000
Lease Laibilities 2,237,054  5,236,613  5,151,891  12,625,558
Trade and other payables 413,732,986  4,552,438  –      418,285,424
Accrued mark-up 4,592,715  –      –      4,592,715
Short-term running finance  –      –      –      –
Unclaimed dividend 5,449,888  –      –      5,449,888

 454,137,643  94,164,051  145,776,891  694,078,585

38.4 Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will be unable to meet its funding requirements. To guard against the risk, the
Company has diversified funding sources and assets are managed with liquidity in mind. The maturity profile is monitored
to ensure that adequate liquidity is maintained:

39 FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction in the principal
(or most advantageous) market at the measurement date under current market conditions (i.e. an exit price) regardless of
whether that price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation technique. As of the reporting date, the carrying
value of all financial assets and liabilities reflected in the financial statements approximate to their fair values.

40 CHANGES IN LIABILITIES ARISING FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Balance at the beginning of the year 253,125,000  5,449,888  12,625,558

Changes from financing cash flows

Long-term financing - net (1,643,638)  –      –

Lease rentals paid –      –      (10,922,614)

Dividend paid  –      (140,510,076)  –

 (1,643,638)  (140,510,076)  (10,922,614)

Other changes

Deferred income recognized (18,127,228)  –      –

Finance costs 3,264,690  –      –

New leases  –      –      9,063,728

Dividend declared  –      141,543,475  –

Balance at the end of the year 236,618,824  6,483,287  10,766,672

(Rupees)

Long-term
financing

Un-claimed
dividend

Leases
liabilities

30 June 2021
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Balance at the beginning of the year 365,625,000  5,259,703  8,914,327

Changes from financing cash flows

Long-term financing - net (112,500,000)  -    -

Lease rentals paid  -    -    (6,152,894)

Dividend paid  -    (46,991,157)  -

(112,500,000)  (46,991,157)  (6,152,894)

Other changes

New leases  -    -    9,864,125

Dividend declared  -    47,181,342  -

Balance at the end of the year  253,125,000  5,449,888 12,625,558

(Rupees)

Long-term
financing

Un-claimed
dividend

Leases
liabilities

30 June 2020

41 CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT
The Company’s objective when managing capital is to safeguard the Company’s ability to remain as a going concern and
continue to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to
reduce the cost of capital. The Company is currently financing its operations through long-term financing and short-term running
finance in addition to its equity.

The gearing ratio is as follows:
30 June

2021
30 June

2020

(Rupees)

Note

Long-term financing 21  236,618,824  253,125,000

Accrued mark-up 1,583,071 4,592,715

Short-term running finance 25  –      –

Total debt 238,201,895 257,717,715

Issued, subscribed and paid-up capital 20  94,362,065 94,362,065

Revenue reserves 2,287,598,796 1,490,533,711

Equity 2,381,960,861 1,584,895,776

Total debt plus equity 2,620,162,756 1,842,613,491

Gearing ratio 9.09% 13.99%

42 TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES
Related parties of the Company comprise associated companies, employee retirement benefits fund, directors and key
management personnel. All the transactions with related parties are entered into at agreed terms in the normal course of
business as approved by the Board of Directors of the Company. Tranactions with related parties are as follows:

Provident Fund Retirement  Nil Contribution  10,498,631 9,564,275
benefits fund to fund

AICA Asia Pacific Holding Pte Ltd. Associate 24.99 Dividend paid  35,371,620 11,790,540

(Rupees)

30 June
2020Relationship

% of
shareholding

in the
Company

Nature of
transaction

30 June
2021Name of related party

42.1 Key management personnel are those persons having authority and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the
activities of the entity directly or indirectly. The Company considers all members of their executive management team, including
the chief executive and directors, to be key management personnel.
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43 REMUNERATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE, DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVES
The aggregate amount charged in the financial statements for remuneration including certain benefits to the chief executive,
directors and executives of the Company are as follows:

43.1 In addition, the chief executive and certain executives are provided with free use of Company's maintained cars as per terms
of employment.

43.2 Directors' fee to non executive directors for attending the board meetings amounted to Rs. 9.49 million (2020: Rs. 8.16 million).

43.3 No remuneration was paid to any of the directors other than the chief executive.

44 CAPACITY AND PRODUCTION

Managerial remuneration 13,085,185  -    24,129,486  11,065,892  -    21,572,002

Bonus 3,547,473  -    2,978,999  1,559,888  -    1,230,324

Retirement and other benefits 4,165,750  -    8,079,550  1,986,244  -    3,536,921

House rent 4,598,054  -    8,497,240  3,929,808  -    7,650,286

 25,396,462  -    43,685,275  18,541,832  -    33,989,533

Number of persons 1 6 9 1 6 9

Chief
Exective Exectives

(Rupees)

Directors Exectives
Chief

Exective Directors

2021 2020

Resin division

Urea / Melamine formaldehyde 77,000 40,068 77,000 30,990

Formaldehyde 109,000 86,793 109,000 57,474

186,000 126,861 186,000 88,464

Moulding compound division

Urea / melamine formaldehyde moulding compound 33,000 29,327 18,000 18,718

Melamine Glazing Powder 2,000 1,870 2,000 1,153

35,000 31,197 20,000 19,871

(M. tonnes)

Rated
Capacity

Actual
Production

Rated
Capacity

Actual
Production

30 June
2020

30 June
2021

44.1 Capacity utilization is in line with market demand during the year.

45 NON-ADJUSTING EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING DATE

The Board of Directors in its meeting held on 03 September, 2021 proposed final cash dividend of Rs. 5/- per share for the
year ended 30 June 2021 amounting to Rs. 94.362 million for approval of the members at the Annual General Meeting to
be held on 21 October, 2021.

The directors have also approved appropriation of Rs. 500 million (2020: Rs. 200 million) to general reserve. These appropriations
will be approved in the forthcoming Annual General Meeting. The financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2021
do not include the effect of these appropriations which will be accounted in the financial statements for the year ending
30 June 2022. 

46 PROVIDENT FUND

Investments out of provident fund have been made in accordance with the provisions of Section 218 of the Companies Act,
2017 and the rules formulated for this purpose.
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47 NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES

Total number of employees as at the reporting date 228 218

Average number of employees during the year 221 217

48 GENERAL

48.1 Figures have been rounded off to the nearest Pak Rupee.

49 RECLASSIFICATION

49.1 Certain prior year figures have been reclassified for better presentation, however there are no material reclassifications
to report.

50 DATE OF AUTHORISATION FOR ISSUE

These financial statements were authorised for issue on 03 September, 2021 by the Board of Directors of the Company.

30 June
2021

30 June
2020
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Director

SHABBIR ABBAS
Chief Executive Officer

SHAKEEL UDDIN
Chief Financial Officer
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PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING 
AS AT JUNE 30, 2021

1 INDIVIDUALS 1,440 4,759,273 25.22

2 INVESTMENT COMPANIES  1 2,200 0.01

3 JOINT STOCK COMPANIES  11 1,420,959 7.53

4 DIRECTORS, CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER AND
THEIR SPOUSE AND MINOR CHILDREN  5 5,000 0.03

Anam Fatima Khan  1,000
Shabbir Abbas  1,000
Andalib Alavi  1,000
Mohammed Ameen Bandukda  1,000
Murtaza Lalan  1,000

5 EXECUTIVES  –   –   –

6 ASSOCIATED COMPANIES, UNDERTAKINGS
AND RELATED PARTIES 1  4,716,216 24.99

AICA Asia Pacific Holding Pte Ltd

7 PUBLIC SECTOR COMPANIES AND CORPORATIONS  –   –   –

8 BANKS, DFI'S , NBFIS, INSURANCE COMPANIES,
TAKAFUL, MODARABAS AND PENSION FUNDS 13  290,143 1.54

Financial Institutions  2,597
Insurance Companies  62,000
Modaraba  616
Pension Funds  224,930

9 MUTUAL FUNDS 14  2,602,810  13.79

CDC - Trustee Meezan Balanced Fund  25,000
CDC - Trustee Al Meezan Mutual Fund  119,500 
CDC - Trustee Meezan Islamic Fund  293,000 
CDC - Trustee NBP Stock Fund  19,000 
CDC - Trustee Meezan Tahaffuz Pension Fund-Equity Sub Fund  120,500 
CDC - Trustee NBP Islamic Sarmaya Izafa Fund  2,500 
CDC - Trustee First Habib Stock Fund  5,000 
CDC - Trustee UBL Retirement Savings Fund-Equity Sub Fund  13,100 
CDC - Trustee National Investment (Unit) Trust  1,647,310 
CDC - Trustee NBP Islamic Stock Fund  4,200 
CDC - Trustee Meezan Asset Allocation Fund  80,900 
CDC - Trustee Meezan Dedicated Equity Fund  20,000 
CDC - Trustee UBL Dedicated Equity Fund  2,800 
CDC - Trustee Golden Arrow Stock Fund  250,000 

10 FOREIGN INVESTORS 18  4,859,399  25.75

11 CO-OPERATIVE SOCITIES 2  3,701  0.02

12 CHARITABLE TRUST 1  99,137  0.53

13 OTHERS 18  113,575  0.60

TOTAL  1,524  18,872,413  100.00

NO. CATEGORIES OF SHAREHOLDERS NO. OF
SHARES HELD

CATEGORY-WISE NO.
OF FOLIOS / CDC

ACCOUNTS

CATEGORY-WISE
SHARES HELD

PERCENTAGE
(%)

Detail of trading in the shares by the Directors, Executive and their spouses and minor children:
None of the Directors, Executives and their spouses and minor children has traded in the shares of the Company during the year of the company

AICA Asia Pacific Holding Pte Ltd. FALL IN CAT.# 6  4,716,216 24.99
CDC - Trustee National Investment (Unit) Trust FALL IN CAT.# 9  1,647,310 8.73
Aylesbury International Ltd. FALL IN CAT.# 10 1,548,715 8.21
Robert Finance Corporation AG FALL IN CAT.# 10 1,105,169 5.86
TOTAL 9,017,410 47.78

SHAREHOLDERS HOLDING FIVE PERCENT OR MORE VOTING INTEREST IN THE LISTED COMPANY

TOTAL PAID-UP CAPITAL OF THE COMPANY 18,872,413 SHARES
5% OF THE PAID-UP CAPITAL OF THE COMPANY 943,621 SHARES

NO. OF SHARES
HELD

PERCENTAGE
(%)

DESCRIPTIONNAME(S) OF SHARE-HOLDER(S)
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PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING  
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NO. OF
SHAREHOLDERS

FROM TO
TOTAL SHARES HELD

SIZE OF HOLDING

 570 1 100  16,937

 382 101 500  111,929

 174 501 1000  143,314

 252 1001 5000  600,595

 51 5001 10000  379,992

 18 10001 15000  231,768

 14 15001 20000  259,833

 10 20001 25000  234,996

 3 25001 30000  78,500

 1 30001 35000  31,600

 2 35001 40000  78,751

 2 40001 45000  87,000

 4 45001 50000  188,486

 2 55001 60000  118,343

 3 60001 65000  183,538

 1 65001 70000  67,855

 1 70001 75000  75,000

 3 75001 80000  230,296

 1 80001 85000  80,900

 4 95001 100000  399,137

 1 105001 110000  110,000

 1 110001 115000  113,500

 1 115001 120000  119,500

 2 120001 125000  243,500

 1 135001 140000  135,311

 1 155001 160000  159,300

 2 160001 165000  325,304

 1 165001 170000  170,000

 1 195001 200000  200,000

 2 245001 250000  500,000

 1 290001 295000  293,000

 1 320001 325000  322,000

 4 385001 390000  1,547,832

 1 395001 400000  400,000

 1 795001 800000  800,000

 1 815001 820000  816,986

 1 1105001 1110000  1,105,169

 1 1545001 1550000  1,548,715

 1 1645001 1650000  1,647,310

 1 4715001 4720000  4,716,216 

 1,524  18,872,413



NOTICE is hereby given that the Thirty Ninth (39th) Annual General Meeting of the Members of the Company
will be held on Thursday, October 21, 2021 at 01:00 pm electronically through video-link arrangement to transact
the following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Accounts of the Company for the year ended June 30, 2021
together with the Chairman’s Review Report and Reports of the Directors’ and Auditors’ thereon.

2. To approve final cash dividend for the year ended June 30, 2021 at Rs. 5/- per share i.e. 100%. This is in
addition to the interim cash dividend at Rs. 2.50/- per share i.e. 50% already paid during the year.

3. To appoint Auditors for the year 2021-2022 and to fix their remuneration. The present auditors - Messrs.
EY Ford Rhodes, Chartered Accountants, being eligible offer themselves for re-appointment.

SPECIAL BUSINESS:

4. Alteration in the Articles of Association of the Company

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification, a resolution as special resolution as
proposed amendments in the Articles of Association of the Company to align with the Companies Act 2017.

BY WAY OF SPECIAL RESOLUTION RESOLVED THAT necessary changes be made in the existing
articles of association of the Company primarily to align with the Companies Act 2017 be and is hereby
approved.

FURTHER RESOLVED THAT the Chief Executive Officer of the Company and the Company Secretary
of the Company, be and are hereby singly authorized to do all acts, deeds and take all necessary actions
to complete all legal formalities and file all documents as may be necessary to implement the aforementioned
resolution, as well as carry out any other act which may be ancillary and/or incidental to the above and
necessary to achieve the objective of the aforesaid resolution.”

5. Revision of Directors’ Fee for attending Board and / or Committee Meetings

By way of ordinary resolution revision of the amount of fees to be paid to the Non-Executive Directors of
the Company for attending the Board and / or Committees meetings and in that connection to pass the
following resolutions, with or without modification, addition or deletion:

RESOLVED AS AND BY WAY OF AN ORDINARY RESOLUTION THAT the fees of the non-executive
directors to be revised from Rs. 75,000/- to Rs. 100,000/- for attending the Board and / or Committee
meeting w.e.f. November 01, 2021.

A Statement under Section 134(3) of the Companies Act 2017 read together with SRO 423(I)/2018 dated 3 April
2018 in connection with the Special Business above is being sent to the shareholders along with this notice.

By Order of the Board

Karachi: Saqib Naim
September 03, 2021 Company Secretary
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Video conference link details and login credentials will be shared with those Shareholders whose emails
containing all the particulars are received atleast 48 hours before the time of the meeting. Shareholders
can also provide their comments and questions for the agenda items of the AGM on agm2021@dynea.com.pk
atleast 48 hours before the time of the meeting.

ii. Closure of Share Transfer Books

The Share Transfer Books of the Company will be closed from October 14, 2021 to October 21, 2021 (both
days inclusive) for the purpose of the Annual General Meeting and payment of the final dividend. Transfer
requests received by Share Registrar of the Company M/s FAMCO Associates (Private) Ltd, 8-F, Nursery,
Block 6 P.E.C.H.S., Shahra-e-Faisal, Karachi. Tel: 0092-21-34380101-5, 0092-21-34384621-3 (Ext-103)
Fax: 0092-21-34380106 at the close of business on October 13, 2021 will be treated in time for the purpose
of determining above entitlement to the transferees for payment of final dividend and to attend the Annual
General Meeting.

iii. Proxy

A member entitled to attend and vote at this General Meeting is entitled to appoint a Proxy to attend, speak
and vote in his place at the Meeting. Instrument appointing a proxy must be deposited at the Registered
Office of the Company at least 48 hours before the time of the meeting. In case of corporate entity, the
Board of Directors’ resolution / power of attorney with specimen signature of the nominee shall be provided
atleast 48 hours before the time of the meeting. The Form of Proxy in English and Urdu is attached in the
Annual Report and should be witnessed by two persons whose names, addresses and CNIC numbers
should be mentioned on the Forms. The Form of Proxy is also available on the Company’s website
(www.dynea.com.pk).

iv. Change of Address

The Shareholders are requested to promptly notify change in their address, if any, to the Company’s Share
Registrar.

v. Submission of Copies of Valid CNIC not Provided Earlier

Individual Shareholders are once again reminded to submit a copy of their valid CNIC, if not provided earlier
to the Company’s Share Registrar. In case of non-availability of a valid copy of the Shareholders’ CNIC in
the records of the Company, the Company shall withhold the Dividend under the provisions of Section 243
of the Companies Act 2017.

vi. Withholding Tax on Dividend

Currently, the deduction of withholding tax on the amount of dividend paid by the companies under Section
150 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001, are as under:

(a) For Persons appearing in Active Tax Payer List (ATL): 15%

(b) For Persons not appearing in Active Tax Payer List (ATL): 30%

NOTES

i. Participation in the AGM Proceeding via the Video Conference Facility

Participation in the AGM Proceeding via the Video Conference Facility due to current COVID-19 situation.
Shareholders interested to participate in the meeting are requested to share below information at
agm2021@dynea.com.pk for their appointment and proxy’s verification at least 48 hours before the time
of the meeting.

Email AddressS.No. Name of
Shareholder

CNIC No. Folio No. Cell No.
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Shareholders who have filed their return are advised to make sure that their names are entered into latest
Active Tax Payers List (ATL) provided on the website of FBR at the time of dividend payment, otherwise
they shall be treated as persons not appearing in ATL and tax on their cash dividend will be deducted at
the rate of 30% instead of 15%.

vii. Withholding tax on Dividend in Case of Joint Account Holders

In order to enable the Company to follow the directives of the regulators to determine shareholding ratio
of the Joint Account Holder(s) (where shareholding has not been determined by the Principal shareholder)
for deduction of withholding tax on dividend of the Company, shareholders are requested to please furnish
the shareholding ratio details of themselves as Principal shareholder and their Joint Holders, to the
Company’s Share Registrar, enabling the Company to compute withholding tax of each shareholder
accordingly. The required information must reach the Company’s Share Registrar by October 13, 2021,
otherwise each shareholder will be assumed to have equal proportion of shares and the tax will be deducted
accordingly.

viii. Payment of Cash Dividend Electronically (E-mandate)

In accordance with the provisions of section 242 of the Companies Act, 2017 and Companies (Distribution
of Dividend) Regulations, 2017, it is mandatory that dividend payable in cash shall only be paid through
electronic mode directly into the bank account designated by the entitled shareholder. Notice in this regard
has already been published earlier in newspapers as per Regulations. All shareholders are once again
requested to provide details of their bank mandate specifying: (i) title of account, (ii) IBAN number (iii) bank
name and (iv) branch name, code & address; to Company’s Share Registrar. Shareholders who hold shares
with Participants / Central Depository Company of Pakistan (CDC) are advised to provide the mandate to
the concerned Broker / CDC.

The “Electronic Dividend Mandate Form” in English and Urdu is available on the Company’s website:
(www.dynea.com.pk).

ix. Distribution of Annual Report through Email (Optional)

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 223(6) of the Companies Act, 2017, the companies are permitted
to circulate their annual financial statements, along with Auditor’s Report, Directors’ Report etc. (“Annual
Report”) and the notice of annual general meeting (“Notice”), to its shareholders by email. Shareholders
of the Company who wish to receive the Company’s Annual Report and Notice of Annual General Meeting
by email are requested to provide the completed Electronic Communication Consent Form (available on
the Company’s website), to the Company’s Share Registrar.

The audited financial statements of the Company for the year ended June 30, 2021 have been made
available on the Company’s website (www.dynea.com.pk) in addition to annual and quarterly financial
statements for prior years.

x. Transmission / Dispatch of Annual Report through CD / DVD

The Company has circulated Annual Financial Statements / Annual Report 2021 to its members through
CD/DVD at their registered addresses. Printed copy of the same can be provided to the members upon
request. The audited financial statements of the company for the year ended June 30, 2021 have been
made available on the Company’s Website (www.dynea.com.pk).

The Standard Request Form is available on the Company's website (www.dynea.com.pk). If a member
prefers to receive hard copies for all the future Audited Financial Statements and notice of AGM, then such
preference of the member shall be noted in the Standard Request Form.
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STATEMENT UNDER SECTION 134(3) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2017 READ WITH SRO 423/(I)/2018
DATED 3 APRIL 2018 IN CONNECTION WITH SPECIAL BUSINESS

This statement sets out the material facts concerning the special business to be transacted at the Annual General
Meeting of the Company to be held on October 21, 2021 at 1:00 pm through electronically through video-link
arrangement.

1. Amendment in Articles of Association of the Company

The Board of Directors of the Company have in their meeting held on September 03, 2021 approved to
recommend the shareholders of the Company to consider amending the Articles of Association of the
Company primarily in order to align the existing one with the Companies Act 2017.

Availability of Relevant Documents

A copy of the existing Articles of Association identifying the changes proposed therein alongwith a
comparative analysis of the existing clauses with the proposed amendments and reasons for each change
are being sent to all shareholders and also are available for inspection at the registered office of the
Company from 9.00 a.m. to 5.00 p.m. on any working day, up to the last working day before the date of
the Annual General Meeting. The same shall also be available for inspection by the members in the Annual
General Meeting.

Statement by the Board of Directors

“We, the members of the Board of Directors hereby confirm that the alterations in the Articles of Association
of the Company are in line with the applicable laws and regulatory framework.”

Nature of Interest

The Directors of the Company do not hold any direct or indirect interest in the alteration of Articles of
Association of the Company.

2. Revision of Directors’ Fee for attending Board and / or Committee Meetings

The Board of Directors of the Company have in their meeting held on September 03, 2021approved to
recommend to the shareholders of the Company to consider revision of fee of the non-executive directors
to be revised from Rs. 75,000/- to Rs. 100,000/- for attending the Board and / or Committee meetings.

The rationale of revision in the fee of directors of the Company is to bring them in line with the fees paid
to directors of listed companies of similar size.

Nature of Interest

The Directors of the Company except Mr. Donald John Jenkin, Chairman and Mr. Shabbir Abbas, Chief
Executive are interested in the revision of fees of the directors.
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EXISTING ARTICLES

OF ASSOCIATION IDENTIFYING THE

CHANGES PROPOSED THEREIN
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PRELIMINARY

The marginal notes hereto shall not effect the construction
hereof and in these presents unless there be something in the
subject or context inconsistent therewith.

1. Interpretation

"The Company" means "DYNEA PAKISTAN LIMITED".

"The OrdinanceAct " means the Companies Ordinance 1984
Act, 2017, for the time being in force in Pakistan, with the
statutory modifications as may from time to time be made.

"The Office" means the Registered Office for the time being of
the Company.

"The Register" means the Register of Members to be kept
pursuant to Section 147119 of the OrdinanceAct.

"Special Resolution" has the meaning assigned thereto by
Section 2 (1) (36) (66) of the OrdinanceAct.

"The Directors" means the "Directors of the Company for the
time being"..

"The Board" means the Board of Directors for the time being
of the Company.

"The AuthorityCommission" means the Securities & Exchange
Commission of Pakistan.

"The Registrar" means the Registrar of Joint Stock Companies,
Karachi.

"The Registrar" means registrar, an additional registrar, an
additional joint registrar, a joint registrar, a deputy registrar, an
assistant registrar or such other officer as may be designated
by the Commission, performing duties and functions under
this Act

“The Seal” means the common seal having the company's
name engraved on it in legible form.”

"Dividend" includes bonus.

"Month" means Calendar month according to the English Calendar.

"Proxy" includes attorney duly constituted under a power of
attorney.

"Redeemable Capital" and "Participating Redeemable Capital"
havehas the meaning assigned thereto respectively by Section
2 (1) (30A) and Section 2(1) (25)55 of the OrdinanceAct.

"In Writing" and "Written" includes printing, lithography writing,
and other modes of representing or reproducing words in a
visible form.

Words not defined shall have the meaning assigned thereto in
the OrdinanceAct.

The regulations contained in Table 'A' in the First Schedule to
the OrdinanceAct shall not apply to the Company, except so
far as expressly incorporated herein.

2.Table ‘A’ not to apply.

UNDER THE COMPANIES ORDINANCE, 1984 ACT 2017
ARTICLES OF ASSOCIATION OF DYNEA PAKISTAN LIMITED

COMPANY LIMITED BY SHARES
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CAPITAL AND SHARES

Subject to the provision of sections 95-A86 and 88 of the
Companies Ordinance, companyAct, Company may purchase
its own shares.

3.

The Capital of the Company is Rs. 200,000,000/- (Rupees Two
hundred million) divided into 40,000,000 ordinary shares of Rs.
5/- each.

4.Capital.

Subject to the provisions of these Articles and to the provisions
of Section 86 of the OrdinanceAct, the shares shall be under
the control of the Directors, who may allot or otherwise dispose
of the same to such persons on such terms and conditions,
and either at a premium or at par and at such times as the
Directors think fit.

5.Allotment of shares
under the control of
the Directors

As regards all allotment from time to time made, the Directors
shall duly comply with Section 73Sections 67-70 of the
OrdinanceAct.

6.Return as to
Allotments.

Subject to the provisions of Section 90(2) and 108 of the
OrdinanceAct any of the shares for the time being unissued
and any new shares from time to time to be created may from
time to time be issued with any special privilege or advantage
over any shares previously issued or then about to be issued
(subject to the provision hereinafter contained as to the consent
of the holders of any class of shares where such consent is
necessary), or subject to any such conditions, or provisions,
and with any such right and generally on such terms as the
Company may from time to time by Ordinary Resolution
determine.

7.Special Rights for
various classes of
ordinary shares.

Subject to the provisions of Section 120 of the OrdinanceAct
any securities or certificates may be issued evidencing investment
of the holder in the "participatory redeemable capital" or
"redeemable capital" of the Company.

8.Redeemable capital.

With the previous authority of the Company in General Meeting
and the sanction of the AuthorityCommission and upon otherwise
complying with Section 8482 of the OrdinanceAct it shall be
lawful for the Directors to issue shares at a discount.

9.

Subject to the provisions of the OrdinanceAct the Directors
may allot and issue shares in the capital of the Company as
payment or part payment of any property, sold or transferred,
goods or machinery supplied or for services rendered to the
Company in or about the formation or promotion of the Company
or conduct of its business and any shares which may be so
allotted may be issued as fully paid up shares and, if so issued,
shall be deemed to be fully paid up shares.

10.

Subject to the provisions of Section 82 of the Ordinance, theThe
company may at any time when shares or debentures or
debenture stock are offered for allotment or for sale, pay
commission or brokerage to any person for subscribing or
agreeing to subscribe (whether absolutely or conditionally) for
any shares, debentures or debenture-stock of the Company,
or procuring or agreeing to procure subscriptions (whether
absolute or conditionally) for any shares, debentures or
debenture-stock of the company, or employed in the sale or

11.

Shares at a discount

Directors may allot fully
paid-up shares as
payment of property etc.

Commission and
Brokerage.

ARTICLES OF ASSOCIATION
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underwriting of such shares, debentures or debenture-stock,
and the amount of such commission and brokerage shall not
in any event exceed such rate percent as may be specified by
the AuthorityCommission.

Shares may be registered in the name of any limited company
or other corporate body, but not in the name of a firm .. Not
more than four persons shall be registered as joint-holders of
any shares.

12. Who may be registered.

Except as required by law, no person shall be recognised by
the Company as holding any share upon any trust, and the
Company shall not be bound by or be compelled in any way to
recognise (even when having notice thereof) any equitable,
contingent, future, or partial interest in any share or (except
only as by these Articles or by law otherwise provided) any
other rights in respect of any share except an absolute right to
the entirety thereof in the registered holder.

13. Trust not recognised.

CERTIFICATES

The certificate of title to shares and duplicates thereof when
necessary shall be issued under the Seal of the Company and
signed by two Directors or the Secretary and a Director.

14. Certificate.

Every member shall be entitled to one certificate for all the
shares in any particular class registered in his name and the
joint holders of shares shall be entitled to one certificate of all
the shares in any particular class registered in their names
provided that, if the Directors so approve, several certificates
may be issued for one or more of such shares, but in respect
of each certificate after the first, the Directors shall be entitled
to charge a fee of Rs. 2/- or such less sum as they may
determine. Every certificate of shares shall specify the number
and denoting numbers of the shares in respect of which it is
issued and the amount paid up thereon.

15. Member's right to
certificate.

As to issue of new
certificate in place of
one defaced, lost or
destroyed.

If any certificate be worn out or defaced then upon production
thereof to the Directors, they may order the same to be cancelled,
and may issue a new certificate in lieu thereof, and if any
certificate be lost or destroyed then upon proof thereof to the
satisfaction of the Directors and on such indemnity as the
Directors deem adequate being given, a new certificate in lieu
thereof shall be given to the registered holder of the share to
which such lost or destroyed certificate shall relate.

16.

Fee For every certificate issued under the last preceding Article
there shall be paid to the Company the sum of Rs.1/- together
with a sum equal to all the expenses incidental tooto the
investigation by the Company of the evidence of such destruction
or loss and to such indemnity.

17.

To which of joint -
holders certificate to
be issued.

The certificates of shares registered in the names of two or
more persons shall be delivered to the person first named on
the Register.

18.

ARTICLES OF ASSOCIATION
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TRANSFER AND TRANSMISSION

Subject to the provisions of Section 7674 (1) and (5) of the
OrdinanceAct, no transfer of shares shall be registered unless
proper instrument of transfer duly stamped and executed has
been delivered to the Company together with the certificate or
certificates of the shares. The instrument of transfer of any
share shall be signed both by the transferor and transferee,
and shall contain the name and address both of the transferor
and transferee, and the transferor shall be deemed to remain
the holder of such share until the name of the transferee is
entered in Register in respect thereof. Each signature to such
transfer shall be duly attested by the signature of one credible
witness who shall add his address and occupation.

19. Certificate.Execution of Transfer,
etc

An application for registration of the transfer of shares. shall
be made either by the transfer or or the transferee and subject
to the provisions of Section 7674 of the OrdinanceAct, the
Company shall enter in its register of members the name of
the transferee in the same manner and subject to the same
conditions as if the application was made by the transferee.

Application by
transferor.

Neither the Company nor its Directors shall incur any liability
for registering or acting upon a transfer of shares apparently
made by sufficient parties, although the same may by reason
of any fraud or other cause not known to the Company or its
Directors, be legally inoperative or insufficient to pass the
property in the shares proposed or professed to be transferred,
and although the transfer, may as between the transferer and
transferee be liable to be set aside, and notwithstanding that
the Company may have noticed that such instrument of transfer
was signed or executed and delivered by the transferor in blank
as to the name of the transferee or the particulars of the share
transferred, or otherwise in defective manner. And in every such
case the person registered as transferee, his executors,
administrators, and assigns alone shall be entitled to be
recognised as the holder of such shares and the previous holder
shall, so far as the Company is concerned, be deemed to have
transferred his whole title thereto.

Indemnity against
wrongful transfer.

20.

The instrument of transfer of any share shall be in writing in
the usual common form, or in the following form, or as near
thereto as circumstances will admit:-

DYNEA PAKISTAN LIMITED

I, ................................. of..............................., In consideration
of the sum of Rs......................... paid to me by...........................of
............................... hereinafter called the said transferee, do
hereby transfer to the said transferee.............................share
(or shares} numbered .............................. in the undertaking
called DYNEA PAKISTAN LIMITED, to hold unto the said
transferee his executors, administrators and assigns, subject
to the several conditions on which I held the same immediately
before the execution hereof, and I, the said transfree, do hereby
agree to take the said share (or shares} subject to the conditions
aforesaid, As witness our hands the.....................................

day of .............................

Witness to the

Signature of etc.

Form of transfer. 21.

ARTICLES OF ASSOCIATION



67DYNEA PAKISTAN LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2021

ARTICLES OF ASSOCIATION

The Directors, shall not refuse to transfer shares unless the
transfer deed as for any reason defective or invalid in which
case the company shall within thirty days fifteen days (or where
the transferee is a Central Depository within five days)from the
date on which the instrument of transfer was lodged with it
notify the defect or invalidity to the transferor and transferee
who shall, after the removal of such defect or invalidity, be
entitled to relodge the transfer deed with the Company.

22. Directors not to refuse
transfers

No transfer shall be made to an Infant (except with the sanction
of the Board of Directors) or to a person of unsound mind.

23. No transfer to infants, etc.

Form for Transfer of Shares

Every instruments of transfer shall be left at the office for
registration, accompanied by the certificate of the shares to be
transferred, and such other evidence as the Directors may require
to prove the title of the transferor or his right to transfer the share,
and upon payment of the proper fee, the transferee shall (subject
to the Directors' right to decline to register herein before mentioned)
be registered as a member in respect of such shares. The
Directors may waive the production of any certificate upon
evidence satisfactory to them of its loss or destruction.

24. Transfer to be left at office
and evidence of title given.

All instruments of transfer which shall be registered shall be
retained by the Company but any instrument of transfer which
the Directors may decline to register shalt (except in any case
of fraud) be returned to the person depositing the same.

25. When transfers to be
retained.

"No transfer fee will be charged for any transfer of shares by
the company"..

26. Fee on transfer etc.

The transfer books and Register of Members may be closed
during such time as the Directors think fit, not exceeding in the
whole forty fivethirty days in each year but no exceeding thirty
days at a timeas may be extended by the Commission.

At least seven days' notice for each closure shall be given as
specified in Section 125 of the Ordinance. shall be given in the
newspaper circulating in the Province in which the Registered
Office and the Stock Exchange in which the Company is listed
is situatedAct.

27. When transfer books and
register may be closed.

I……….................. s/o ............................ r/o....................... (hereinafter called “the transferor”) in
consideration of the sum of rupees .................................  paid to me by.....…………....….......
s/o.......................r/o...................... (hereinafter called “the transferee”), do hereby transfer to the said
transferee.........................................the share (or shares)with distinctive numbers
from………...….....to...................... inclusive, in the..............................Limited, to hold unto the said
transferee, his executors, administrators and assigns, subject to the several conditions on which I
held the same at the time of the execution hereof, and I, the said transferee, do hereby agree to
take the said share (or shares) subject to the conditions aforesaid.

As witness our hands this................................... day of ................................., 20...........

Signature …………..........………
Transferor
Full Name, Father's/Husband's Name
CNIC Number (in case of foreigner,
Passport Number)
Nationality
Residential Address

Witness 1:
Signature……........…....date …..........…
Name,
CNIC Number and
Full Address

Witness 2:
Signature……...….........date …..........…
Name,
CNIC Number and
Full Address

Tile of Bank Account
Bank Account Number
Bank's Name
Branch Name and Address

Signature ……………..........……
Transferor
Full Name, Father's/Husband's Name
CNIC Number (in case of foreigner,
Passport Number)
Nationality
Residential Address

Bank Account Details of Transferee for Payment of Cash Dividend
It is requested that all my cash dividend amounts declared by the company, may be credited into the
following bank account:
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The executor or administrator or nominee appointed under
Section 8079 of the OrdinanceAct, if any, as the case may be,
of a deceased member (not being one of several joint-holders)
shall be the only person recognised by the Company as having
any title to shares registered in the name of such member, and
in case of the death of any one or more of the joint-holders of
any registered shares, the survivor's shall be the only persons
recognised by the Company as having any title to or interest
in such shares, but nothing herein contained shall be taken to
release the estate of a deceased joint-holder from any liability
on shares held by him jointly with any other person. Before
recognizing any executor or administrator the Directors may
require him to obtain a Grant of Probate, Letters of Administration,
Succession Certificate or other legal representations as the
case may be from some competent court in Pakistan. Provided
nevertheless that in any case where the Board in their absolute
discretion think fit it shall be lawful for the Directors to dispense
with the production of Probate Letters of Administration,
Succession Certificate or such other legal representation upon
such terms as to indemnity or otherwise as the Directors in
their absolute discretion, may consider necessary.

28.Transmission of
registered shares.

Any committee or guardian of a lunatic or infant member or any
person becoming entitled to or to transfer shares in consequence
of the death or bankruptcy or insolvency of any member upon
producing such evidence that he sustains the character in
respect of which he proposes to act under this Articles, or his
title as the Directors think sufficient, may, with the consent of
the Directors (which they shall not be under any obligation to
give) be registered as a member in respect of such shares or
may, subject to the regulations as to transfer hereinbefore
contained, transfer such shares. This Article is hereinafter
referred to as "The Transmission Article."

29.As to transfer of
shares to insane,
infant, deceased, or
bankrupt members.

Transmission Article.

A person so becoming entitled shall have the right to receive
and give a discharge for any dividends or other moneys payable
or other advantages arising in respect of the share, but he shall
have no right to receive notice of or to attend or vote at meetings
of the Company, or (save as aforesaid) to any of the rights or
privileges of a member in respect of the share, unless and until
he shall be registered as the holder thereof.

30.Rights of unregistered
personal
representative or
trustee in bankruptcy.

The Directors shall have the same right to refuse to register a
person entitled by transmission to any Shares or his nominee
as if he were the transferee named in an ordinary transfer
presented for registration.

31.Directors right to
refuse registration on
transmission.

The Company in General Meeting may, by ordinary resolution,
from time to time increase the capital by creation of new shares
of such amount as may be deemed expedient.

32.Power to increase
capital.

INCREASE AND REDUCTION OF CAPITAL

Subject to any special rights or privileges for the time being
attached to any issued shares, the new shares shall be issued
upon such terms and conditions and with such rights and
privileges annexed thereto as the Resolution creating the same
shall direct and if no direction be given, as the Directors shall
determine, provided however that the rights as between various
classes of ordinary shares as to profits, votes and other benefits
shall be strictly proportionate to the paid up value of the shares.

33.On what conditions
new shares may be
issued.

ARTICLES OF ASSOCIATION
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Inequality in number of
new shares.

Subject to the provisions of Section 83 of the Act, the Directors
shall offer all new shares to the members in proportion to the
existing shares held by each member (irrespective ofin respective
kinds and class) and such offer shall be made by notice specifying
the number of shares to which the member is entitled and
limiting a time within which the offer, if not accepted, will be
deemed to be declined and after expiration of such time or on
receipt of an intimation from the member to whom such notice
is given that he declines to accept the shares offered, the
Directors shall offer the unsubscribed part to any one or more
institutions as may be specified by the Authority; and if the said
institutions do not subscribe to the whole or any part of the
offer, such whole or part may be allotted arid issued in such
manner as the Directors may deem fit.may dispose of the same
as they may deem fit.

34.Further issue of capital
by Directors.

If, owing to any inequality in the number of new shares to be
issued and the number of shares held by members entitled to
have the offer of such new shares, any difficulty shall arise in
the apportionment of such new shares or any of them amongst
the members, such difficulty shall in the absence of any direction
in the resolution creating the new shares or by the Company
in General Meeting, be determined by the Directors. However,
fractional shares shall not be offered and all fractions less than
a share shall be consolidated and disposed of by the company
and the proceeds from such disposition shall be paid to such
of the entitled shareholders as may have accepted such
offer.charitable institution as the Directors deem fit.

35.

How far new shares to
rank with shares in
original Capital.

Subject to the provisions of Section 92 (2)85 of the OrdinanceAct,
any capital raised by the creation of new shares shall be
considered part of the original ordinary capital and shall be
subject to the provisions here-in contained with reference to
transfer and transmissions, voting and otherwise.

36.

Reduction of capital.The Company may (subject to the provisions of Section 89 to
96 to 106 Inclusiveinclusive of the OrdinanceAct) from time to
time by Special Resolution reduce its capital by paying off
capital or cancelling capital which has been lost or is
unrepresented by available assets or otherwise as may seem
expedient and any capital may be paid off upon the footing that
it may be called up again or otherwise.

37.

The Company may, by a Resolution passed in Board of Directors
Meeting, Sub-divide or consolidate its shares or any of them.

38.

SUB-DIVISION AND CONSOLIDATION OF SHARES

In the event of consolidation or sub-division of shares, the rights
attaching to the new shares shall be strictly proportional to the
rights attaching to the previous shares so consolidated or sub-
divided.

39. Rights to be proportional
on sub-division.

Notwithstanding anything contained herein the Company may
issue any instrument in the nature of redeemable capital
including participatory redeemable capital in accordance with
the provision of Section 12066 of the OrdinanceAct.

40.

REDEEMABLE CAPITAL

Redeemable Capital.

ARTICLES OF ASSOCIATION
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Subject to the prov1s1onsprovisions of Section 8730 and 66
of the OrdinanceAct, the Company may issue ordinary shares
or grant option to convert into ordinary shares the outstanding
balance of any loans, advances or credit as defined in the
Banking Companies Ordinance, 1962 or credit as defined in
the Banking Companies Ordinance, 1962 (LVIL of 1962),, or
other non-interest bearing obligations outstanding or having a
term of not less than three years in the manner provided in any
contract with any schedule bank or a financial institution to the
extent of twenty five percent of such balance.

41.

ISSUE OF SHARES IN LIEU OF OUTSTANDING BALANCE OF LOANS

Subject to the provision of Section 96 to 106 inclusive of the
Ordinance, the Directors may accept from any member of the
surrender on such terms and conditions as shall be agreed of
all or any of his shares.

42.

SURRENDER OF SHARES

The Company may accept, invite or retain deposits in accordance
with the provisions of Section 8884 of the OrdinanceAct.

43.42.

DEPOSITS

The rights and privileges attached to each class of ordinary
shares may, subject to the provisions of Section 59 of the Act,
be modified, commuted, effected or abrogated only if a majority
of at least three fourth of the members affected thereby by such
alteration as the case may be personally or through proxy, vote
for such alteration.

44.43.

MODIFICATION OF RIGHTS

Power to Borrow Subject to the provisions of Section 196183 of the OrdinanceAct
and these Articles the Directors may from time to time at their
discretion raise or borrow or secure payment of any sum or
sums of money for the purposes of the Company, from any
persons, firms, companies or banks and may themselves lend
any such sum or sums to the Company on security or otherwise.

45.44.

BORROWING POWERS

Conditions on which
money may be
borrowed.

The Directors may borrow or secure the repayment or payment
of any sum or sums in such manner and upon such terms and
conditions in all respects as they think fit, and in particular by
the creation of any mortgage or charge on the undertaking or
the whole or any part of the property, present and future, of the
Company or by o the issue of bonds, perpetual or redeemable
debentures or debenturesstock of the Company, charges upon
all or any part of the property of the Company, both present
and future.

46.45.

Borrowing on the
basis of mark-up,
musharika, P.T.C etc.

The Directors may, from time to time at their discretion and on
such terms and conditions as they think fit, obtain finance for
the purposes of the Company on the basis of mark-up,
musharika, mudaraba, participation term certificates, musharika
certificates, term finance certificates or any other approved
mode of non-interest based financing from banks, financial,
institutions or from any other institution set up by the Government
of Pakistan or by any Provincial Government and may secure
such Finance by the issue of participation term certificates,
musharika certificates, mudaraba certificates, term finance

47.46.
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certificates or any other security or obligation not based on
interest, other than the ordinary shares of the Company,
representing an instrument or a certificate of a specified
denomination, called the face value or nominal value, evidencing
investment of holder in the capital of the Company on terms
and conditions of the agreement for the issue of such instrument
or certificate or such other certificate or instrument as the
Federal Government may permit.

The Company may raise and secure payment of any sum by
issue of Participation Term Certificates or Term Finance
Certificates or Musharika Certificates either at a discount,
premium or otherwise with special privileges as to redemption,
conversion into shares with voting rights and their subsequent
reconversion into Participation Term Certificates or Term Finance
Certificates or Musharika Certificates.

48.47.

Debentures, debenture-stock, bonds and other securities may
be made assignable free from any equities between the
Company and the person to whom the same may be issued.

49.48. Securities may be
assigned free from
equities.

Debentures, debenture-stock, bonds or other securities may
be issued at a discount, premium or otherwise and with any
special privileges as to redemption, surrender, drawings,
allotment of shares, attending General Meetings of the Company,
appointment of Directors and otherwise. Debentures convertible
into ordinary share may carry voting rights which shall not be
in excess of the voting rights attaching to ordinary shares of
equal paid-up value.

50.49. Issue at discount etc., or
with special privileges.

The Directors shall cause a proper Register to be kept in
accordance with Section 135112 of the OrdinanceAct, of all
mortgages and charges specifically affecting the property of
the Company, and shall duly comply with the requirements of
Sections 121 and 122100 to 111 of the OrdinanceAct, in regard
to the registration and satisfaction of mortgages and charges
therein specified and otherwise and shall also duly comply with
the requirement of Section 130 of the Ordinance, as to keeping
a copy of every instrument creating any mortgages or charge
by the Company at the office, and the requirements of Section
132 of the Ordinance as to giving intimation of the payment or
satisfaction of any charge or mortgage created by the Company..

51.50. Register of mortgages to
be kept.

Subject to the provision of Section 150 and 151 of the Ordinance,
every Register of holders of debentures of the Company may
be closed for any period not exceeding thirty days at a time
and on the whole forty-five days in any year. Subject as aforesaid
every such Register shall be open to the inspection of the
Registered-holder of any such debentures and of any members;
but the Company may in General Meeting impose any reasonable
restrictions so that at least two hours in each day when such
Register is open are appointed for inspection.

52. Register of holders of
debentures.

Subject to the prov1s1ons of Section 76(1) and (5) of the
Ordinance, no transfer of registered debentures shall be
registered unless a proper instrument of transfer duly stamped
and executed by the transferor and transferee has been delivered
to the Company together with the certificate or certificates of
the debentures.

53. Instruments of transfer.
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Notice of refusal to
register transfer.

The Directors shall not refuse to transfer debentures unless
the transfer deed is for any reason defective or invalid in which
case the Company shall, within thirty days from the date on
which the instrument of transfer was lodged with the Company,
send to the transferee and the transferor notice of the refusal.

54.

Inspection of copies of
mortgage.

The Company shall comply with the provisions of Section
136112 of the OrdinanceAct as to allowing inspection of copies
kept at the office in pursuance of Section 130107 of the
OrdinanceAct and as to allowing inspection of the Register of
Mortgages to be kept at the office in pursuance of Section
135112 of the OrdinanceAct.

55.51.

Supplying copies of
Register of holders of
debentures.

The Company shall comply with the provisions of Section
150(2)124 of the OrdinanceAct as to supplying copies of any
Register of holders of debentures or of any trust deed for securing
any issue of debentures, on payment of the statutory fee.

56.52.

Reserve Fund The Directors may, from time to time before recommending any
dividend, set apart any and such portion of the profits of the
Company as they think fit as a Reserve Fund to meet
contingencies or for the liquidation of any debentures, debts or
other liabilities of the Company, for equalization of dividends
for repairing improving or maintaining any of the property of
the Company, and for such other purposes of the Company as
the Directors in their absolute discretion think conducive to the
interest of the company and may invest the several sums so
set- aside upon such Investment (other than shares of the
Company) as they may think fit, and from time to time deal with
and vary such investments, and dispose of all or any part thereof
for the benefit of the Company, and may divide the Reserve
Fund into such special funds as they think fit, with full power
to employ the Reserve Fund or any part thereof in the business
of the Company, and that without being bound to keep the same
separate from the other assets.

57.53.

RESERVE AND DEPRECIATION FUNDS

Depreciation Fund. The Directors may from time to time before recommending any
dividend, set apart any such portion of the profits of the Company,
as they think fit, as a Depreciation Fund applicable at the discretion
of the Directors, for providing against any depreciation in the
investments of the Company or for rebuilding, restoring, replacing
or for altering any part of the buildings, work, plant, machinery
or other property of the Company destroyed or damaged by fire,
flood, storm, tempest, earthquake, accident, riot, wear and tear,
or any other means whatsoever, for repairing, altering or keeping
in good condition the property of the Company or for extending
or enlarging the buildings, machinery and property of the Company
with full power to employ the assets constituting such Depreciation
Fund in the business of the Company and that without being
bound to keep the same separate from the other assets.

58.54.

Investment of money All moneys carried to the Reserve Fund and Depreciation Fund
respectively shall nevertheless remain and be profits of the
Company applicable, subject to due provision being made for
actual loss or depreciation, for the payment of dividends and
such moneys and all the other moneys of the Company not
immediately required for the purposes of the Company may be
invested by the Directors in or upon such investments or
securities as they may select or may be used as working capital
or may be kept in any Bank on deposit or otherwise as the
Directors may from time to time think proper.

59.55.
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A General Meeting of the Company shall be held once at least
in every calendar year at such time within a period of six
monthsone hundred and twenty days of the close of a financial
year but not more than fifteen months after the holding of the
last preceding General Meeting, and at such place as may be
determined by the Directors.

60.56.

GENERAL MEETING

The General Meeting referred to in the last preceding Article
shall be called Annual General Meeting all other meetings of
the Company shall be called Extraordinary General Meeting.

61.57. Distinction between
Annual General Meeting
and Extraordinary
General Meetings.

When General Meeting to
be held.

The Directors may, whenever they think fit, call an Extraordinary
General Meeting and an Extraordinary General Meeting shall
also be called on such requisition as provided by Section 159133
of the OrdinanceAct.

62.58. When Extraordinary
General Meeting to be
held.

Not less than twenty one days (or such lesser period as may
be prescribed in the Act or by the Commission) notice to the
members specifying the place, the day and the hour of meeting
with a statement of the business to be transacted at the meeting
shall be given by advertisement in the manner provided in sub-
section (3) of Section 158 of the Ordinance and by the notice
sent by post or otherwise served as hereinafter provided and
In the case of an emergency affecting the business of the
company the Directors may apply to the Registrar to authorise
an Extraordinary General Meeting to be held at shorter notice.
Provided always that not less than twenty-one days notice shall
be given of a meeting to pass a Special Resolution specifying
the intention to propose the Resolution as a Special Resolution
but if all the members entitled to attend and vote at any such
meeting so agree, resolution may be proposed and passed as
a Special Resolution at a meeting of which less than twenty-
one days' notice ·has been given subject however to the prior
approval of the Registrar authorising the meeting to be held on
a shorter notice.Section 134 and 140 of the Act.

63.59. Notice of Meetings.

The accidental omission to give any such notice to or the
nonreceipt of any such notice by any of the members shall not
invalidate any resolution passed at any such meeting.

64.60. As to omission to give
notice.

The business of an Annual General Meeting shall be to receive
and consider the Profit and Loss Account, the Balance Sheet
and the Reports of the Directors and of the Auditors to elect and
appoint Directors and Auditors and to fix the remuneration of
Auditors, to declare dividends and to transact any other business
which under these articles and under the OrdinanceAct ought
to be transacted at an Annual General Meeting. All other business
transacted at Annual General Meeting and all business transacted
at an Extraordinary General Meeting shall be deemed special.

65.61.

PROCEEDING AT GENERAL MEETING

Business of Annual
General Meeting.

Resolution of any of the under noted business unless
recommended by the Board may only be passed by as affirmative
note of two-third of the total voting Capital of the Company or
three fourths of the votes of those members present in person
or by Proxy and entitled to vote whichever is the lesser figure:

(i) Increase of the authorized capital of the company or issuing
of additional share capital.

Business of Ordinary
Meeting.
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(ii) Any borrowing in excess of the limit already approved by
the Board.

(iii) Any investment or capital expenditure in excess of the
budgeted figures already approved by the Board.

(iv) Engagement by the Company in any activity other than the
Principal objects set out in clause III (1) of the Memorandum
of Association of the Company.Ten members Present
personally or through video link who represent not less
than twenty five percent of the total voting power, either of
their own account or as proxies shall be quorum for a
General Meeting for all purposes.

Five Ten members Present personally or through video link
who represent not less than twenty five percent of the total
voting power, either of their own account or as proxies shall be
quorum for a General Meeting for all purposes.

Quorum. 66.62.

No business shall be transacted at any General Meeting unless
quorum requisite shall be present at the commencement of
business.

Quorum to be present
when business
commenced

67.63.

The Chairman of the Board of Directors shall be entitled to take
the chair at every General Meeting or if there be no such
Chairman or if at any meeting he shall not be present within
fifteen minutes after the time appointed for holding such meeting,
or is unwilling to act, the members present shall choose another
Director as Chairman and if no Director be present or if all the
Directors present decline to take the chair, then the members
present shall choose one of their number being a member
entitled to vote to be the Chairman.

Chairman of General
Meeting.

68.64.

If within half-an-hour from the time appointed for the meeting
a quorum be not present, the meeting if openedconvened upon
such requisition as aforesaid shall be dissolved but, in any other
case it shall stand adjourned to the same day in the next week
at the same time and place, and if at such adjourned meeting
a quorum be not present within half an hour from the time
appointed for the meeting, those members who are present
and not being less than two shall be a quorum and may transact
the business for which the meeting was called.

When, if quorum not
present, meeting to be
dissolved and when to
be adjourned.

69.65.

Every question submitted to a meeting shall be decided in the
first instance by a show of hands and in the case of an equality
of votes the Chairman shall, both on a show of hands and at
the poll have a casting vote in addition to the vote or votes for
which he may be entitled as a member.

How questions to be
decided at meetings,
Casting votes

70.

At a General Meeting a resolution put to vote in the meeting
shall be decided on a show of hands, unless a poll is (before
or on the declaration of the result of the show of hands)
demanded, in accordance with the provisions of Section 167143
of the OrdinanceAct, and unless a poll is so demanded, a
declaration by the Chairman that a resolution has, on a show
of hands, been carried, or carried unanimously, or by a particular
majority, or lost, and an entry to the effect in the book of the
proceedings of the Company shall be conclusive evidence of
the fact, without proof of the number or proportion of the votes
recorded in favour of, or against that resolution.

What is to be evidence
of the passing of a
resolution where poll
not demanded.

71.66.
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If a poll be demanded as aforesaid it shall (subject to Article
7570) be taken in such manner and at such time not more than
fourteen days from the day on which it is demanded, and such
place as the Chairman of the meeting directs and either at once
or after interval adjournment or otherwise, and the result of the
poll shall be deemed to be the resolution of the meeting at
which the poll was demanded. The demand of a poll may be
withdrawn. In case of any dispute as to the admission or rejection
of a vote, the Chairman shall determine the same and such
determination made in good faith shall be final and conclusive.

72.67. Poll.

The Chairman of a General Meeting may with the consent of
the member present adjourn the same from time to time and
from place to place but no business shall be transacted at any
adjourned meeting other than the business left unfinished at
the meeting from which the adjournment took place.

73.68. Power to adjourn General
Meeting.

Any poll duly demanded on the election of a Chairman of a
meeting or on a question of adjournment shall be taken at the
meeting and without adjournment.

74.69. In what cases poll taken
without adjournment.

The demand of a poll shall not prevent the continuance of a
meeting for the transaction of any business other than the
question on which a Poll has been demanded.

75.70. Business may proceed
notwithstanding demand
of poll.

Subject to any special rights and restrictions as to voting upon
which any shares may be held, on a show of hands every
member present in person shall have one vote and every person
present as a General Proxy (as defined in Articles 177 hereof,
but who is not a, member of the company or who Is a member
not qualified to vote) on behalf of a holder or holders of shares
shall have one vote and upon a poll every member present in
person or by proxy shall have one vote for every share held by
him, provided that no company shall vote by proxy so long as
a resolution of its directors under the provisions of Section 162
of the Ordinance in force.. Provided further that the votes in
relation to election of Directors shall be determined and exercised
as mentioned in Article 9994 herein.

76.71.

VOTES OF MEMBERS

Votes of members.

"Subject to any rules or regulations that may be made from
time to time by the Commission in this regard, Members may
exercise voting rights at general meeting through electronic
means if the Company receives the requisite demand for poll
in accordance with the applicable laws. The Company shall
facilitate the voting by electronic means in the manner and in
accordance with the requirements prescribed by the
Commission"..

76A.72.

Where another company is a member of the Company, a person
duly appointed to represent such company at a meeting of the
Company in accordance with the provisions of Section 162 of
the Ordinance, shall not be deemed to be a proxy, and the
production at the meeting of a copy of such resolution duly
signed by one Director of such company and certified by him
as being a true copy of the resolution shall on production at
the meeting be accepted by the Company as sufficient evidence
of the validity of his appointment.138 of the Act, shall not be
deemed to be a proxy.

77.73. Procedure where a
company is a member of
the Company.
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Any person entitled under the Transmission Article to transfer
any shares may vote at any General Meeting in respect thereof
in the same manner as if he were the registered holder of such
shares, provided that forty eight hours at least before the time
of holding the meeting or adjourned meeting as the case may
be at which he proposes to vote he shall satisfy the Directors
of his right to transfer such shares, or the Directors shall have
previously admitted his right to vote at such meeting in respect
thereof. If any member be a lunatic idiot or non compose mentis;
he may vote whether by a show of hands or at a poll but his
committee, curator bonis or other legal curator and such last
mentioned persons may give their votes by proxy.

78.74. Votes in respect of
deceased, insane and
insolvent members.

Where there are joint registered holders of any share any one
of such persons may vote at any meeting either personally or
by proxy in respect of such shares as if he was solely entitled
thereto and if more than one of such joint-holders be present
at any meeting either personally or by proxy, that one of the
said persons so present whose name stands first on the Register
in respect of such share shall alone be entitled to vote in respect
thereof. Several executors or administrators of a deceased
member in whose name any share stands shall for the purpose
of this Article be deemed Joint-holders thereof.

79.75.Joint-holders.

Votes may be given either personally or by proxy, or, in the case
of a company, by a representative duly authorised as aforesaid.

80.76.Proxies permitted.

The instrument appointing a proxy shall be in writing under the
hand of the appointer or of his Attorney duly authorized in
writing or if such appointer is a corporation under its common
seal or the hand of its Attorney. A proxy who is appointed for
a specified meeting only shall be called Special proxy. Any
other proxy shall be called a General proxy. No person shall be
appointed as Special proxy who is not a member of the Company
and qualified to vote.

81.77.Instruments
appointing proxy to be
in writing.

"Notwithstanding anything contained in these Articles, in case
of voting by electronic means, both members and non-members
can be appointed as Special Proxy or General Proxy"..

81A.78.Proxies where Voting
Rights Exercised
through Electronic
means.

The instrument appointing a proxy and the power of Attorney
or other authority (if any) under which it is signed or a notarially
certified copy of that power or authority, shall be deposited at
the office not less than Forty -Eight hours before the time for
holding the meeting at which the person named in the instrument
proposes to vote, and in default the instrument of proxy shall
not be treated as valid.

82.79.Instruments
appointing a proxy to
be deposited at the
Office.

“Notwithstanding anything contained in these Articles, for the
purposes of voting by electronic means, the instrument appointing
the proxy shall be in such form, and provided to the Company,
in the manner stipulated under the applicable laws”..

82A.80.Form of Proxies where
Voting Rights
Exercised through
Electronic means.

A vote given in accordance with the terms of an instrument
appointing a proxy shall be valid notwithstanding the previous
death or insanity of the principal or revocation of the instrument
or transfer of the share in respect of which the vote is given,
provided no intimation in writing of the death, insanity, revocation
or transfer of the share shall have been received at the office
before the meeting provided nevertheless that the Chairman
of any meeting shall be entitled to require such evidence as he
may in his discretion think fit of the due execution of an instrument
of proxy and that the same has not been revoked.

83.81.When votes by proxy
valid through authority
revoked.
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Every instrument appointing a Special Proxy shall as nearly as
circumstances will admit, be in the form or to the effect following
and shall be retained by the Company.

84.82.Form of instrument
appointing a Special
Proxy.

DYNEA PAKISTAN LIMITED

I,………………………….of…………………………… being a
member of DYNEA PAKISTAN LIMITED hereby appoint
………………………………...........................… (or failing him
……………………………… of ……………………………… or
failing him………………….............…………….........of
………………………………....…) as my proxy in my absence
to attend and vote for me, and on my behalf at the (Annual or
Extraordinary, as the case may be) General Meeting of the
Company to be held on the………………day of………………
and at any adjournment thereof. …………………………….. As
witness my hand this………………day of………………

Signed by the said………………....…………………

In presence of…………………………………………

Provided always that an instrument appointing a proxy may be
in the form set out in Regulation 3942 of Table A.

No member shall be entitled to be present or to vote on any
question either personally or by proxy or as proxy for another
member at any General Meeting or upon a poll or be reckoned
in a quorum meeting In respect of any shares that he has
acquired by transfer unless his name has been entered as the
registered holder of the shares in respect of which he claims
to vote, but this shall not effect shares acquired under a
testamentary disposition or by succession to an intestates
estate or under a bankruptcy or insolvency or liquidation.

85.83. Restrictions on Voting.

Until otherwise determined by the Company in General Meeting
theThe number of elected Directors shall not be less than seven
nor more than twelve excluding Directors nominated by the
Company's Creditors or other special interest by virtue of
contractual arrangements as mentioned in Section 182164 of
the OrdinanceAct.

(a) So Long as at least two of the Directors are persons
representing DYNO Industries A.S. and Mr. Rafiq M.
Habib, the Chairman of the Board and his Chief Executive
shall be appointed by the Board from among such
representative Directors, (the Chairman being a
representative of DYNO Industries and the Chief
Executive a representative of Mr. Rafiq M. Habib).

(b) All subsequent Directors shall be elected in the manner
prescribed by Section 178 and shall hold office for the
term prescribed-by Section 180 of the Ordinance.

86.84.

DIRECTORS

Number of Directors.

Any member who is the registered holder of a sufficient number
of shares to ensure the election of one or more Directors may
at any time give notice in writing to the Company that the
persons named in such notice are to be deemed to be the
Directors representing the notice giver and any such
representative Director may be a like notice be removed and
replaced by the notice giver. Representative Directors shall not

87. Ex-Officio Directors.
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require any share qualification: No member may give notice
under this .article in respect of more Directors than his share
holding would enable him to elect.

Any Trust Deed for securing debentures or debenture-stock
may, if so arranged, provide for the appointment from time to
time, by the trustees thereof or by the holders of the debenture-
stock, of some person or persons to be a Director or Directors
of the company and may empower such trustees or holders of
debentures or debenture stock from time to time to remove any
Director so appointed. A Director under this Article is herein
referred to as a "Debenture Director". A Debenture Director
shall not be bound to hold any qualification shares and shall
not be liable to retire by rotation or be removed by the Company.
The Trust Deeds may contain such ancillary provisions as may
be arranged between the Company and the trustees and such
provisions shall have effect notwithstanding any of the other
provisions herein contained.

88.85.Debenture Directors

The qualification of a Director, relaxable by the Controller of
Capital Issues, shall be the holding of shares in the Company
of hethe nominal value of Rs. 5000/- at least in his own name
but a Director representing an interest holding shares of the
nominal value of Rs. 5000/- or more shall require no share
qualification.

89.86.Qualification of
Directors.

If a Director fails to acquire his share qualification within two
months, he shall cease to be a Director forthwith but all acts
done by him during the interim period of his office as Director
shall be held to have been properly done.

90.Failure of Director to
acquire qualification

The remuneration of Director shall, from time to time be
determined by the Board of Directors and unless otherwise
determined shall not exceed Rs. 500/= per meeting in which
the Director shall be present. The Directors shall be paid such
travelling, boarding, lodging and other expenses properly
incurred by them in or about the performance of their duties or
business if any of them has to come to attend the Board Meeting
from outstation.

91.87.Remuneration of
Directors.

Any Director appointed to any executive office including for the
purpose of this Article the Office of Chief Executive or Chairman
or to serve on any committee or to devote special attention to
the business of the Company or who otherwise performs extra
services which in the opinion of the Directors are outside the
scope of the ordinary duties of the Directors, may be paid such
extra remuneration by way of salary, fees percentage of profits
or otherwise as shall from time to time be determined by the
Directors and be subject to provision of any law for the time
being in force applicable to the Company.

92.88.Special Remuneration
to Directors for
performing extra
duties.

The office of a Director shall, ipso facto, be vacated if:

(a) he ceases to hold the share qualification, if any, necessary
for his appointment; or

(b) he is found to be of unsound mind by a Court of Competent
jurisdiction; or

(c) he is adjudged an insolvent; or

(d) he has been convicted by court of law for an offence
involving moral turpitude.

93.89. Director vacating office.
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Directors may contract
with the Company.

(e) he or any firm of which he is a partner or any private
company of which he is a Director without the sanction
of the Company in General Meetings accepts or holds
any office of profit under the Company other than that of
a Chief Executive or legal or technical adviser or a banker
in contravention of the provisions of Section 188171 (1)
(c) of the OrdinanceAct;

(f) he absents himself from three consecutive meetings of
the Directors or from all meetings of the Directors for a
continuous period of three months, whichever is the longer,
without seeking leave of absence from the Board of
Directors; or

(g) he or any firm of which he is a partner or any private
Company of which he is a Director accepts a loan or a
guarantee from the Company in contravention of Section
195182 of the OrdinanceAct; or

(h) he acts in contravention of Section 214205 of the
OrdinanceAct; or

(i) by notice in writing to the Company he resigns his office;
or

(j) (not being Debenture Director) he is removed from the
office yby Resolution of the Company in General Meeting
in accordance with Section 181163 of the OrdinanceAct;

(k) (not being Debenture Director) he be in writing requested
by all his Co-Directors to resign.

(l)(k) he has betrayed lack of fiduciary behavior and a declaration
to the effect has been made by the Court under section
217212 of the OrdinanceAct at any time during the
preceding five years.

Subject to the provisions of Sections 196(2), 214 & 216 of183,
205 & 207 of the OrdinanceAct the Directors shall not be
disqualified from contracting with the Company either as vendor,
purchaser or otherwise, nor shall any such contract or
arrangement entered into by or on behalf of the Company, with
any Company or partnership of or in which any Director shall
be a member or otherwise interested be void nor shall any
Director so contracting or being such member or so interested
be liable to account to the Company for any profit realised by
any such contract or arrangement by reason of such Director
holding that office or of the fiduciary relation hereby established,
but the nature of their or his interest must be disclosed by them
or him at the meeting of the Directors at which the contract or
arrangement is determined on, if the interest then exists, or in
any other case at the first meeting of the Directors after the
acquisition of the interest. Provided nevertheless that no Director
shall vote as a Director in respect of any contract or arrangement
in which he is so interested as aforesaid, and if does so vote,
his vote shall not be counted, but he shall be entitled to be
present at the meeting during the transaction of the business
in relation to which he is precluded from voting. This provision
shall not apply to any contract by or on behalf of the Company
to give to the Directors or any of the security for advances or
by way of indemnity against any loss which they or any of them
may suffer by reason of becoming or being sureties for the
Company. A general notice that any Director is a Director or a
member of any specified company or is a member of any

94.90.
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specified firm and is to be regarded as interested in any
subsequent transaction with such firm or company shall as
regards any such transaction be sufficient disclosure under this
Article and such general notice shall expire at the end of the
financial year in which it is given but may be renewed for further
period of one financial year at a time, by a fresh notice given
in the last month of the financial year in which it would otherwise
expire.

The Directors of the Company may be or become Directors of
any company promoted by the Company or in which it may be
interested as a vendor, shareholder or otherwise and no such
Director shall be accountable for any benefits received as
Director or member of such company.

95.91.Directors of Company
may be Directors of a
subsidiary company.

ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

A Director except the Directors nominated by Company's
Creditors or other special Interests by virtue of contractual
arrangements shall hold office for a period of three years unless
he earlier resigns, becomes disqualified for being a Director or
otherwise ceases to hold office in terms of the provisions of
the OrdinanceAct.

96.92.Period of office of
Directors.

A retiring Director shall be eligible for re-election.97.93.Re-election.

The Company at the General Meeting at which a Director retires
in manner aforesaid may fill up the vacated office by electing
a person thereto in the following manner:-: -

(a) a member shall have such number of votes as is equal to
the product of the number of voting shares or securities
held by him and the number of Directors to be elected;

(b) a member may give· all his votes to single candidate or
divide them between more than one of the candidates in
such manner as he may choose;

(c) the candidate who gets the highest number of  votes shall
be declared elected as Director and then the candidate
who gets the next highest number of votes shall be so
declared and so on until the total number of Directors to
be elected has been so elected.

98.94.Vacancy to be filled up
at the General
Meeting.

If at any meeting at which an election of Directors ought to take
place the places of the vacating Directors are not filled up, the
meeting shell stand adjourned till the same day in the next
week at the same time and place and, if at the adjourned
meeting the places of the vacating Directors are n9t filled-up,
the vacating Directors or such of them as have not had their
places filled-up shall be deemed to have been re-elected at the
adjourned meetings, if nothing to the contrary is indicated by
.the Registrar upon a report to be furnished to him within fifteen
days of the expiry of the terms of the Directors pursuant' to
Section 177 of the Ordinance.

99. Retiring Directors to
remain in office till
successors are appointed.

Subject to the provisions of Section 178(1)159 of the Companies
OrdinanceAct, the Company in Board of Directors meeting may
from time to time increase or reducefix the number of Directors
to be elected.

100.95. Power of Directors to
increase or reducefix the
number of Directors.
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The Company may, by resolution in general· meeting remove
any Director, whose period of office. is liable to termination at
any time by retirement of Directors, before the expiration of his
period of office, and may appoint another person In his stead.
The person so appointed shall be subject to retirement at the
same time as if he had become a Director on the day on which
the Director in whose place he· is appointed was last' elected
Director. A Director so removed shall not be re-appointed a
Director by the Board of Director. Provided that a resolution for
removing a Director shall not be deemed to have been passed
unless the number of votes cast in favour of such a resolution
is not less than:-

(a) the minimum number of votes that were cast for the election
of a Director at the immediately preceding election of
Directors, if the resolution relates to removal of a Director
elected in the manner provided in Article 99 hereof; or

(b) the total number of votes for the time being computed in
the manner laid down in Article 99 hereof divided by the
number of Directors for the time being if the resolution
relates to removal of a Director appointed under Article 100
hereof.

The Company may, by resolution in general meeting remove
any Director in accordance with the requirements of Section
163 of the Act.

101.96.

Any casual vacancy occurring among the Directors may be
filled up by the Directors provided that any person so chosen
shall remain in office so long as the vacating Director would
have retained the same if no vacancy had occurred. The
continuing Directors may act notwithstanding any vacancy in
their body, but so that if the number falls below the minimum
above fixed, the Directors shall not except for the purpose of
filling vacancies, act so long as the number remains below the
minimum.

102.97. Directors may fill up
casual vacancy.

No person including retiring Director shall, be eligible for election
to the office of Director at any General Meeting, unless he has,
not less than fourteen days nor more than two months before
the meeting, left at the office of the Company a notice in writing
duly signed signifying his candidature for the office and the
same shall be transmitted to the members as per section
178159 of the OrdinanceAct. Any such person may, at any time
before the holding of election withdraw such notice.

103.98. When candidate for office
of Director must give
notice.

The Company shall keep at its office a register containing
names and addresses and occupations and other particulars
required by Section 205197 of the OrdinanceAct of its Directors
and shall send to the Registrar a return and shall also from
time to time notify to the Registrar any change that takes place
in such Directors as required by Section 205197 of the
OrdinanceAct.

104.99.Register of Directors
and Notification of
changes.
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A Director may with the approval of the Board of Directors
appoint any member of the Company or other person to be his
Alternate Director during an absence of not less than three
months from Pakistan and such appointment shall have effect
and such appointee while he holds office as an Alternate Director
shall be entitled to notice of meetings of Directors and to attend
and vote there accordingly and generally to exercise all the
rights and functions of such absent Director subject to provision
of Section 192(1) of the Ordinance, (including the rights and
functions of the Managing Director if he shall be the appointer)
further subject to any limitations or restrictions in the instrument
appointer him,174 of the Act but he shall not require any
qualification and he shall ipso facto vacate office if and when
his appointer returns to Pakistan or vacates office as a Director
or removes him by notice In writing addressed to the Company.

105.100.Directors may appoint
Alternate Directors.

The same person may be appointed as Alternate for more than
one Directors. An Alternate Director shall be an officer of the
Company and shall alone be responsible to the Company for
his own acts and defaults and he shall not be deemed to be
the agent of or for theDirector appointing him. The remuneration
of an Alternate Director shall be payable out of the remuneration
payable to the Director appointing him and shall consist of
such portion of the last mentioned remuneration as shall be
agreed between the Alternate Director and the Director
appointing him.

106.101.Responsibility of
Alternate Director.

An Alternate Director shall, in the absence of a direction to the
contrary in the instrument appointing him, be entitled to receive
notice of and to vote at General Meetings of the Company on
behalf of his appointer in the same manner as if he had been
appointed a general proxy under the provision of these Articles.

107.102.Alternate Directors
entitled to receive
notices and to vote.

PROCEEDING OF DIRECTORS

(a) The Directors may meet together for the despatchdispatch
of business, adjourn and otherwise regulate their meetings
and proceedings as they think fit. They shall however, meet
at least twiceonce in a yearevery calendar quarter. The
quorum at a Directors' meeting shall be one-third their
number or four whichever is greater.

Or if a Director or Alternate Director present at a meeting
is also an Alternate for one or more other Directors, all the
Directors whom he represents shall be deemed to be
present at such meeting and the Director or Alternate
Director personally present shall be entitled to exercise all
the votes of the other Directors whom he represents.

(b) All decisions at Board Meetings shall be by vote of the
majority of the Directors present at a Meeting except that
decisions on the following matters shall that require an
affirmative votea greater majority under the provisions of
all the Directors.Act.

i. Increase of the authorized capital of the Company or
issuing of additional share capital.

ii. Any borrowing in excess of the limit already approved
by the Board.

108.103.Meeting of Directors
and quorum.

ARTICLES OF ASSOCIATION
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iii. Any investment or capital expenditure in excess of the
budgeted figures already approved by the Board.

iv. Engagement by the Company in any activity other than·
the principal objects set out in Clause Ill (1) of the
Memorandum of Association of the Company.

v. Any dividend recommendation which would make the
distribution for the year lower than 20 per cent of the
issued share capital or 75 per cent of the net profit
after tax but before providing for reserves, whichever
is the lesser figure.

A Director may, at any time, convene a meeting of Directors.
It shall not be necessary to give notice if a meeting of the
Directors to a Director who Is not for the time being resident in
Pakistan. Questions arising at any meeting shall be decided by
a majority of votes and in case of an equality of votes the
Chairman shall have a second or casting vote.

109.104. Directors may summon
meeting.

If at any meeting of the Directors the ex-officio Chairman be
not present at the time appointed for holding the same, the
Directors present shall choose some one of them to be the
Chairman of such meeting.

110.105. Chairman

A meeting of the Directors for the time being at which a quorum
be present shall be competent to exercise all or any of the
authorities, powers and directions by or under the Articles of
the Company for the time being vested in or exercisable by the
Directors generally.

111.106. Power of Quorum

The Directors may delegate any of their powers to
CommitteeCommittees consisting of such member or members
of their body as they think fit and may from time to time revoke
such delegation. Any committee formed shall in the exercise of
the powers so delegated conform to any regulations that may
from time to time be imposed upon it by the Directors.

112.107. Director may appoint
committee.

The meetings and proceedings of any such committees,
consisting of two or more members, shall be governed by the
provisions herein contained for regulating the meetings and
proceedings of the Directors, so far as the same are applicable
thereto and are not superseded by any regulation made by the
Directors under the last preceding Article.

113.108. Proceedings of
Committee.

A resolution circulated in writing and signed or initialed by all
the Directors, except for the time beingthose items mentioned
in Pakistan (not being less than quorum for a meetingSection
183 of the Directors)Act, shall be as valid and effectual as if it
has been passed at meeting of the Directors duly called and
constituted. A certificate by the Chairman at the foot of any
such resolution certifying· that the Directors signing or initialing
the resolution are all the Directors present in Pakistan at the
date of the resolution shall be final and conclusive in that behalf.

114.109. Resolution without a
Board meeting is valid.

All acts done by any meeting of the Directors or by a Committee
of Directors or by any person acting as a Director shall
notwithstanding that it shall afterwards be discovered that there
was some defect in the appointment of such Directors or persons
acting as aforesaid, or that they or any of them were disqualified,
be as valid as if every· such person has been duly appointed
and was qualified to be a Director. Provided that nothing in Article
shall be deemed to give validity to acts done by a Director after
the appointment of such Director has been shown to be invalid.

115.110.When acts of
Directors or
Committee valid
notwithstanding
defective appointment,
etc.
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MINUTES

The Directors shall cause minutes to be duly entered in books
provided for the purpose: -

(a) Of the names of the Directors present at each meeting of
the Directors and of any Committee of Directors;

(b) Of all orders made by the Directors and the Committee of
Directors;

(c) Of all resolutions and proceedings of General Meeting and
of meetings of the Directors and Committees of Directors;

(d) Of all appointments of officers.

(e) Of the appointment of Chief Executive as per Section
198and 199186 and 187 of the OrdinanceAct.

And any such minutes of meeting of the Directors or of any
Committee or of the Company, if purporting to be signed by
the Chairman of such meeting or by the Chairman of the next
succeeding meeting shall be conclusive evidence of the
proceedings until the contrary is proved. Every meeting of the
Directors of the Company in respect of the proceedings whereof
minutes have been so made shall be deemed to have been
duly called and held.

116.111.Minutes to be made.

POWER OF DIRECTORS

The control of the Company shall be vested in the Directors
and the business of the Company shall be managed by the
Directors who in addition to the powers and authorities by these
presents or otherwise expressly conferred upon them, may
exercise all such powers and do all such acts and things as
may be exercised or done by the Company and are not hereby
or by statute law expressly directed or required to be exercised
or done by the Company in General Meeting but subject
nevertheless to the provisions of any statute law and of these
presents and to any regulations not being inconsistent with
these presents from time to time made by the Company in
General Meeting provided that no regulation so made shall
invalidate any prior act of the Directors which would have been
valid if such regulation had not been made.

117.112.General power of
Company vested in
Directors.

Without prejudice to the General powers conferred by the Act
and the last preceding Article and the other powers conferred
by these presents, it is hereby expressly declared that the
Directors shall have the following powers, that is to say power.

(1) To pay the cost, charges and expenses preliminary and
incidental to the promotion, formation, establishment and
registration of the Company.

(2) To purchase on otherwise acquire far the Company any
property, rights or privileges which the Company is authorised
to acquire at such price and generally on such terms and
conditions as they think fit and, subject to the provisions of
Section 196183(3) of the OrdinanceAct to sell, let, exchange
or otherwise dispose of absolutely or conditionally any part
of the property, privileges and undertaking of the Company
upon such terms and conditions and for such consideration
as they may think fit.

118.113. Specific powers given to
Directors.
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(3) At their discretion to pay for any property, rights on privileges
acquired by or services rendered to the Company either
wholly or partially in cash or in shares, bonds, debentures
or other securities of the Company and any such shares
may be issued as fully paid up and any such bonds,
debentures, or other securities may be either specifically
charged upon all or any part of the property of the Company
or not so charged.

(4) To secure fulfillment of any contracts, agreements,
engagements, deals or transactions entered into by the
Company or it's wholly owned subsidiary by creating
charge, lien or encumbrance on the assets of the Company
on by mortgage of all on any moveable or immovable
property of the Company in such manner as they may
deem fit.

(5) To appoint any person (whether incorporated or not) to
accept and hold in trust for the Company any property
belonging to the Company or in which it is interested or
for any other purposes and to execute and do all such
deeds, documents and things as may be requisite in relation
to any such trust and to provide for the remuneration of
such trustee or trustees.

(6) Subject to the provisions of Section 196183(3) of the
OrdinanceAct to institute, conduct, defend, compound and
abandon any legal proceedings by on against the Company
on its officers or otherwise concerning the affairs of the
company and also to compound and allow time for payment
or satisfaction of any claim or demands by or against the
Company.

(7) To refer any claims or demands by on against the Company
to arbitration and observe and perform the awards.

(8) To make and give receipts, releases and other discharges,
of money payable to the Company and for the claims and
demands of the Company.

(9) To act on behalf of the Company in all matters relating to
bankrupts and insolvents.

(10) Subject to the provisions of Section 95, 10586, 182 and
108199 of the OrdinanceAct to invest and deal with any
of the money of the company not immediately required for
the purposes thereof upon such securities (not being
shares in this Company) and in such manner as they think
fit, and from time to time to vary or realise such investment.

(11) To execute in the name and on behalf of the Company in
favour of any Director or other person who may incur or
be about to incur any personal liability for the benefit of
the Company such mortgages of the Company's property
(present and future) as they think fit, and any such mortgage
may contain a power of sale and such other powers,
convenient and provisions as shall be agreed upon.

(12) To give to any Director or any person employed by the
Company as remuneration for their services as such, a
commission on the profits of any particular business or
transaction or a share in the general profits of the Company
and such commission or share of profits shall be treated
as part of the working expenses of the Company.

ARTICLES OF ASSOCIATION
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(13) From time to time to make, vary and repeal bye-laws for
the regulation of the business of the Company, its officers
and servants.

(14) Subject to the provisions of Section 227218 of the
OrdinanceAct before recommending any dividends to set
aside portions of the profits of the Company to form a
Fund to provide for such pensions, gratuities, or
compensation; or to create any providentProvident or
Benefit Fund in such or any other manner as the Directors
may deem fit.

(15) To make and alter rules and regulations concerning the
time and manners of payment of the contribution of the
employees and the Company respectively to any Funds
and the accrual, employment, suspension and forfeiture
of the benefits of the said fund and the application and
disposal thereof, and otherwise in relation to the working
and management of the said Fund as the Directors shall
from time to time think fit.

(16) To enter into all such negotiations and contracts and rescind
and vary all such contracts and execute and do all such
acts, deeds and things in the name and on behalf of the
Company as they may consider expedient for or in relation
to any of the matters aforesaid or otherwise for the purposes
of the Company.

(17) To make, draw, endorse, sign, accept, negotiate and give
all cheques, bills of lading, drafts, orders, bills of exchange
and Promissory Notespromissory notes, negotiable
instruments and guarantees required in the business of
the Company and its wholly owned subsidiary Company(s).

(18) To pay any interest, mark up or any other financial expenses
lawfully payable.

(19) To insure and keep insured against loss or damage by fire
or otherwise for such period and to such extent as they
may think proper all or any part of the buildings, machinery,
goods, stores, produce and other movable and immovable
property of the Company either separately or co-jointly
also to issue all or any portion of the goods, produce
machinery and other article dealt with, imported or exported
by the Company, and to sell, assign, surrender or
discontinue any policies of assurance effected pursuance
of this power.

(20) To open accounts with any bank or banks or with any
company, firm or individual and to pay money into or draw
money from any such account from time to time as the
Directors may think fit.

(21) To attach to any shares to be issued as the consideration
for any contract with or property acquired with the Company
or in payment for services rendered to the Company, or to
the transfer thereof, such conditions as they think fit.

(22) To accept from any member on such terms and conditions
as shall be agreed a surrender of his shares or stock or
any part thereof.
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(23) To determine from time to time who shall be entitled to
sign on the Company's behalf bills, notes, receipts,
acceptances, endorsements, cheques, dividend warrants,
releases, contracts and documents.

(24) Subject to Section 197184 of the OrdinanceAct, to provide
for the welfare of any employee or employees of the
Company and the wives, widows and families or the
dependents or connections of such person, by building or
contributing to the buildings of houses or dwellings or
chawls, or by grants of money, pensions, allowances, bonus
or other payments or by creating and from time to time
subscribing or contributing to provident funds and other
associations, institutions, funds or trusts and providing or
subscribing or contributing towards places of instruction
and recreation, mosques, schools, colleges, universities,
hospitals and dispensaries, medical and other attendance
and such other assistance as the Directors shall think fit;
and to subscribe to, contribute or otherwise to assist or to
guarantee money to charitable, benevolent, religious,
scientific, national or other objects which shall have any
moral or other claim to support or aid by the Company
either by reason of locality or operation or of public and
general utility or otherwise.

(25) Before recommending any dividend, to set aside out of
the profits of the Company such sums as they may think
proper for Depreciation Funds, Reserve Fund or Sinking
Fund or any special fund to meet contingencies or to repay
debentures or debenture-stock, for special dividends or
for equalizing dividends or for repairing, improving, extending
and maintaining any part of the property of the Company,
and for such other purposes (including the purposes
referred to in the preceding clause) as the Directors may,
in their absolute discretion think conducive to the interest
of the Company, and to invest the several sums so set
aside or so much thereof as are required to be invested
upon such investments (subject to the restrictions imposed
by the provisions of the OrdinanceAct) as the Directors
may think fit and from time to time to deal with and vary
such investments and dispose of and apply and expend
all or any part thereof for the benefit of the Company in
such manner and for such purpose as the Directors (subject
to such restrictions as aforesaid) in the Companythink fit
notwithstanding that the matters to which the Directors
apply or upon which they expend the same, or any part
thereof, may be matters to or upon which the capital money
of the Company might rightly be applied or expended, and
to divide the Reserve Fund into such special funds as the
Directors may think fit, and to employ the assets constituting
all or any of the funds, including the Depreciation Funds,
in the business of the Company or in the purchase or
payment of debentures or debenture-stock and that without
being bound to pay interest on the same separate from
the other assets,other investments with power, however,
to the Directors at their discretion to pay or allow to the
credit of such fund interest at such rate as the Directors
may think proper.

(26) To comply with the requirements of any local law which in
their opinion it shall in the interest of the Company be
necessary or expedient to comply with.
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(27) (a) To appoint and at their discretion remove or suspend
managers, secretaries, treasurers, officers, clerks,
agents and servants for permanent, temporary or
special services as they may from time -to -time think
fit, and to determine their powers and duties and fix
their salaries or emoluments and to require security in
such instances and to such amount as they think fit.

(b) From time to time to provide for the management and
transaction of the affairs of the Company, in any specified
locality in Pakistan or elsewhere in such manner as
they think fit.

(c) From time to time and at any time to establish any
Local Boards or branch offices and personnel for
managing any of the affairs of the Company in any
special locality in Pakistan or elsewhere and to appoint
any persons to be members of any Local Boards, and
to fix their remuneration. And from time to time and at
any time delegate to any person so appointed any of
the powers, authorities and discretions for the time
beinog vested in the Directors and to authorise the.
members for the time being of any such Local Board,
or any of them to fill up any vacancies therein and to
act notwithstanding vacancies and any such
appointment or delegation may be made on such terms,
and subjects to such conditions as the Directors may
think fit and the Directors may at any time remove any
person so appointed, and may annul or vary any such
delegation.

(d) At any time and from time to time by powers of attorney
to appoint any person or persons to be the attorney or
attorneys of the Company for such purposes and with
such powers, authorities and discretions (not exceeding
those vested in and exercisable by the Directors under
these presents) and for such period and subject to
such conditions as the Directors may from time to time
think fit and any such appointment (if the Directors
think fit) be made in favour of the members or any of
the members of any localthe Board established as
aforesaid or in favour of any company or the members,
directors, nominees, or managers of any company, or
firm or otherwise in favour of any fluctuating body or
persons whether nominated directly or indirectly by the
Directors, and any such power of attorney may contain
such powers for the protection or convenience of
persons dealing with such attorney as the Directors
may think fit, and may contain powers enabling any
such delegate or attorneys as aforesaid to sub-delegate
all or any of the powers, authorities and discretion for
the time being vested in them.

(e) To delegate entrust to endand confer from time to time
upon the Secretary, manager or managers of attorneys
from time to time such of the powers exercisable by
the Directors as they may think fit and may confer such
powers for such time and to be exercised for such
objects and purposes and upon such terms and
conditions and with such restrictions as they think
expedient and that they may confer such powers either
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collaterally with or the exclusion of and in substitution
for all or any of the powers of the Directors in that behalf
and may from time to time revoke, withdraw, alter or
vary all or any of such powers.

(f) To delegate all or any of their powers to a Chief Executive
or to a Managing Director or to a Secretary as they
may from time to time think fit.

CHIEF EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Directors shall appoint any person, including an elected Director,
to be the Chief Executive of the Company in the manner provided
in Section 198Sections 186 and 199187 of the OrdinanceAct
for a term not exceeding three years from the date of
appointment and may remove a Chief Executive so appointed
in the manner provided in Section 202190 of the OrdinanceAct.
The terms and conditions of appointment of Chief Executive
shall be determined by the Board of Directors.

119.114. Power to appoint Chief
Executive.

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS AND OTHER APPOINTMENTS

The Directors may, from time to time, appoint one or more of
their body to hold or continue in the office of Manager or legal
or Technical Adviser or the office of Executive Director or any
other office of profit under the Company and may procure any
one or more of their number to hold or continue in any office
or place of profit under the Company and may procure any one
or more of their number to hold or continue in any office or
place of profit under any other Company which is subsidiary of
or otherwise associated with this Company, as they may decide,
and for such period as the Directors shall think fit, and the
Directors may also from time to time remove or dismiss him or
them from office and appoint another or others in his or their
place or places.

120.115. Power to appoint
Executive Director.

An Executive Director shall, if he ceaseceases to hold the office
of Director from any cause, ipso facto and immediately, cease
to be an Executive Director.

121.116.To what provisions he
will be subject.

The remuneration of an Executive Director or Director holding
any office as is mentioned in Article 120115 and 121116 may
from time to time be determined by the Board of Directors of
the Company and may be by way of fixed salary, or commission
or dividend, profit or turnover of the Company or of any other
company in which the Company is interested, or by participation
in any such profits or by any or all of those modes. The
remuneration of any such Director may include such profits or
by any or all of those modes (if any) for himself or any dependents
(whether by pension, superannuation or otherwise) after the
termination of his office as the Directors shall think proper. A
Director holding any such office as is mentioned in Articles
120115 and 121116 shall not be precluded merely by reason
of his office of Director from membership of any superannuation
or pension fund for the time being established or supported by
the Company.

122.117.Remuneration of
Executive Directors,
etc.
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The Directors may from time to time entrust to and confer upon
the Chief Executive or andan Executive Director or Executive
Directors for the time being such of the powers exercisable
under these presents by the DirectorDirectors as they may think
fit, and may confer such powers for such time, and to be
exercised for such objects and purposes, and upon such terms
and conditions, and with such restrictions as they think expedient;
and they may confer such powers, either collaterally with, or to
the exclusion of, and in substitution for, all or any of the powers
of the Directors in that behalf; and may from time to time revoke,
withdraw, alter or vary all or any of such powers.

123.118.Powers and Duties of
Executive Directors

THE SEAL

The Directors shall provide for the safe custody of the Seal and
subject to the provision herein before contained as for the
signature to certificates to title to shares in the Company the
Seal shall never be used except by the authority previously
given of the Directors or a Committee of the Directors and Two
Directors or one Director and the Secretary at least shall sign
every instrument to which the Seal is affixed. Provided
nevertheless that any instrument bearing the Seal of the
Company and issued for valuable consideration shall be binding
on the Company notwithstanding any irregularity of the Directors
issuing the same.

124.119.Custody of Seal.

The Company may exercise the powers conferred by Section
213203 of the OrdinanceAct.

125.120.

RETURNS

The Company shall make the requisite Annual Returns in
accordance with Section 156the requirements of the
OrdinanceAct.

126.121.Annual Returns.

DIVIDENDS

Subject to the provisions of these presents as the Reserve
Fund and Depreciation Fund, the net profits of the Company
to be divided in respect of any year or other period shall be
applied in the payment of a dividend on the ordinary shares of
the Company., so that a fully paid-up share shall entitle the
holder with respect thereto to such portion of the distribution
as the amount paid thereon bears to the total .amount of paid-
up capital of the Company..

127.122.How profit shall be
divided.

The Company in General Meeting may declare a dividend to
be paid to the members according to their rights and interest
in the profits.

128.123. Declaration of dividend.

No larger dividend shall be declared than is recommended by
the Directors, but the Company in General Meeting may declare
a smaller dividend.

129.124. Restriction on amount of
Dividends.

Subject to the provisions of Section 248240(2) of the
OrdinanceAct, no dividend shall be payable except out of the
profits of the Company of the year or any other undistributed
profits, and dividend shall not carry interest as against the
Company.

130.125. Dividends out of profits
only and not to carry
interest.
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The declaration of the Directors as to the amount of net profit
of the Company shall be conclusive.

131.126. What to be deemed net
profit.

The Directors may from time to time pay to the members such
interim dividend as in their judgement, the position of the
Company justifies.

132.127. Interim dividend.

The Directors may subject to section 243 of the Act, retain any
dividend to the extent of the debts, liabilities or engagements
in respect of which any money is due to the Company by a
member and may apply the same in or towards the satisfaction
of such debts, liabilities or engagements.

133.128. Debt may be deducted.

Dividend shall be paid within forty five days of the date of the
general meeting in which it is approved or in the case of interim
dividend within forty five days of the date of commencement
of closing of share transfer for purposes of determination of
entitlement of dividend and where register of members is no.t
closed for 'such purpose, the date on which such dividend is
approved by the Directors.Dividend shall be paid within the
periods specified in Section 242 and 243 of Act.

134.129. Period for payment of
Dividend.

Any General Meeting declaring a dividend may resolve that
such dividend be paid wholly or in part by the distribution of
specific assets and in particular of paid-up shares, debenture
or other securities either of the Company, or of any otherlisted
company or in any one or more such waysas may be otherwise
permitted by the Act.

135.130. Dividend in specie.

A transfer of shares shall not pass the right to any dividend
thereon before the registration of the transfer.

136.131. Effect of transfer.

TheSubject to Section 243 of the Act, the Directors may retain
the dividends payable upon shares in respect of which any
person is under the Transmission article entitled to become a
member or which any person under that article is entitled to
transfer, until such person shall become a member in respect
thereof or shall duly transfer the same.

137.132. Retention in certain
cases.

Any one of several persons who are registered as the Joint
holders of any share may give effectual receipts for all dividends
and payments on account of dividend in respect of such share.

138.133.Dividend to joint
holders.

Unless otherwise directed dividend shall be paid by the
Company in respect of any share therein to the registered
holder of such share or to his order by cheque or warrant sent
through the registered post to the registered address of the
member or, in the case of joint-holders to the registered address
of that' one whose name stands first on the Register in respect
of the joint holding or to such bankers or financial institutions
the member or such joint-holders, as the case may be may
direct, and every cheque_ or warrant so sent shall e made
payable to the order of such bankers or financial institution
entitled or such joint-holders, as the case may be Several
executors or administrators of a deceased member in whose
sole name any shares shall stand, shall for the purposes of this
clause be deemed to be joint-holders thereof.through electronic
mode directly into the bank account designated by the
shareholders or in any other manner permitted by law.

139.140.Despatch By
post.Dispatch of
Dividend.

All dividends unclaimed for one year after having been declared
may or unpaid shall be invested or otherwise made usedealt
with in accordance with Section 244 of by the Directors for the
benefit of the Company until claimedAct.

140.135.Unclaimed dividend.
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ARTICLES OF ASSOCIATION

CAPITALISATION OF PROFITS

Any General Meeting may upon the recommendation of the
Directors resolve that any sum or sums representing the whole
or any part of the profits of the Company for the time being
undivided standing at the credit of its accounts or any sum or
sums standing at the credit of any Reserve Account (Including
any Capital Reserve Account) or any sum or sums at any time
received as premiums upon the issue of any shares, debentures
or debenture-stock of the Company or any amount or amounts
arising by reason of any sale or other disposition be capitalised
and distributed amongst such of the shareholders as would be
entitled to receive the same if distributed by way of dividend on
the shares and in the same proportions on the footing that they
become entitled thereto as capital and that such capitalised
fund be applied on behalf of such shareholders in paying up in
full any unissued shares, debentures, or other securities of the
Company which shall be distributed accordingly, and that such
distribution or payment shall be accepted by such shareholders
in full satisfaction of their interest in the said capitalised sum.

141.136.Capitalisation and
Reserves.

Whenever such a resolution as aforesaid shall have been
passed the Directors shall make all appropriations and
applications of the undivided profits resolved to be capitalized
thereby, and all allotments and issue of fully-paid shares,
debentures or other securities if any and generally shall do all
acts and things required to give effect thereof by payment in
cash or otherwise as they think fit for the case of shares,
debentures or other securities becoming distributable in fractions,
and also to authorise any person to enter on behalf of all the
Members entitled thereto into an agreement with the Company
providing for the allotment to them respectively credited as fully
paid-up, of any further shareshares, debentures or other
securities to which they may be entitled upon such capitalization,
and any agreement made under such authority shall be effective
and biding on all such Members. However, fractional shares
shall not be offered and all fractions less than a share shall be
consolidated and disposed of by the Company and the proceeds
from such disposition shall be paid to a charitable institution
approved by the Board.

142.132.Directors to do all
acts and things for
capitalisation.

BOOKS AND DOCUMENTS

The Directors shall in conformity with Section 230 of the
Ordinances, cause to be kept proper books of account with
respect to: as required by the Act.

(a) all sums of money received and: expendedas required by
the Company and the matters in respect of which the receipts
and expenditure takes place;

(b) all sales and purchases of goods by the Company;

(a) all the assets and liabilities of the Company

143.138. Books of account to be
kept.

The books of account shall be kept at the registered office of
the company or at such other place as the Directors think fit,
and shall be open to inspection by the Directors during the
business hours.

144.139. Where to be kept.
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The books of account relating to a period of not less than ten
financial years immediately preceding the currenta financial
year shall be preserved by the Company in good order.

145.140.

The Directors shall from time to time determine whether and
to what extent and at what times and places and under what
conditions or regulations the accounts and books of the Company
or any of them shall open to the inspection of the members not
being Directors and no member (not being a Director) shall
have any right of inspecting any account or book or document
of the Company except as conferred by law or authorised by
the Directors or by the Company in General Meeting.

146.141. Inspection by members.

ACCOUNTS AND BALANCE SHEET

The Directors shall as required by Section 233· to 237 223,
225, 228, 229 and 240 231 of the OrdinanceAct cause to be
prepared and to be laid before the Company in General Meeting
such profits and loss accounts income and expenditure accounts,
balance sheets and reportsFinancial Statements as are referred
to in those Sections.

147.142. Profit and loss Account
and Balance Sheet.

Financial Statements.

The profit and loss accountFinancial Statements shall in addition
to the matters referred to in sub- section (1) of Section 234225
of the OrdinanceAct, be so made out as to disclose clearly the
operating results of the Company during the financial year
covered by the accountthem and shall show, arranged under
the most convenient heads, the amount of gross income,
distinguishing the several sources from which it has been
derived, and the amount of gross expenditure distinguishing
the expenses of the establishment, salaries, and other like
matters. as may be otherwise required by law. Every item of
expenditure fairly chargeable against the year's income shall
be brought into account, so that a just balance of profit and
loss may be laid before the meeting, and in cases where any
items of expenditure which may in fairness be distributed over
several years has been incurred in any one year, the whole
amount of such item shall be stated, with the addition of the
reasons why only a portion of such expenditure is charged
against the income of the year.

148.143. Preparation of profit and
loss account.Financial
Statements.

A balance sheet shall be made out in every year and laid before
the Company in General Meeting made up to a date not more
than sixfour months before such meeting. The balance sheet
shall be accompanied by a report of the Directors as to the
state of the Company's affairs, and the amount (if any) which
they recommend to be paid by way of dividend, and the amount
(if any) which they propose to carry to a reserve fund.

149.144.Preparation of
Balance Sheet.

A copy of the balance sheet and reportFinancial Statements
shall, not less than Twenty-one days previously to(or such other
period as may be prescribed under law) before the meeting be
sent to the persons entitled to receive notices of General
Meetings in the manner in which notices are to be given
hereunder.

150.145.Copies of Balance
Sheet and
ReportFinancial
Statements to be
posted to persons
entitled.

The Directors shall in all respects comply with the provisions
of Sections 230, 233 to 243220, 223, 225 and 245237 of the
OrdinanceAct or any statutory modification thereof for the time
being in force.

151.146.Directors to Comply
with relevant Sections.
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ARTICLES OF ASSOCIATION

AUDIT

Auditors shall be appointed and their duties regulated in
accordance with Section 252246 to·255 249 of the OrdinanceAct.

152.147.Appointment of
Auditors and their
duties.

NOTICES

(a) A notice may be given by the Company to any member
either personally or by sending it by post to him to his
registered address or (If he has no registered address in
Pakistan) to the address, if any, within Pakistan supplied
by him to the Company for giving of notices to him.

(b) Where a notice is sent by post or courier, service of the
notice shall be deemed to be effected by properly
addressing, prepaying and posting a letter containing the
notice and unless the contrary is proved, to have been
effected at the time at which the letter would be delivered
in the ordinary course of post / courier.

153.148.How notices to be
served on members.

If a member has no registered address in Pakistan and has not
supplied to the Company an address within Pakistan for the
giving of notices to him, a notice addressed to him or to the
shareholders generally and advertised in a newspaper circulating
in the Province in which the Registered Office of the Company
is situated and in the manner provided in Article 159 here of
shall be deemed to be duly given to him on the day on which
the advertisement appears.

154.Members resident
abroad.

A notice may be given by the Company to the joint-holders of
a share by giving the notice to the joint holder named first in
the Register in respect of the shares.

155.149.Notice to joint-holders.

A notice may be given by the Company to the persons entitled
to a share in consequence of the death or insolvency of a
member by sending it through the post or courier in a prepaid
letter addressed to them by name or by the title or representatives
of the deceased, or assignees of the insolvent, or by any like
description, at the address (if any) in Pakistan supplied for the
purpose by the persons claiming to be so entitled, or until such
an address has been so supplied by giving the notice in any
manner in which the same might have been given if the death
or insolvency had not occurred.

156.150.Notice to person
entitled to
transmission.

Subject to the provisions of Article 161155 hereof, Notice of
every General Meeting shall be given in such manner herein
authorised to (a) every member of the Company except those
members who having no registered address within Pakistan
have not supplied to the Company an - address within Pakistan
for the giving of notices to them, and (b) every person entitled
to a share in consequence of the death or insolvency of a
member who but for his death or insolvency would be entitled
to a share in consequence of the death or insolvency of a
member who but for his death or insolvency would be entitled,
to receive notice of the meeting, and (c) the auditors of the
Company., and (d) every Director.

157.151. Notice of General
Meetings.

Any notice required to be given by the Company to members
or any of them and not expressly provided for by these Articles
shall be sufficiently given if given by advertisement.

158.152. When notice may be given
by advertisement.
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Any notice required to be or which may be given by advertisement
shall be advertised once in one English language daily
newspaper and one Urdu language daily newspaper circulating
in the Province in which the Stock Exchange in which the
Company is listed is situated.having wide circulation.

159.153. Notice how to be
advertised.

Any notice given by advertisement shall be deemed to have
been given on the day on which the advertisement shall first
appear.

160.154. When notice by
advertisement deemed to
be served.

Every person who, by operation of law transfers or by other
means whatsoever, shall become entitled to any share shall be
bound by every notice in respect of such share which previously
to his name and address and title to the share being entered
in the Register shall be duly given to the person from whom he
derives his title to such shares.

161.155. Transferees etc. bound by
prior notices.

Any notice or document delivered or sent by post to or left at
the registered address of any member in pursuance of these
Articles shall, notwithstanding such member be then deceased
and whether or not the Company have notice of his demise, be
deemed to have been duly served in respect of any registered
shares whether held solely or jointly with other persons by such
member, until some other person be registered in his stead as
the holder or joint-holder thereof and such service shall for all
purposes of these Articles be deemed a sufficient service of
such notice or document on his or her heirs, executors or
administrators, and all persons if any jointly interested with him
or her in any such share.

162.156. Notice valid though
member deceased.

The signature to any notice to be given by the Company may
be written or printed.

163.157. How notice to be signed.

RECONSTRUCTION

On any sale of the undertaking of the Company, the Directors
or the Liquidator in a winding up may, if authorised by special
Resolution, accept fully paid or partly paid-up shares, debentures
or securities of any other company, whether incorporated in
Pakistan or not, either then existing or to be formed for the
purchase in whole or in part of the property of the Company,
and the Directors (if the profits of the Company permit), or the
Liquidator (in winding-up), may distribute such shares,
debentures or securities or any other property of the Company
amongst the members without realisation or vest the same in
trustees for them, and any special Resolution may provide for
the distribution or appropriation of the cash, shares, debentures,
securities, benefits or property otherwise than in accordance
with the strict legal rights of the members or contributories of
the Company, and for the valuation of any such securities or
property at such price and in such manner as the meeting may
approve, and all holders of shares shall be bound to accept
and shall be bound by any valuation or distribution so authorised,
and waive all rights in relation thereto, save only in case the
Company is proposed to be or is in the course of being wound
up, such statutory rights (if any) under Section 367356 of the
OrdinanceAct as are incapable of being varied or excluded by
these Articles.

164.158. Reconstruction.
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SECRECY

Every Director, the Secretary, Manager, Auditor, Trustee, Member
of a Committee, Officer, servant, agents, accountant or other
person employed in the business of the Company shall, if so
required by the Directors before entering upon his duties, sign
a declaration pledging himself to observe strict secrecy
respecting all transactions of the Company with its customers
and the state of accounts with individuals and in matters relating
thereto, and shall by such declaration pledge himself not to
reveal any of the matters which may come to his knowledge in
the discharge of his duties except when required so to do so
by the Directors or by any meeting or by a Court of Law and
except as far as may be necessary in order to comply with any
of the provisions in these Articles.

165.159.Secrecy

No member or other person (not being a Director) shall be
entitled to enter the property of the Company or to inspect or
examine the Company's premises or properties of the Company
without the permission of Directors of the Company for the
time being or to require discovery of or any information respecting
any detail of the Company's trading or any matter which is or
may be in the nature of a trade secret, mystery of trade or
secret process or of any matter whatsoever which may relate
to the conduct of the business of the Company and which in
the opinion of the Directors it will be inexpedient in the interest
of the members of the Company to communicate.

166.160.No shareholder to
enter the premises of
the Company without
permission.

INDEMNITY

(a) Subject to the provisions of Section 194180 of the
OrdinanceAct every Director of the Company, the Secretary,
Manager and other officers or employees of the Company
shall be indemnified by the Company and it shall be the
duty of the Directors of the Company to pay out of the
funds of the Company all costs, losses and expenses
(including travelling expenses) which any such Director,
Secretary, Manager, Officer or other employee may incur
or become liable to by reason of any contract entered into
or act or deed done by him as Director, Secretary, Manager,
Officer or other employee in the discharge of his duties.

(b) Subject as aforesaid every Director, Secretary, the Manager,
Auditor or any other officer of the Company shall be
indemnified against any liability incurred by him as Director,
Secretary, Manager, Auditor or officer in defending any
proceedings whether civil or criminal in which judgement
is given in his favour or in which he is acquitted or in
connection with any application under Section 488492 of
the OrdinanceAct in which relief is given to him by the
Court.

167.161.Rights of Directors etc,
to indemnity.

Subject to the provisions of Section 194180 of the OrdinanceAct,
no Director, Secretary, Manager, auditor or other officer of the
Comnany shall be liable for the act, receipts, neglect or default
of any other Director or officer or for joining in any receipt or
other act of for conformity or for any loss or expenses happening
to the Company through the insufficiency or deficiency of title
to any property acquired by order of the Directors for or on
behalf of the Company or for the insufficiency or deficiency of
any security in or upon which any of the moneys of the Company

168.162. Directors etc, not
responsible for acts of
others.
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shall be invested or any loss or damage arising from the
bankruptcy, insolvency or tortious act of any person with whom
any money, securities or effects shall be deposited or for any
loss occasioned by an error of judgement, omission, default or
oversight on his part or for any other loss, damage, or misfortune
whatever which shall happen in the execution of the duties of
his office or in relation thereto, unless the same happen through
the wilful default and neglect of such Director, Secretary,
Manager, auditor or other officer of the Company.

WINDING UP

Notice of any resolution for winding up a company voluntarily
shall be given by the company within ten days of the passing
of the same by advertisement in the official Gazette, and also
in a newspaper circulating in the Province. where the registered
office of the company is situated and such notice shall also be
published at least in one issue of a daily newspaper in the
English language and a daily newspaper in the Urdu language
having wide circulation in the Province in which the Stock
Exchange on which it is listed is situated and a copy thereof
shall be sent to the Registrar immediately thereafter.

169.163. Notice of resolution to
wind up voluntarily.

If the Company shall be wound up and the assets available for
distribution amongst the members as such shall be insufficient
to repay the whole of the paid up capital such assets shall be
distributed so that as nearly as may the loss shall be borne by
the members in proportion to the capital paid up at the
commencement of the winding-up on the shares held by them
respectively and if in a winding-up the assets available for
distribution amongst the members shall be more than sufficient
to repay the whole of the capital paid up at the commencement
of the winding-up, the excess shall be distributed amongst the
members in proportion to the capital paid up at the
commencement of winding-up, on the shares held by them
respectively.

170.164.

If the Company shall be wound up whether voluntarily or
otherwise the Liquidator may with the sanction of a Special
Resolution divide among the members in specie or kind any
part of the assets of the Company, and may with the like sanction
vest any part of the assets of the Company, in trustees upon
such trusts for the benefit of the members or any of them as
the Liquidator, with the like sanction, shall think fit.

171.165. Distribution of assets
specie.

Any provision of the Articles contrary to or inconsistent with the
Listing Rules of the Karachi/LahorePakistan Stock
ExchangesExchange shall be deemed to stand revoked or
amended to bring them in conformity with the Listing Rules.

172.166.
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We, the several persons, whose names and addresses are subscribed, are desirous of being formed into a Company in
pursuance of these Articles of Association, and we respectively agree to take the number of shares in the Capital of the Company
set opposite our respective names.

Name Address & Description of
Subscribers

No. of Shares taken
by each subscriber

Witness

Mr. Terje Sunde Johnson Service Tolbugt 22, P.O. Box 779,
Sentrum, Oslo-1 (Norway)

5

Mr. Kersi D. Kapadia Flat
3, Fikree Mansion 1
Grieg Street, Karachi.

Mr. Bjorn Holmerud Service Tolbugt 22, P.O. Box 779,
Sentrum, Oslo-1 (Norway)

5

Mr. Neils Chr. Nokleby Service Tolbugt 22, P.O. Box 779,
Sentrum, Oslo-1 (Norway)

5

Mr. J.F.C Gallaher Business 106, Clifton, Karachi. 5

Mr. Rafiq M. Habib Business B-73, K.D.A. Scheme
No. 1-A, Karachi.

5

Mr. Ali S. Habib Business 37-L, Block 6, P.E.C.H.S
Karachi.

5

Mr. Syed Ali
Business Maymar View Aptt.
G-2/III, K.D.A. Scheme No. 24,
Karachi.

5

Day of…………………….. 1982
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COMPARATIVE ANALYSIS

OF EXISTING CLAUSES WITH THE

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS AND

REASONS FOR EACH CHANGE



"The Ordinance " means the Companies
Ordinance 1984, for the time being in
force in Pakistan, with the statutory
modifications as may from time to time
be made.

"The Register" means the Register of
Members to be kept pursuant to Section
147 of the Ordinance.

"Special Resolution" has the meaning
assigned thereto by Section 2 (1) (36)
of the Ordinance.

"The Directors" means the "Directors of
the Company for the time being".

"The Authority" means the Securities &
Exchange Commission of Pakistan.

"The Ordinance Act" means the
Companies Ordinance 1984 Act, 2017,
for the time being in force in Pakistan,
with the statutory modifications as may
from time to time be made.

"The Register" means the Register of
Members to be kept pursuant to Section
147119 of the OrdinanceAct.

"Special Resolution" has the meaning
assigned thereto by Section 2 (1) (36
(66) of the OrdinanceAct.

"The Directors" means the "Directors of
the Company for the time being"..

"The Authority Commission" means the
Securities & Exchange Commission of
Pakistan.

Proposed AmendmentS.No. Clause
No. Existing Clause Reasons

for the Change

U N D E R  T H E  C O M PA N I E S
ORDINANCE, 1984 ACT 2017

THE COMPANIES ORDINANCE,
1984 ACT 2017

U N D E R  T H E  C O M PA N I E S
ORDINANCE, 1984

THE COMPANIES ORDINANCE, 1984

Title
Page

1. In order to align with the
Companies Act 2017.

In order to align with
the Companies Act
2017.

Heading of
Articles of

Association

2.

13. In order to align with
the Companies Act
2017.

Subject to the provisions of these Articles
and to the provisions of Section 86 of the
OrdinanceAct, the shares shall be  under
the control of the Directors, who may allot
or otherwise dispose of the same to such
persons on such terms and conditions,
and either at a  premium or at par and at
such times as the Directors think fit.

Subject to the provisions of these Articles
and to the provisions of Section 86 of the
Ordinance, the  shares shall  be  under
the  control of the Directors, who may allot
or otherwise dispose of the same to such
persons on such terms and conditions,
and either at a  premium or at par and at
such times as the Directors think fit.

In order to align with
the Companies Act
2017.

54.

"The Registrar" means registrar, an
additional registrar, an additional joint
registrar, a joint registrar, a deputy
registrar, an assistant registrar or such
other officer as may be designated by
the Commission, performing duties and
functions under this Act.

“The Seal” means the common seal
having the company's name engraved
on it in legible form.”

"Redeemable Capital" and "Participating
Redeemable Capital" havehas the
meaning assigned thereto respectively
by Section 2 (1) (30A) and Section 2(1)
(25)55 of the OrdinanceAct.

Words not defined shall have the meaning
assigned thereto in the Ordinance Act.

"The Registrar" means the Registrar of
Joint Stock Companies, Karachi.

"Redeemable Capital" and "Participating
Redeemable Capital" have the meaning
assigned thereto respectively by Section
2 (1) (30A) and Section 2(1) (25) of the
Ordinance.

Words not defined shall have the meaning
assigned thereto in the Ordinance.

5. As regards all allotment from time to
time made, the Directors shall duly
comply with Section 73Sections 67-70
of the OrdinanceAct.

As regards all allotment from time to
time made, the Directors shall duly
comply with Section 73 of the Ordinance.

In order to align with
the Companies Act
2017.

6
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Proposed AmendmentS.No. Clause
No. Existing Clause Reasons

for the Change

Subject to the provisions of Section 120
of the OrdinanceAct any securities or
certificates may be issued evidencing
investment of the holder in the
"participatory redeemable capital" or
"redeemable capital" of the Company.

Subject to the provisions of Section 120
of the Ordinance any securities or
certificates may be issued evidencing
investment of the holder in the
"participatory redeemable capital" or
"redeemable capital" of the Company.

In order to align with
the Companies Act
2017.

87.

With the previous authority of the Company
in General Meeting and the sanction of
the Authority Commission and upon
otherwise complying with Section 8482
of the OrdinanceAct it shall be lawful for
the Directors to issue shares at a discount.

With the previous authority of the
Company in General Meeting and the
sanction of the Authority and upon
otherwise complying with Section 84
of the Ordinance it shall be lawful for
the Directors to issue shares at a discount.

In order to align with
the Companies Act
2017.

98.

Subject to the provisions of the
OrdinanceAct the Directors may allot and
issue shares in the capital of the Company
as payment or part payment of any
property, sold or transferred, goods or
machinery supplied or for services
rendered to the Company in or about the
formation or promotion of the Company
or conduct of its business and any shares
which may be so allotted may be issued
as fully paid up shares and, if so issued,
shall be deemed to be fully paid up shares.

Subject to the provisions of the Ordinance
the Directors may allot and issue shares
in the capital of the Company as payment
or part payment of any property, sold or
transferred, goods or machinery supplied
or for services rendered to the Company
in or about the formation or promotion of
the Company or conduct of its business
and any shares which may be so allotted
may be issued as fully paid up shares
and, if so issued, shall be deemed to be
fully paid up shares.

In order to align with
the Companies Act
2017.

109.

Subject to the provisions of Section 82
of the Ordinance, theThe company may
at any time when shares or debentures
or debenture stock are offered for
allotment or for sale, pay commission or
brokerage to any person for subscribing
or agreeing to subscribe (whether
absolutely or conditionally) for any shares,
debentures or debenture-stock of the
Company, or procuring or agreeing to
procure subscriptions (whether absolute
or conditionally) for any shares, debentures
or debenture-stock of the company, or
employed in the sale or underwriting of
such shares, debentures or debenture-
stock, and the amount of such commission

Subject to the provisions of Section 82
of the   Ordinance, the company may at
any time when shares or debentures or
debenture stock are offered for allotment
or for sale, pay commission or brokerage
to any person for subscribing or agreeing
to subscribe (whether absolutely or
conditionally) for any shares, debentures
or debenture-stock of the Company, or
procuring or agreeing to procure
subscriptions (whether absolute or
conditionally) for any shares, debentures
or debenture-stock of the company, or
employed in the sale or underwriting
of such shares, debentures or debenture-
stock, and the amount of such

In order to align with
the Companies Act
2017.

1110.

Subject to the provisions of Section 90(2)
and 108 of the OrdinanceAct any of   the
 shares for the time being unissued and
any new shares from time to time to  be
created  may from  time to  time be issued
with any special privilege or advantage
over any shares previously issued or then
about to be issued (subject to the
provision hereinafter contained  as to the
consent of the  holders of any class  of
shares where such  consent is
necessary),  or subject to any such
conditions, or provisions,  and  with  any
such  right and generally on such terms
as the Company may from time to time
by Ordinary Resolution determine.

Subject to the provisions of Section 90(2)
and 108 of the Ordinance any of   the
shares for the time being unissued and
any new shares from time to time to  be
created  may from  time to  time  be
issued with any special privilege or
advantage over any shares previously
issued or then about to be issued (subject
to the provision hereinafter contained  as
to the consent of the  holders of any class
 of shares where such  consent is
necessary),  or subject to any such
conditions, or provisions,  and  with  any
such  right and generally on such terms
as the Company may from time to time
by Ordinary Resolution determine.

In order to align with
the Companies Act
2017.

76.
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Proposed AmendmentS.No. Clause
No. Existing Clause Reasons

for the Change

and brokerage shall not in any event
exceed such rate percent as may be
specified by the Authority Commission.

commission and brokerage shall not in
any event exceed such rate percent as
may be specified by the Authority.

Every member shall be entitled to one
certificate for all the shares in any particular
class registered in his name and the joint
holders of shares shall be entitled to one
certificate of all the shares in any particular
class registered in their names provided
that, if the Directors so approve, several
certificates may be issued for one or more
of such shares, but in respect of each
certificate after the first, the Directors shall
be entitled to charge a fee of Rs. 2/  or
such less sum as they may determine.
Every certificate of shares shall specify
the number and denoting numbers of the
shares in respect of which it is issued and
the amount paid up thereon.

Every member shall be entitled to one
certificate for all the shares in any particular
class registered in his name and the joint
holders of shares shall be entitled to one
certificate of all the shares in any particular
class registered in their names provided
that, if the Directors so approve, several
certificates may be issued for one or more
of such shares, but in respect of each
certificate after the first, the Directors shall
be entitled to charge a fee of Rs. 2/- or
such less sum as they may determine.
Every certificate of shares shall specify
the number and denoting numbers of the
shares in respect of which it is issued and
the amount paid up thereon.

1512. Fee cannot be less
than Rs. 2.

For every certificate issued under the
last preceding Article there shall be paid
to the Company the sum of Rs.1/-
together with a sum equal to all the
expenses incidental tooto the investigation
by the Company of the evidence of such
destruction or loss and to such indemnity.

For every certificate issued under the
last  preceding Article there shall be
paid  to the Company the sum of Rs.1/-
 together with a sum equal to all the
expenses incidental too the investigation
by the Company of the evidence of such
destruction or loss and to such indemnity.

1713. Rs. 1 is now irrelevant.

Subject to the provisions of Section 7674
(1) and (5) of the OrdinanceAct, no
transfer of shares shall be registered
unless proper instrument of transfer duly
stamped and executed has been
delivered to the Company together with
the certificate or certificates of the
shares. The instrument of transfer of any
share shall be signed both by the
transferor and transferee, and shall
contain the name and address both of
the transferor and transferee, and the
transferor shall be deemed to remain the
holder of such share until the name of
the transferee is entered in Register in
respect thereof. Each signature to such
transfer shall be duly attested by the
signature of one credible witness who
shall add his address and occupation.

Subject to the provisions of Section 76
(1) and (5) of the Ordinance, no transfer
of shares shall be registered unless
proper instrument of transfer duly
stamped and executed has been
delivered to the Company together with
the certificate or certificates of the
shares. The instrument of transfer of any
share shall be signed both by the
transferor and transferee, and shall
contain the name and address both of
the transferor and transferee, and the
transferor shall be deemed to remain the
holder of such share until the name of
the transferee is entered in Register in
respect thereof. Each signature to such
transfer shall be duly attested by the
signature of one credible witness who
shall add his address and occupation.

1914. In order to align with
the Companies Act
2017.

Shares may be registered in the name
of any limited company or other corporate
body, but not in the name of a firm .. Not
more than four persons shall be registered
as joint-holders of any shares.

Shares may be registered in the name
of any limited company or other corporate
body, but not in the name of a firm. Not
more than four persons shall be registered
as joint-holders of any shares.

1211. No Justification as
such in the law.

A15. An application for registration of the
transfer of shares shall be made either
by the transferor or the transferee and
subject to the provisions of Section 76

An application for registration of the
transfer of shares. shall be made either
by the transferor or the transferee and
subject to the provisions of Section 76
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for the Change

2217. The Directors, shall not refuse to transfer
shares unless the transfer deed as for
any reason defective or invalid in which
case the company shall within thirty
days from the date on which the
instrument of transfer was lodged with
it notify the defect or invalidity to the
transferor and transferee who shall, after
the removal of such defect or invalidity,
be entitled to relodge the transfer deed
with the Company.

In line with the Central
Depository Company
requirements.

The Directors, shall not refuse to transfer
shares unless the transfer deed as for
any reason defective or invalid in which
case the company shall within thirty days
fifteen days (or where the transferee is a
Central Depository within five days) from
the date on which the instrument of
transfer was lodged with it notify the defect
or invalidity to the transferor and transferee
who shall, after the removal of such defect
or invalidity, be entitled to relodge the
transfer deed with the Company.

74 of the OrdinanceAct, the Company
shall enter in its register of members the
name of the transferee in the same manner
and subject to the same conditions as if
the application was made by the transferee.

of the Ordinance, the Company shall
enter in its register of members the name
of the transferee in the same manner and
subject to the same conditions as if the
application was made by the transferee.

2116. I, ............................ of...............................,
in consideration of the sum of
Rs......................... paid to me
by...........................of ...............................
hereinafter called the said transferee,
do hereby transfer to the said
transferee.............................share (or
shares} numbered ..............................
in the undertaking called DYNEA
PAKISTAN LIMITED, to hold unto the
said t ransferee his executors,
administrators and assigns, subject to
the several conditions on which I held
the same immediately before the
execution hereof, and I, the said
transfree, do hereby agree to take the
said share (or shares} subject to the
conditions aforesaid, As witness our
hands the............................................
day of .............................
Witness to the
Signature of etc.

To provide more
information to the
C o m p a n y  f o r ,
amongst others,
payment of dividends.

I, ..........................of............................,
in consideration of the sum of
Rs......................... paid to me
by...........................of ...............................
hereinafter called the said transferee,
do hereby transfer to the said
transferee.............................share (or
shares} numbered ..............................
in the undertaking called DYNEA
PAKISTAN LIMITED, to hold unto the
said t ransferee his executors,
administrators and assigns, subject to
the several conditions on which I held
the same immediately before the
execution hereof, and I, the said
transfree, do hereby agree to take the
said share (or shares} subject to the
conditions aforesaid, As witness our
hands the............................................
day of .............................
Witness to the
Signature of etc.

Form for Transfer of Shares
I………... s/o .................... r/o................... (hereinafter called “the transferor”)
in consideration of the sum of rupees ............................  paid to me
by.....…………….......  s/o.....................r/o.................... (hereinafter called
“the transferee”), do hereby transfer to the said transferee...................the
share (or shares)with distinctive numbers from………….....to...................
inclusive, in the............................Limited, to hold unto the said transferee,
his executors, administrators and assigns, subject to the several conditions
on which I held the same at the time of the execution hereof, and I, the
said transferee, do hereby agree to take the said share (or shares)
subject to the conditions aforesaid.

As witness our hands this................. day of ............................., 20........

Signature …………………
Transferor
Full Name, Father's/Husband's Name
CNIC Number (in case of foreigner,
Passport Number)
Nationality
Residential Address

Witness 1:
Signature……...…....date ….....…
Name,
CNIC Number and
Full Address

Witness 2:
Signature……...…....date ….....…
Name,
CNIC Number and
Full Address

Tile of Bank Account
Bank Account Number
Bank's Name
Branch Name and Address

Signature …………………
Transferor
Full Name, Father's/Husband's Name
CNIC Number (in case of foreigner,
Passport Number)
Nationality
Residential Address

Bank Account Details of Transferee for Payment of Cash Dividend
It is requested that all my cash dividend amounts declared by the
company, may be credited into the following bank account:
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No transfer shall be made to an Infant
(except with the sanction of the Board
of Directors) or to a person of unsound
mind.

No transfer shall be made to an Infant
(except with the sanction of the Board
of Directors) or to a person of unsound
mind.

Every instruments of transfer shall be
left at the office for registration,
accompanied by the certificate of the
shares to be transferred, and such other
evidence as the Directors may require
to prove the title of the transferor or his
right to transfer the share, and upon
payment of the proper fee, the transferee
shall (subject to the Directors' right to
decline to register herein before
mentioned) be registered as· a member
in respect of such shares. The Directors
may waive the production of any
certificate upon evidence satisfactory to
them of its loss or destruction.

Every instruments of transfer shall be
left at the office for registration,
accompanied by the certificate of the
shares to be transferred, and such other
evidence as the Directors may require
to prove the title of the transferor or his
right to transfer the share, and upon
payment of the proper fee, the transferee
shall (subject to the Directors' right to
decline to register herein before
mentioned) be registered as· a member
in respect of such shares. The Directors
may waive the production of any
certificate upon evidence satisfactory to
them of its loss or destruction.

2419. M/s. Dynea Pakistan
Limited does not
charge  fees  fo r
transfer.

2318. Shares cannot be
registered in the name
of minor.

The transfer books and Register of
Members may be closed during such  time
as the Directors think fit, not  exceeding  in
the  whole forty fivethirty days in each year
but no exceeding thirty days at a timeas
may be extended by the Commission.

At least seven days' notice for each
closure shall be given as specified in
Section 125 of the Ordinance. shall be
given in the newspaper circulating in the
Province in which the Registered Office
and the Stock Exchange in which the
Company is listed is situated Act.

The transfer books and Register of
Members may be closed during such
time as the Directors think fit, not
exceeding  in the  whole forty five days
in each year but no exceeding thirty days
at a time.

At least seven days' notice for each
closure shall be given of the Ordinance.
shall be given in the newspaper
circulating in the Province in which the
Registered Office and the Stock
Exchange in which the Company is listed
is situated.

2720. In order to align with
the Companies Act
2017.

The executor or administrator or nominee
appointed under Section 8079 of the
OrdinanceAct, if any, as the case may
be, of a deceased member (not being
one of several joint-holders) shall be the
only person recognised by the Company
as having any title to shares registered
in the name of such member, and in
case of the death of any one or more of
the joint-holders of any registered shares,
the survivor's shall be the only persons
recognised by the Company as having
any title to or interest in such shares,
but nothing herein contained shall be
taken to release the estate of a deceased
joint-holder from any liability on shares
held by him jointly with any other person.
Before recognizing any executor or
administrator the Directors may require
him to obtain a Grant of Probate, Letters
of Administration, Succession Certificate
or other legal representations as the
case may be from some competent court

The executor or administrator or nominee
appointed under Section 80 of the
Ordinance, if any, as the case may be,
of a deceased member (not being one
of several joint-holders) shall be the only
person recognised by the Company as
having any title to shares registered in
the name of such member, and in case
of the death of any one or more of the
joint-holders of any registered shares,
the survivor's shall be the only persons
recognised by the Company as having
any title to or interest in such shares,
but nothing herein contained shall be
taken to release the estate of a deceased
joint-holder from any liability on shares
held by him jointly with any other person.
Before recognizing any executor or
administrator the Directors may require
him to obtain a Grant of Probate, Letters
of Administration, Succession Certificate
or other legal representations as the
case may be from some competent court

2821. In order to align with
the Companies Act
2017.

COMPARATIVE ANALYSIS OF EXISTING
CLAUSE WITH THE PROPOSED AMENDMENT
ALONG WITH REASONS FOR THE CHANGE
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No. Existing Clause Reasons

for the Change

in Pakistan. Provided nevertheless that
in any case where the Board in their
absolute discretion think fit it shall be
lawful for the Directors to dispense with
the production of Probate Letters of
Administration, Succession Certificate
or such other legal representation upon
such terms as to indemnity or otherwise
as the Directors in their absolute
discretion, may consider necessary.

in Pakistan. Provided nevertheless that
in any case where the Board in their
absolute discretion think fit it shall be
lawful for the Directors to dispense with
the production of Probate Letters of
Administration, Succession Certificate
or such other legal representation upon
such terms as to indemnity or otherwise
as the Directors in their absolute
discretion, may consider necessary.

3222. The Company in General Meeting may,
by ordinary resolution, from time to time
increase the capital by creation of new
shares of such amount as may be
deemed expedient.

The Company in General Meeting may,
by ordinary resolution, from time to time
increase the capital by creation of new
shares of such amount as may be
deemed expedient.

In order to align with
the Companies Act
2017.

3423. Subject  to  the   provisions  of Section
83  of the  Act,  the Directors shall offer
all new shares to the members in
proportion to the existing shares held by
each member (irrespective ofin respective
kinds and class) and such offer shall be
made by notice specifying the number of
shares to which the member is entitled
and limiting a time within which the offer,
if not accepted, will be deemed to be
declined and after expiration of such time
or on receipt of an intimation from the
member to whom such notice is given
that he declines to accept the shares
offered, the Directors shall offer the
unsubscribed part to any one or more
institutions as may be specified by the
Authority; and if the said institutions do
not subscribe to the whole or any part of
the offer, such whole or part may be
allotted arid issued in such manner as
the Directors may deem fit.may dispose
of the same as they may deem fit

Subject  to  the   provisions  of Section
83  of the  Act,  the Directors shall offer
all new shares to the members in
proportion to the existing shares held
by each member (irrespective of class)
and such offer shall be made by notice
specifying the number of shares to which
the member is entitled and limiting a
time within which the offer, if not
accepted, will be deemed to be declined
and after expiration of such time or on
receipt of an intimation from the member
to whom such notice is given that he
declines to accept the shares offered,
the Directors shall offer the unsubscribed
part to any one or more institutions as
may be specified by the Authority; and
if the said institutions do not subscribe
to the whole or any part of the offer,
such whole or part may be allotted arid
issued in such manner as the Directors
may deem fit.

In order to align the
language with the
Companies Act 2017.

3524. If, owing to any inequality in the number
of new shares to be issued and the
number of shares held by members
entitled to have the offer of such new
shares, any difficulty shall arise in the
apportionment of such new shares or
any of them amongst the members, such
difficulty shall in the absence of any
direction in the resolution creating the
new shares or by the Company in General
Meeting, be determined by the Directors.
However, fractional shares shall not be
offered and all fractions less than a share
shall be consolidated and disposed of by
the company and the proceeds from such
disposition shall be paid to such of the
entitled shareholders as may have
accepted such offer.charitable institution
as the Directors deem fit.

If, owing to any inequality in the number
of new shares to be issued and the
number of shares held by members
entitled to have the offer of such new
shares, any difficulty shall arise in the
apportionment of such new shares or
any of them amongst the members, such
difficulty shall in the absence of any
direction in the resolution creating the
new shares or by the Company in
General Meeting, be determined by the
Directors. However, fractional shares
shall not be offered and all fractions less
than a share shall be consolidated
and disposed of by the company and
the proceeds from such disposition shall
be paid to such of the entitled
shareholders as may have accepted
such offer.

All shares are fully
paid-up, and to give
proceeds of fractional
shares to Charity.

COMPARATIVE ANALYSIS OF EXISTING
CLAUSE WITH THE PROPOSED AMENDMENT
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Subject to the provisions of Section
92 (2)85 of the OrdinanceAct, any capital
raised by the creation of new shares
shall be considered part of the original
ordinary capital and shall be subject to
the provisions here-in contained with
reference to transfer and transmissions,
voting and otherwise.

Subject to the provisions of Section 92
(2) of the Ordinance, any capital raised
by the creation of new shares shall be
considered part of the original ordinary
capital and shall be subject to the
provisions here-in contained with
reference to transfer and transmissions,
voting and otherwise.

The Company may (subject to the
provisions of Section 89 to 96 to 106
inclusive of the OrdinanceAct) from time
to time by Special Resolution reduce its
capital by paying off capital or cancelling
capital which has been lost or is
unrepresented by available assets or
otherwise as may seem expedient and
any capital may be paid off upon the
footing that it may be called up again or
otherwise.

The Company may (subject to the
provisions of Section 96 to 106 inclusive
of the Ordinance) from time to time by
Special Resolution reduce its capital by
paying off capital or cancelling capital
which has been lost or is unrepresented
by available assets or otherwise as may
seem expedient and any capital may be
paid off upon the footing that it ·may be
called up again or otherwise.

3726. In order to align with
the Companies Act
2017.

3625. In order to align with
the Companies Act
2017.

Notwithstanding anything contained
herein the Company may issue any
instrument In the nature of redeemable
capi ta l  inc lud ing par t ic ipator y
redeemable capital in accordance with
the provision of Section 12066 of the
OrdinanceAct.

Notwithstanding anything contained
herein the Company may issue any
instrument In the nature of redeemable
capi ta l  inc lud ing par t ic ipator y
redeemable capital in accordance with
the provision of Section 120 of the
Ordinance.

4027. In order to align with
the Companies Act
2017.

Subject to the provisions of Section
8730 and 66 of the OrdinanceAct, the
Company may issue ordinary shares or
grant option to convert into ordinary
shares the outstanding balance of any
loans, advances or credit as defined in
the Banking Companies Ordinance,
1962 or credit as defined in the Banking
Companies Ordinance, 1962 (LVIL of
1962),, or other non-interest bearing
obligations outstanding or having a term
of not less than three years in the manner
provided in any contract with any
schedule bank or ·a financial institution
to the extent of twenty five percent of
such balance.

Subject to the provisions of Section 87
of the Ordinance, the Company may
issue ordinary shares or grant option to
convert into ordinary shares the
outstanding balance of any loans,
advances or credit as defined in the
Banking Companies Ordinance, 1962
or credit as defined in the Banking
Companies Ordinance, 1962 (LVIL of
1962), or other non-interest bearing
obligations outstanding or having a term
of not less than three years in the manner
provided in any contract with any
schedule bank or ·a financial institution
to the extent of twenty five percent of
such balance.

4128. In order to align with
the Companies Act
2017.

SURRENDER OF SHARES29. SURRENDER OF SHARES

Subject to the provision of Section 96
to 106 inclusive of the Ordinance, the
Directors may accept from any member
of the surrender on such terms and
conditions as shall be agreed of all or
any of his shares.

Subject to the provision of Section 96
to 106 inclusive of the Ordinance, the
Directors may accept from any member
of the surrender on such terms and
conditions as shall be agreed of all or
any of his shares.

4230. Not envisaged as a
practical matter.

The Company may accept, invite or
retain deposits in accordance with the
provisions of Section 8884 of the
OrdinanceAct.

The Company may accept, invite or
retain deposits in accordance with the
provisions of Section 88 of the
Ordinance.

4331. In order to align with
the Companies Act
2017.
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The rights and privileges attached
to each class of ordinary shares
may, subject to the provisions of Section
59 of the Act, be modified, commuted,
effected or abrogated only if a majority
of at least three fourth of the members
affected thereby by such alteration as
the case may be,· personally or through
proxy, vote tor· such alteration.

The rights and privileges attached to
each class of ordinary shares may be
modified, commuted, effected or
abrogated only if a majority of at least
three fourth of the members affected
thereby by such alteration as the case
may be,· personally or through proxy,
vote tor· such alteration.

4533. Subject to the provisions of Section
196183 of the OrdinanceAct and these
Articles the Directors may from time to
time at their discretion raise or borrow
or secure payment of any sum or sums
of money for the purposes of the
Company, from any persons, firms,
companies or banks and may
themselves lend any such sum or sums
to the Company on security or otherwise.

Subject to the provisions of Section 196
of the Ordinance and these Articles the
Directors may from time to time at their
discretion raise or borrow or secure
payment of any sum or sums of money
for the purposes of the Company, from
any persons, firms, companies or banks
and may themselves lend any such sum
or sums to the Company on security or
otherwise.

In order to align with
the Companies Act
2017.

4432. In order to align with
the Companies Act
2017.

5034. Debentures, debenture-stock, bonds or
other securities may be issued at a
discount, premium or otherwise and with
any special privileges as to redemption,
surrender, drawings, allotment of shares,
attending General Meetings of the
Company, appointment of Directors and
otherwise. Debentures convertible into
ordinary share may  carry voting rights
which shall not be  in  excess  of  the
voting  rights attaching to ordinary shares
of equal paid-up value.

Debentures, debenture-stock, bonds or
other securities may be issued at a
discount, premium or otherwise and with
any special privileges as to redemption,
surrender, drawings, allotment of shares,
attending General Meetings of the
Company, appointment of Directors and
otherwise. Debentures convertible into
ordinary share may  carry voting rights
which shall not be  in  excess  of  the
voting  rights attaching to ordinary shares
of equal paid-up value.

In order to align with
the Companies Act
2017.

5135. The Directors shall cause a  proper
Register to  be kept in accordance with
Section 135112 of the OrdinanceAct, of
all mortgages and charges specifically
affecting the property of the Company,
and shall 'duly comply with the
requirements of Sections 121 and
122100 to 111  of  the OrdinanceAct, in
regard to the registration and satisfaction
of mortgages and charges therein
specified and otherwise and shall also
duly comply with the requirement of
Section  130  of  the  Ordinance,  as to
keeping a copy of every instrument
creating any mortgages or charge by
the Company at the office, and the
requirements of Section 132 of the
Ordinance as to giving intimation of the
payment or satisfaction of any charge
or mortgage created by the Company..

The Directors shall cause a  proper
Register to  be kept in accordance with
Section 135 of the Ordinance, of all
mortgages and charges specifically
affecting the property of the Company,
and shall 'duly comply with the
requirements of Sections 121 and 122
 of  the Ordinance, in regard to the
registration of mortgages and charges
therein specified and otherwise and
shall also duly comply with the
requirement of Section  130  of  the
Ordinance,  as to  keeping  a  copy of
every instrument creating any mortgages
or charge  by the  Company at the  office,
and the  requirements of Section 132 of
the  Ordinance as to giving intimation
of the payment or satisfaction of any
charge or mortgage created by the
Company.

In order to align with
the Companies Act
2017.

5236. Register of holders of debentures.

Subject to the provision of Section 150
and 151 of the Ordinance, every Register

Register of holders of debentures.

Subject to the provision of Section 150
and 151 of the Ordinance, every Register

Not required.
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of holders of debentures of the Company
may be closed for any period not
exceeding thirty days at a time and on
the whole forty-five days in any year.
Subject as aforesaid every such Register
shall be open to the inspection of the
Registered-holder of any such debentures
and of any members; but the Company
may in General Meeting impose any
reasonable restrictions so that at least
two hours in each day when such
Register is open are appointed for
inspection

of holders of debentures of the Company
may be closed for any period not
exceeding thirty days at a time and on
the whole forty-five days in any year.
Subject as aforesaid every such Register
shall be open to the inspection of the
Registered-holder of any such debentures
and of any members; but the Company
may in General  Meeting impose any
reasonable restrictions so that  at least
two hours in each day when such
Register is open are appointed for
inspection

Instruments of transfer.

Subject to the prov1s1ons of Section
76(1) and (5) of the Ordinance, no
transfer of registered debentures shall
be registered unless a proper instrument
of transfer duly stamped and executed
by the transferor and transferee has
been delivered to the Company together
with the certificate or certificates of the
debentures.

Instruments of transfer.

Subject to the provisions of Section 76(1)
and (5) of the Ordinance, no transfer of
registered debentures shall be registered
unless a proper instrument of transfer
duly stamped and executed by the
transferor and transferee has been
delivered to the Company together with
the certificate or certificates of the
debentures.

5337. Not required.

Notice of refusal to register transfer.

The Directors shall not refuse to transfer
debentures unless the transfer deed is
for any reason defective or invalid in
which case the· Company shall, within
thirty days from the date on which the
instrument of transfer was lodged with
the Company, send to the transferee
and the transferor notice of the refusal.

Notice of refusal to register transfer.

The Directors shall not refuse to transfer
debentures unless the transfer deed is
for any reason defective or invalid in
which case the· Company shall, within
thirty days from the date on which the
instrument of transfer was lodged with
the Company, send to the transferee
and the transferor notice  of the refusal.

5438. Not required.

The Company shall comply with the
provisions of Section 136112 of the
OrdinanceAct as to allowing inspection
of copies kept at the office in pursuance
of Section 130107 of the OrdinanceAct
and as to allowing inspection of the
Register of Mortgages to be kept at the
office in pursuance of Section 135112
of the OrdinanceAct.

The Company shall comply with the
provisions of Section 136 of the
Ordinance as to allowing inspection of
copies kept at the office in pursuance
of Section 130 of the Ordinance and as
to allowing inspection of the Register of
Mortgages to be kept at the office in
pursuance of Section 135 of the
Ordinance.

5539. In order to align with
the Companies Act
2017.

The Company shall comply with the
provisions of Section 150(2)124 of the
OrdinanceAct as to supplying copies of
any Register of holders of debentures
or of any trust deed for securing any
issue of debentures, on payment of the
statutory fee.

The Company shall comply with the
provisions of Section 150(2) of the
Ordinance as to supplying copies of
any Register of holders of debentures
or of any trust deed for securing any
issue of debentures, on payment of the
statutory fee.

5640. In order to align with
the Companies Act
2017.

A General Meeting of the Company shall
be held once at least in every calendar
year at such time within a period of six
monthsone hundred and twenty days of

A General Meeting of the Company shall
be held once at least in every calendar
year at such time within a period of six
months of the close of a financial year

6041. In order to align with
the Companies Act
2017.
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the close of a financial year but not more
than fifteen months after the holding of
the last preceding General Meeting, and
at such place as may be determined by
the Directors.

but not more than fifteen months after
the holding of the last preceding General
Meeting, and at such place as may be
determined by the Directors.

6242. The Directors may, whenever they think
fit, call an Extraordinary General Meeting
and an Extraordinary General Meeting
shall also be called on such requisition
as provided by Section 159133 of the
OrdinanceAct.

The Directors may, whenever they think
fit, call an Extraordinary General Meeting
and an Extraordinary General Meeting
shall also be called on such requisition
as provided by Section 159 of the
Ordinance.

In order to align with
the Companies Act
2017.

6343. Not less than twenty one days' (or such
lesser period as may be prescribed in
the Act or by the Commission) notice to
the members specifying the place, the
day and the hour of meeting with a
statement of the business to be
transacted at the meeting shall be given
by advertisement in the manner provided
in sub-section (3) of Section 158 of the
Ordinance and by the notice sent by post
or otherwise served as hereinafter
provided and in the case of an emergency
affecting the business of the company
the Directors may apply to the Registrar
to authorise an Extraordinary General
Meeting to be held at shorter notice.
Provided always that not less than twenty-
one pays notice shall be given of a
meeting to pass a Special Resolution
specifying the intention to propose the
Resolution as a Special Resolution but
if all the members entitled to attend and
vote at any such meeting so agree,
resolution may be proposed and passed
as ·a Special Resolution at a meeting of
which less than twenty-one days' notice
·has been given subject however to the
prior approval of the Registrar authorising
the meeting to be held on a shorter
notice.Section 134 and 140 of the Act.

Not less than twenty one days' notice to
the members specifying the place, the
day and the hour of meeting with a
statement of the business to be
transacted at the meeting shall be given
by advertisement In the manner provided
in sub-section (3) of Section 158 of the
Ordinance and by the notice sent by
post or otherwise served as hereinafter
provided and in the case of an
emergency affecting the business of the
company the Directors may apply to the
Registrar to authorise an Extraordinary
General Meeting to be held at shorter
notice. Provided always that not less
than twenty-one days notice shall be
given of a meeting to pass a Special
Resolution specifying the intention to
propose the Resolution as a Special
Resolution but if all the members entitled
to attend and vote at any such meeting
so agree, resolution may be proposed
and passed as a Special Resolution at
a meeting of which less than twenty-one
days' notice has been given subject
however to the prior approval of the
Registrar authorising the meeting to be
held on a shorter notice.

In order to align with
the Companies Act
2017. And to provide
flexibility in case of
changes in the law.

6544. The business of an Annual General
Meeting shall be to receive and consider
the Profit and Loss Account, the Balance
Sheet and the Reports of the Directors
and of the Auditors to elect and appoint
Directors and Auditors and to fix the
remuneration of Auditors, to declare
dividends and to transact any other
business which under these articles and
under the OrdinanceAct ought to be
transacted at an Annual General Meeting.
All other business transacted at Annual
General Meeting and all business
transacted at an Extraordinary General
Meeting shall be deemed special.

The business of an Annual General
Meeting shall be to receive and consider
the Profit and Loss Account, the Balance
Sheet and the Reports of the Directors
and of the Auditors to elect and appoint
Directors and Auditors and to fix the
remuneration of Auditors, to declare
dividends and to transact any other
business which under these articles and
under the Ordinance ought to be
transacted at an Annual General Meeting.
All other business transacted at Annual
General Meeting and all business
transacted at an Extraordinary General
Meeting shall be deemed special.

In order to align with
the Companies Act
2017.
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Business of Ordinary Meeting.

Resolution of any of the under noted
business unless recommended by the
Board may only be passed by as
affirmative note of two-third of the total
voting Capital of the Company or three
fourths of the votes of those members
present in person or by Proxy and entitled
to vote whichever is the lesser figure:

(i) Increase of the authorized capital
of the company or issuing of
additional share capital.

(ii) Any borrowing in excess of the limit
already approved by the Board.

(iii) Any investment  or  capi ta l
expenditure in excess of the
budgeted figures already approved
by the Board.

Engagement by the Company in any
activity other than the Principal objects
set out in clause III (1) of the
Memorandum of Association of the
Company.Ten members Present
personally or through video link who
represent not less than twenty five percent
of the total voting power, either of their
own account or as proxies shall be quorum
for a General Meeting for all purposes.

Business of Ordinary Meeting.

Resolution of any of the under noted
business unless recommended by the
Board may only be passed by as
affirmative note of two-third of the total
voting Capital of the Company or three
fourths of the votes of those members
present in person or by Proxy and entitled
to vote whichever is the lesser figure:

(i) Increase of the authorized capital
of the company or issuing of
additional share capital.

(ii) Any borrowing in excess of the limit
already approved by the Board.

(iii) Any investment  or  capi ta l
expenditure in excess of the
budgeted figures already approved
by the Board.

Engagement by the Company in any
activity other than the Principal objects
set out in clause III (1) of the Memorandum
of Association of the Company.

Five Ten members Present personally
or through video link who represent not
less than twenty five percent of the total
voting power, either of their own account
or as proxies shall be quorum for a
General Meeting for all purposes.

Five members Present personally who
represent not less than twenty five
percent of the total voting power, either
of their own account or as proxies shall
be quorum for a General Meeting for all
purposes.

6646. In order to align with
the Companies Act
2017.

45. In order to align with
the Companies Act
2017.

No business shall be transacted at any
General Meeting unless quorum
requisite shall be present at the
commencement of business.

No business shall be transacted at any
General Meeting unless quorum
requisite shall be present at the
commencement of business.

6747. Quorum required at
all times.

If within half-an-hour from the time
appointed for the meeting a quorum
be not present, the meeting if
openedconvened upon such requisition
as aforesaid shall be dissolved but, in any
other case it shall stand adjourned to the
same day in the next week at  the same
time and place, and if at such adjourned
meeting a quorum be not present within
half an hour from the time appointed for
the meeting, those members who are
present and not being less than two shall
be a quorum and may transact the
business for which the meeting was called.

If within half-an-hour from the time
appointed for the meeting a quorum be
not present, the meeting if opened upon
such requisition as aforesaid shall be
dissolved but, in any other case it shall
stand adjourned to the same day in the
next week at the same time and place,
and if at such adjourned meeting a
quorum be not present within half an
hour from the time appointed for the
meeting, those members who are present
and not being less than two shall be a
quorum and may transact the business
for which the meeting was called.

6948. Correction of language.
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How questions to be decided at
meetings, Casting votes

Every question submitted to a meeting
shall be decided in the first instance by
a show of hands and in the case of an
equality of votes the Chairman shall,
both on a show of   hands and at the
poll have a casting vote in addition to
the vote or votes for which he may be
entitled as a member.

How questions to be decided at
meetings, Casting votes

Every question submitted to a meeting
shall be decided in the first instance by
a show of hands and in the case of an
equality of votes the Chairman shall,
both on a show of   hands and at the
poll have a casting vote in addition to
the vote or votes for which he may be
entitled as a member.

7150. At a General Meeting a resolution put to
vote in the meeting shall be decided on
a show of hands, unless a poll is (before
or on the declaration of the result of the
show of hands) demanded, in accordance
with the provisions of Section 167143 of
the OrdinanceAct, and unless a poll is
so demanded, a declaration by the
Chairman that a resolution has, on a
show of hands, been carried, or carried
unanimously, or by a particular majority,
or lost, and an entry to the effect in the
book of the proceedings of the Company
shall be conclusive evidence of the fact,
without proof of the number or proportion
of the votes recorded in favour of, or
against that resolution.

At a General Meeting a resolution put
to vote in the meeting shall be decided
on a show of hands, unless a poll is
(before or on the declaration of the result
of the show of hands) demanded, in
accordance with the provisions of
Section 167 of the Ordinance, and unless
a poll is so demanded, a declaration by
the Chairman that a resolution has, on
a show of hands, been carried, or carried
unanimously, or by a particular majority,
or lost, and an entry to the effect in the
book of the proceedings of the Company
shall be conclusive evidence of the fact,
without proof of the number or proportion
of the votes recorded in favour of, or
against that resolution.

In order to align with
the Companies Act
2017.

7049. Covered elsewhere,
also Chairman not to
have casting vote.

7251. If a poll be demanded as aforesaid it
shall (subject to Article 7570) be taken
in such manner and at such time not
more than fourteen days from the day
on which it is demanded, and such place
as the Chairman of the meeting directs
and either at once or after interval
adjournment or otherwise, and the result
of the poll shall be deemed to be the
resolution of the meeting at which the
poll was demanded. The demand of a
poll may be withdrawn. In case of any
dispute as to the admission or rejection
of a vote, the Chairman shall determine
the same and such determination made
in good faith shall be final and conclusive.

If a poll be demanded as aforesaid it
shall (subject to Article 75) be taken in
such manner and at such time not more
than fourteen days from the day on which
it is demanded, and such place as the
Chairman of the meeting directs and
either at once or after interval
adjournment or otherwise, and the result
of the poll shall be deemed to be the
resolution of the meeting at which the
poll was demanded. The demand of a
poll may be withdrawn. In case of any
dispute as to the admission or rejection
of a vote, the Chairman shall determine
the same and such determination made
in good faith shall be final and conclusive.

In order to align with
the Companies Act
2017.

7652. Subject to any special rights and
restrictions as to voting upon which any
shares may be held, on a show of hands
every member present in person shall
have one vote and every person present
as a General Proxy (as defined in Articles
177 hereof, but who is not a, member
of the company or who is a member not
qualified to vote) on behalf of a holder
or holders of shares shall have one vote
and upon a poll every member present

Subject to any special rights and
restrictions as to voting upon which any
shares may be held, on a show of hands
every member present in person shall
have one vote and every person present
as a General Proxy (as defined in Articles
1 hereof, but who is not a, member of
the company or who is a member not
qualified to vote) on behalf of a holder
or holders of shares shall have one vote
and upon a poll every member present

In order to align with
the Companies Act
2017.
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in person or by proxy shall have one
vote for every share held by him,
provided that no company shall vote by
proxy so long as a resolution of its
directors under the provisions of Section
162 of the Ordinance in force.. Provided
further that the votes in relation to
election of Directors shall be determined
and exercised as mentioned in Article
9994 herein.

in person or by proxy shall have one
vote for every share held by him,
provided that no company shall vote by
proxy so long as a resolution of its
directors under the provisions of Section
162 of the Ordinance in force. Provided
further that the votes in relation to
election of Directors shall be determined
and exercised as mentioned in Article
99 herein.

7753. Where another company is a member of
the Company, a person duly appointed to
represent such company at a meeting of
the Company in accordance with the
provisions of Section 162 of the Ordinance,
shall not be deemed to be a proxy, and the
production at the meeting of a copy of such
resolution duly signed by one Director of
such company and certified by him as
being a true copy of the resolution shall on
production at the meeting be accepted by
the Company as sufficient evidence of the
validity of his appointment.138 of the Act,
shall not be deemed to be a proxy.

Where another company is a member
of the Company, a person duly appointed
to represent such company at a meeting
of the Company in accordance with the
provisions of Section 162 of the
Ordinance, shall not be deemed to be
a proxy, and the production at the
meeting of a copy of such resolution
duly signed by one Director of such
company and certified by him as being
a true copy of the resolution shall on
production at the meeting be accepted
by the Company as sufficient evidence
of the validity of his appointment.

In order to align with
the Companies Act
2017.

7854. Any person enti t led under the
Transmission Article to transfer any
shares may vote at any General Meeting
in respect thereof in the same manner
as if he were the registered holder of
such shares, provided that forty eight
hours at least before the time of holding
the meeting or adjourned meeting as
the case may be at which he proposes
to vote he shall satisfy the Directors of
his right to transfer such shares, or the
Directors shall have previously admitted
his right to vote at such meeting in respect
thereof. If any member be a lunatic idiot
or non compose mentis; he may vote
whether by a show of hands or at a poll
but his committee, curator bonis or other
legal curator and such last mentioned
persons may give their votes by proxy.

Any person enti t led under the
Transmission Article to transfer any
shares may vote at any General Meeting
in respect thereof in the same manner
as if he were the registered holder of
such shares, provided that forty eight
hours at least before the time of holding
the meeting or adjourned meeting as
the case may be at which he proposes
to vote he shall satisfy the Directors of
his right to transfer such shares, or the
Directors shall have previously admitted
his right to vote at such meeting in respect
thereof. If any member be a lunatic idiot
or non compose mentis; he may vote
whether by a show of hands or at a poll
but his committee, curator bonis or other
legal curator and such last mentioned
persons may give their votes by proxy.

This provision was not
practical.

8155. The instrument appointing a proxy shall
be in writing under the hand of the
appointer or of his Attorney duly
authorized in writing or if such appointer
is a corporation under its common seal
or the hand of its Attorney. A proxy who
is appointed for a specified meeting only
shall be called Special proxy. Any other
proxy shall be called a General proxy.
No person shall be appointed as Special
proxy who is not a member of the
Company and qualified to vote.

The instrument appointing a proxy shall
be in writing under the hand of the
appointer or of his Attorney duly
authorized in writing or if such appointer
is a corporation under its common seal
or the hand of its Attorney. A proxy who
is appointed for a specified meeting only
shall be called Special proxy. Any other
proxy shall be called a General proxy.
No person shall be appointed as Special
proxy who is not a member of the
Company and qualified to vote.

Not the practice to
a p p o i n t  s p e c i a l
proxies.
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"Notwithstanding anything contained in
these Articles, in case of voting by
electronic means, both members and
non-members can be appointed as
Special Proxy or General Proxy"..

"Notwithstanding anything contained in
these Articles, in case of voting by
electronic means, both members and
non-members can be appointed as
Special Proxy or General Proxy".

82A57. "Notwithstanding anything contained in
these Articles, for the purposes of voting
by electronic means, the instrument
appointing the proxy shall be in such
form, and provided to the Company, in
the manner stipulated under the
applicable laws"..

"Notwithstanding anything contained in
these Articles, for the purposes of voting
by electronic means, the instrument
appointing the proxy shall be in such
form, and provided to the Company, in
the manner stipulated under the
applicable laws".

In order to align with
the Companies Act
2017.

81A56.

8658. Until otherwise determined by the
Company in General Meeting theThe
number of elected Directors shall not be
less than seven nor more than twelve
excluding Directors nominated by the
Company's Creditors or other special
interest by vir tue of contractual
arrangements as mentioned in Section
182164 of the OrdinanceAct.

(a) So Long as at least two of the
Directors are persons representing
DYNO Industries A.S. and Mr. Rafiq
M. Habib, the Chairman of the
Board and his Chief Executive shall
be appointed by the Board from
among such representat ive
Directors, (the Chairman being a
representative of DYNO Industries
and the Chief Executive a
representative of Mr. Rafiq M.
Habib).

All subsequent Directors shall be elected
in the manner prescribed by Section 178
and shall hold office for the term
prescribed by Section 180 of the
Ordinance.

Until otherwise determined by the
Company in General Meeting the
number of elected Directors shall not be
less than seven nor more than twelve
excluding Directors nominated by the
Company's Creditors or other special
interest by vir tue of contractual
arrangements as mentioned in Section
182 of the Ordinance.

(a) So Long as at least two of the
Directors are persons representing
DYNO Industries A.S. and Mr. Rafiq
M. Habib, the Chairman of the
Board and his Chief Executive shall
be appointed by the Board from
among such representat ive
Directors, (the Chairman being a
representative of DYNO Industries
and the Chief Executive a
representative of Mr. Rafiq M.
Habib).

All subsequent Directors shall be elected
in the manner prescribed by Section 178
and shall hold office for the term
prescribed by Section 180 of the
Ordinance.

In order to align with
the Companies Act
2017.

8759. Ex-Officio Directors.
Any member who is the registered holder
of a sufficient number of shares to ensure
the election of one or more Directors may
at any time give notice in writing to the
Company that the persons named in such
notice are to be deemed to be the
Directors representing the notice giver
and any such representative Director may
be a like notice be removed and replaced
by the notice giver. Representative
Directors shall not require any share
qualification: No member may give notice
under this article in respect of more
Directors than his share holding would
enable him to elect.

Ex-Officio Directors.
Any member who is the registered holder
of a sufficient number of shares to ensure
the election of one or more Directors may
at any time give notice in writing to the
Company that the persons named in such
notice are to be deemed to be the
Directors representing the notice giver
and any such representative Director may
be a like notice be removed and replaced
by the notice giver. Representative
Directors shall not require any share
qualification: No member may give notice
under this article in respect of more
Directors than his share holding would
enable him to elect.

Not the practice.

In order to align with
the Companies Act
2017.
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The qualification of a Director, relaxable
by the Controller of Capital Issues, shall
be the holding of shares in the Company
of hethe nominal value of Rs. 5000/- at
least in his own name but a Director
representing an interest holding shares
of the nominal value of Rs. 5000/- or
more shall require no share qualification.

The qualification of a Director, relaxable
by the Controller of Capital Issues, shall
be the holding of shares in the Company
of he nominal value of Rs. 5000/- at least
in his own name but a Director
representing an interest holding shares
of the nominal value of Rs. 5000/- or
more shall require no share qualification.

9061. Failure of Director to acquire qualification

If a Director fails to acquire his share
qualification within two months, he shall
cease to be a Director forthwith but all
acts done by him during the interim
period of his office as Director shall be
held to have been properly done.

Failure of Director to acquire qualification

If a Director fails to acquire his share
qualification within two months, he shall
cease to be a Director forthwith but all
acts done by him during the interim
period of his office as Director shall be
held to have been properly done.

In order to align with
the Companies Act
2017.

8960. In order to align with
the Companies Act
2017.

9162. The remuneration of Director shall, from
time to time be determined by the Board
of Directors and unless otherwise
determined shall not exceed Rs. 500/=
per meeting in which the Director shall
be present. The Directors shall be paid
such travelling, boarding, lodging and
other expenses properly incurred by
them in or about the performance of
their duties or business if any of them
has to come to attend the Board Meeting
from outstation.

The remuneration of Director shall, from
time to time be determined by the Board
of Directors and unless otherwise
determined shall not exceed Rs. 500/=
per meeting in which the Director shall
be present. The Directors shall be paid
such travelling, boarding, lodging and
other expenses properly incurred by
them in or about the performance of
their duties or business if any of them
has to come to attend the Board Meeting
from outstation.

Rs. 500/- limit was a
historical anomaly.

93(e)63. he or any firm of which he is a partner
or any private company of which he is
a Director without the sanction of the
Company in General Meetings accepts
or holds any office of profit under the
Company other than that of a Chief
Executive or legal or technical adviser
or a banker in contravention of the
provisions of Section 188 (i) (c) 171 (1)
(c) of the OrdinanceAct;

he or any firm of which he is a partner
or any private company of which he is
a Director without the sanction of the
Company in General Meetings accepts
or holds any office of profit under the
Company other than that of a Chief
Executive or legal or technical adviser or
a banker in contravention of the provisions
of Section 188 (i) (c) of the Ordinance;

In order to align with
the Companies Act
2017.

93(f)64. he absents himself from three
consecutive meetings of the Directors
or from all meetings of the Directors for
a continuous period of three months,
whichever is the longer, without seeking
leave of absence from the Board of
Directors; or

he absents himself from three
consecutive meetings of the Directors
or from all meetings of the Directors for
a continuous period of three months,
whichever is the longer, without leave
of absence from the Board of Directors;
or

To align the composition
of sentence.

93(g)65. he or any firm of which he is a partner
or any private Company of which he is
a Director accepts a loan or a guarantee
from the Company in contravention of
Section 195182 of the OrdinanceAct; or

he or any firm of which he is a partner
or any private Company of which he is
a Director accepts a loan or a guarantee
from the Company in contravention of
Section 195 of the Ordinance; or

In order to align with
the Companies Act
2017.

93(h)66. he acts in contravention of Section
214205 of the OrdinanceAct; or

he acts in contravention of Section 214
of the Ordinance; or

In order to align with
the Companies Act
2017.
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(not being Debenture Director) he is
removed from the office yby Resolution
of the Company in General Meeting in
accordance with Section 181163 of the
OrdinanceAct;

(not being Debenture Director) he is
removed from the office y Resolution of
the Company in General Meeting in
accordance with Section 181 of the
Ordinance;

93(j)67. Not required.

(not being Debenture Director) he be in
writing requested by all his Co-Directors
to resign.

(not being Debenture Director) he be in
writing requested by all his Co-Directors
to resign.

Not required.93(k)68.

he has betrayed lack of fiduciary behavior
and a declaration to the effect has been
made by the Court under section 217212
of the OrdinanceAct at any time during
the preceding five years.

he has betrayed lack of fiduciary behavior
and a declaration to the effect has been
made by the Court under section 217
of the Ordinance at any time during the
preceding five years.

In order to align with
the Companies Act
2017.

93(l)69.

Subject to the provisions of Sections
196(2), 214 & 216 of183, 205 & 207of
the OrdinanceAct the Directors shall not
be disqualified from contracting with the
Company either as vendor, purchaser
or otherwise, nor shall any such contract
or arrangement entered into by or on
behalf of the Company, with any
Company or partnership of or in which
any Director shall be a member or
otherwise interested be void nor shall
any ,Director so contracting or being
such member or so interested  be liable
to account to the Company for any profit
realised by any such contract or
arrangement by reason of such Director
holding that office or of the fiduciary
relation hereby established, but the
nature of their or his interest must be
disclosed by them or him at the meeting
of the Directors at which the contract or
arrangement is determined on, if the
interest then exists, or in any other case
at the first meeting of the Directors after
the acquisition of the interest. Provided
nevertheless that no Director shall vote
as a Director in respect of any contract
or arrangement in which he is so
interested as aforesaid, and if does so
vote, his vote shall not be counted, but
he shall be entitled to be present at the
meeting during the transaction of the
business in relation to which he is
precluded from voting. This provision
shall not apply to any contract by or on
behalf of the Company to give to the
Directors or any of the security for
advances or by way of indemnity against
any loss which they or any of them may
suffer by reason of becoming or being
sureties for the Company. A general
notice that any Director is a Director or

Subject to the provisions of Sections
196(2), 214 & 216 of the Ordinance the
Directors shall not be disqualified from
contracting with the Company either as
vendor, purchaser or otherwise, nor shall
any such contract or arrangement
entered into by or on behalf of the
Company, with any Company or
partnership of or in which any Director
shall be a member or otherwise
interested be void nor shall any ,Director
so contracting or being such member
or so interested  be liable to account to
the Company for any profit realised by
any such contract or arrangement by
reason of such Director holding that
office or of the fiduciary relation hereby
established, but the nature of their or
his interest must be disclosed by them
or him at the meeting of the Directors
at which the contract or arrangement is
determined on, if the interest then exists,
or in any other case at the first meeting
of the Directors after the acquisition of
the interest. Provided nevertheless that
no Director shall vote as a Director in
respect of any contract or arrangement
in which he is so interested as aforesaid,
and if does so vote, his vote shall not
be counted, but he shall be entitled to
be present at the meeting during the
transaction of the business in relation
to which he is precluded from voting.
This provision shall not apply to any
contract by or on behalf of the Company
to give to the Directors or any of the
security for advances or by way of
indemnity against any loss which they
or any of them may suffer by reason of
becoming or being sureties for the
Company. A general notice that any
Director is a Director or a member of

In order to align with
the Companies Act
2017.

9470.
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a member of any specified company or
is a member of any specified firm and
is to be regarded as interested in any
subsequent transaction with such firm
or company shall as regards any such
transaction be sufficient disclosure under
this Article and such general notice shall
expire at the end of the financial year in
which it is given but may be renewed for
further period of one financial year at a
time, by a fresh notice given in the last
month of the financial year in which it
would otherwise expire.

any specified company or is a member
of any specified firm and is to be
regarded as interested in any
subsequent transaction with such firm
or company shall as regards any such
transaction be sufficient disclosure under
this Article and such general notice shall
expire at the end of the financial year in
which it is given but may be renewed for
further period of one financial year at a
time, by a fresh notice given in the last
month of the financial year in which it
would otherwise expire.

A Director except the Directors
nominated by Company's Creditors or
other special interests by virtue of
contractual arrangements shall hold
office for a period of three years unless
he earlier resigns, becomes disqualified
for being a Director or otherwise ceases
to hold office in terms of the provisions
of the OrdinanceAct.

A Director except the Directors
nominated by Company's Creditors or
other special interests by virtue of
contractual arrangements shall hold
office for a period of three years unless
he earlier resigns, becomes disqualified
for being a Director or otherwise ceases
to hold office in terms of the provisions
of the Ordinance.

In order to align with
the Companies Act
2017.

9671.

Retiring Directors to remain in office till
successors are appointed.

If at any meeting at which an election
of Directors ought to take place the
places of the vacating  Directors are not
filled up, the meeting shell stand
adjourned till the same day in the next
week at the same time and place and,
if at the adjourned meeting the places
of the vacating Directors are not filled-
up, the vacating Directors or such of
them as have not had their places filled-
up shall be deemed to have been re-
elected at the adjourned meetings, if
nothing to the contrary is indicated by
the Registrar upon a report to be
furnished to him within fifteen days of
the expiry of the terms of the Directors
pursuant' to Section 177 of the
Ordinance.

Retiring Directors to remain in office till
successors are appointed.

If at any meeting at which an election
of Directors ought to take place the
places of the vacating  Directors are not
filled up, the meeting shell stand
adjourned till the same day in the next
week at the same time and place and,
if at the adjourned meeting the places
of the vacating Directors are not filled-
up, the vacating Directors or such of
them as have not had their places filled-
up shall be deemed to have been re-
elected at the adjourned meetings, if
nothing to the contrary is indicated by
the Registrar upon a report to be
furnished to him within fifteen days of
the expiry of the terms of the Directors
pursuant' to Section 177 of the
Ordinance.

Not the practice or
the law.

9972.

Power of Directors to increase or reducefix
 the number of Directors.

Subject to the provisions of Section
178(1)159 o f  the  Companies
OrdinanceAct, the Company in Board
of Directors meeting may from time to
time increase or reducefix the number
of Directors to be elected

Power of Directors to increase or reduce
the number of Directors.

Subject to the provisions of Section
178(1) of the Companies Ordinance, the
Company in Board of Directors meeting
may from time to time increase or reduce
the number of Directors.

In order to align the
c o m p o s i t i o n  o f
sentence and with
the Companies Act
2017.

10073.

The Company may, by resolution in
general· meeting remove any Director,
whose period of office is liable to

The Company may, by resolution in
general meeting remove any Director,
whose period of office is liable to

In order to align with
the Companies Act
2017.

10174.
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termination at any time by retirement of
Directors, before the expiration of his
period of office, and may appoint another
person in his stead. The person so
appointed shall be subject to retirement
at the same time as if he had become
a Director on the day on which the
Director in whose place he is appointed
was last' elected Director. A Director so
removed shall not be re-appointed a
Director by the Board of Director.
Provided that a resolution for removing
a Director shall not be deemed to have
been passed unless the number of votes
cast in favour of such a resolution is not
less than:-

(a) the minimum number of votes that
were cast for the election of a
Director at the immediately
preceding election of Directors, if
the resolution relates to removal of
a Director elected in the manner
provided in Article 99 hereof; or

(b) the total number of votes for the
time being computed in the manner
laid down in Article 99 hereof
divided by the number of Directors
for the time being if the resolution
relates to removal of a Director
appointed under Article 100 hereof.

The Company may, by resolution in
general meeting remove any Director in
accordance with the requirements of
Section 163 of the Act.

termination at any time by retirement of
Directors, before the expiration of his
period of office, and may appoint another
person in his stead. The person so
appointed shall be subject to retirement
at the same time as if he had become
a Director on the day on which the
Director in whose place he is appointed
was last' elected Director. A Director so
removed shall not be re-appointed a
Director by the Board of Director.
Provided that a resolution for removing
a Director shall not be deemed to have
been passed unless the number of votes
cast in favour of such a resolution is not
less than:-

(a) the minimum number of votes that
were cast for the election of a
Director at the immediately
preceding election of Directors, if
the resolution relates to removal of
a Director elected in the manner
provided in Article 99 hereof; or

(b) the total number of votes for the
time being computed in the manner
laid down in Article 99 hereof
divided by the number of Directors
for the time being if the resolution
relates to removal of a Director
appointed under Article 100 hereof.

No person including retiring Director
shall, be eligible for election to the office
of Director at any General Meeting,
unless he has, not less than fourteen
days nor more than two months before
the meeting, left at the office of the
Company a notice in writing duly signed
signifying his candidature for the office
and the same shall be transmitted to the
members as per section 178159 of the
OrdinanceAct. Any such person may, at
any time before the holding of election
withdraw such notice.

No person including retiring Director
shall, be eligible for election to the office
of Director at any General Meeting,
unless he has, not less than fourteen
days nor more than two months before
the meeting, left at the office of the
Company a notice in writing duly signed
signifying his candidature for the office
and the same shall be transmitted to the
members as per section 178 of the
Ordinance. Any such person may, at any
time before the holding of election
withdraw such notice.

In order to align with
the Companies Act
2017.

10375.

The Company shall keep at its office a
register containing names and
addresses and occupations and other
particulars required by Section 205197
of the OrdinanceAct of its Directors and
shall send to the Registrar a return and
shall also from time to time notify to the

The Company shall keep at its office a
register containing names and
addresses and occupations and other
particulars required by Section 205 of
the Ordinance of its Directors and shall
send to the Registrar a return and shall
also from time to time notify to the

In order to align with
the Companies Act
2017.

10476.

COMPARATIVE ANALYSIS OF EXISTING
CLAUSE WITH THE PROPOSED AMENDMENT
ALONG WITH REASONS FOR THE CHANGE



118 DYNEA PAKISTAN LIMITEDANNUAL REPORT 2021

Proposed AmendmentS.No. Clause
No. Existing Clause Reasons

for the Change

Registrar any change that takes place
in such Directors as required by Section
205197 of the OrdinanceAct.

Registrar any change that takes place
in such Directors as required by Section
205 of the Ordinance.

A Director may with the approval of the
Board of Directors appoint any member
of the Company or other person to be
his Alternate Director during an absence
of not less than three months from
Pakistan and such appointment shall
have effect and such appointee while he
holds office as an Alternate Director shall
be entitled to notice of meetings of
Directors and to attend and vote there
accordingly and generally to exercise all
the rights and functions of such absent
Director subject to provision of Section
192(1) of the Ordinance, (including the
rights and functions of the Managing
Director if he shall be the appointer)
further subject to any limitations or
restrictions in the instrument appointer
him,174 of the Act but he shall not require
any qualification and he shall ipso facto
vacate office if and when his appointer
returns to Pakistan or vacates office as
a Director or removes him by notice In
writing addressed to the Company.

A Director may with the approval of the
Board of Directors appoint any member
of the Company or other person to be
his Alternate Director during an absence
of not less than three months from
Pakistan and such appointment shall
have effect and such appointee while
he holds office as an Alternate Director
shall be entitled to notice of meetings
of Directors and to attend and vote there
accordingly and generally to exercise all
the rights and functions of such absent
Director subject to provision of Section
192(1) of the Ordinance, (including the
rights and functions of the Managing
Director if he shall be the appointer)
further subject to any limitations or
restrictions in the instrument appointer
him, but he shall not require any
qualification and he shall ipso facto
vacate office if and when his appointer
returns to Pakistan or vacates office as
a Director or removes him by notice In
writing addressed to the Company.

Not the practice for
an alternate director
to have the powers of
a Chief Executive.

10577.

b.(a) The Directors may meet together
for the despatchdispatch of business,
adjourn and otherwise regulate their
meetings and proceedings as they
think fit. They shall however, meet
at least twiceonce in a yearevery
calendar quarter. The quorum at a
Directors' meeting shall be one-third
their number or four whichever is
greater.

Or if a Director or Alternate Director
present at a meeting is also an
Alternate for one or more other
Directors, all the Directors whom·
he represents shall be deemed to
be present at such meeting and the
Director or Alternate Director
personally present shall be entitled
to exercise all the votes of the other
Directors whom he represents.

(b) All decisions at Board Meetings
shall be by vote of the majority of
the Directors present at a Meeting
except that decisions on the
following matters shall that require
an affirmative votea greater majority
under the provisions of all the
Directors.Act.

a. The Directors may meet together
for the despatch of business,
adjourn and otherwise regulate their
meetings and proceedings as they
think fit. They shall however, meet
at least twice in a year. The quorum
at a Directors' meeting shall be one-
third their number or four whichever
is greater.

Or if a Director or Alternate Director
present at a meeting is also an
Alternate for one or more other
Directors, all the Directors whom·
he represents shall be deemed to
be present at such meeting and the
Director or Alternate Director
personally present shall be entitled
to exercise all the votes of the other
Directors whom he represents.

(a) All decisions at Board Meetings
shall be by vote of the majority of
the Directors present at a Meeting
except that decisions on the
following matters shall require an
affirmative vote of all the Directors.

In order to align with
the Companies Act
2017.

10878.
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i. Increase of the authorized capital
of the Company or issuing of
additional share capital.

ii. Any borrowing in excess of the limit
already approved by the Board.

iii. Any investment  or  capi ta l
expenditure in excess of the
budgeted figures already approved
by the Board.

iv. Engagement by the Company in
any activity other than the principal
objects set out in Clause Ill (1) of
the Memorandum of Association of
the Company.

i. Any dividend recommendation
which would make the distribution
for the year lower than 20 per cent
of the issued share capital or 75
per cent of the net profit  after  tax
but before  providing for reserves,
whichever is the lesser figure.

i. Increase of the authorized capital
of the Company or issuing of
additional share capital.

ii. Any borrowing in excess of the limit
already approved by the Board.

iii. Any investment  or  capi ta l
expenditure in excess of the
budgeted figures already approved
by the Board.

iv. Engagement by the Company in
any activity other than the principal
objects set out in Clause Ill (1) of
the Memorandum of Association of
the Company.

i. Any dividend recommendation
which would make the distribution
for the year lower than 20 per cent
of the issued share capital or 75
per cent of the net profit  after  tax
but before  providing for reserves,
whichever is the lesser figure.

A Director may, at any time, convene a
meeting of Directors. It shall not be
necessary to give notice if a meeting of
the Directors to a Director who is not for
the time being resident in Pakistan.
Questions arising at any meeting shall
be decided by a majority of votes and in
case of an equality of votes the Chairman
shall have a second or casting vote.

A Director may, at any time, convene a
meeting of Directors. It shall not be
necessary to give notice if a meeting of
the Directors to a Director who is not for
the time being resident in Pakistan.
Questions arising at any meeting shall
be decided by a majority of votes and in
case of an equality of votes the Chairman
shall have a second or casting vote.

10979. In order to align with
the Companies Act
2 0 1 7  a n d  t h e
Chairman not to have
a casting vote.

If at any meeting of the Directors the
ex-officio Chairman be not present at
the time appointed for holding the same,
the Directors present shall choose some
one of them to be the Chairman of such
meeting.

If at any meeting of the Directors the
ex-officio Chairman be not present at
the time appointed for holding the same,
the Directors present shall choose some
one of them to be the Chairman of such
meeting.

11080. Full time Chairman is
required.

The Directors may delegate any of their
powers to CommitteeCommittees
consisting of such member or members
of their body as they think fit and may
from time to time revoke such delegation.
Any committee formed shall in the
exercise of the powers so delegated
conform to any regulations that may
from time to time be imposed upon it by
the Directors.

The Directors may delegate any of their
powers to Committee consisting of such
member or members of their body as
they think fit and may from time to time
revoke such delegation.  Any committee
formed shall in the exercise of the powers
so delegated conform to any regulations
that may from time to time be imposed
upon it by the Directors.

11281. In order to align with
the Companies Act
2017 and the Listed
Companies (Code of
C o r p o r a t e
G o v e r n a n c e )
Regulations, 2019 .

A resolution circulated in writing and
signed or initialed by all the Directors,
except for the time beingthose items
mentioned in Pakistan (not being less
than quorum for a meetingSection 183
of the Directors)Act, shall be as valid

A resolution in writing signed or initialed
by the Directors for the time being in
Pakistan (not being less than quorum
for a meeting of the Directors) shall be
as valid and effectual as if it has been
passed at meeting of the Directors duly

11482. In order to align with
the Companies Act
2017.

COMPARATIVE ANALYSIS OF EXISTING
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and effectual as if it has been passed
at meeting of the Directors duly called
and constituted. A certificate by the
Chairman at the foot of any such
resolution certifying that the Directors
signing or initialing the resolution are all
the Directors present in Pakistan at the
date of the resolution shall be final and
conclusive in that behalf.

called and constituted. A certificate by
the Chairman at the foot of any such
resolution certifying that the Directors
signing or initialing the resolution are all
the Directors present in Pakistan at the
date of the resolution shall be final and
conclusive in that behalf.

Of the appointment of Chief Executive
as per Section 198 and 199 186 and
187 of the OrdinanceAct.

Of the appointment of Chief Executive
as per Section 198 and 199 of the
Ordinance.

116(e)83. In order to align with
the Companies Act
2017.

Without prejudice to the General powers
conferred by the Act and the last
preceding Article and the other powers
conferred by these presents, it is hereby
expressly declared that the Directors
shall have the following powers, that is
to say power.

Without prejudice to the General powers
conferred by the last preceding Article
and the other powers conferred by these
presents, it is hereby expressly declared
that the Directors shall have the following
powers, that is to say power.

11884. In order to align with
the Companies Act
2017.

To purchase on otherwise acquire far
the Company any property, rights or
privileges which the Company is
authorised to acquire at such price and
generally on such terms and conditions
as they think fit and, subject to the
provisions of Section 196183(3) of the
OrdinanceAct to sell, let, exchange or
otherwise dispose of absolutely or
conditionally any part of the property,
privileges and undertaking of the
Company upon such terms and
conditions and for such consideration
as they may think fit.

To purchase on otherwise acquire far
the Company any property, rights or
privileges which the Company is
authorised to acquire at such price and
generally on such terms and conditions
as they think fit and, subject to the
provisions of Section 196(3) of the
Ordinance to sell, let, exchange or
otherwise dispose of absolutely or
conditionally any part of the property,
privileges and undertaking of the
Company upon such terms and
conditions and for such consideration
as they may think fit.

118(2)85. In order to align with
the Companies Act
2017.

Subject to the provisions of Section
196183(3) of the OrdinanceAct to
institute, conduct, defend, compound
and abandon any legal proceedings by
on against the company on its officers
or otherwise concerning the affairs of
the company and also to compound and
allow time for payment or satisfaction of
any claim or demands by or against the
Company.

Subject to the provisions of Section
196(3) of the Ordinance to institute,
conduct, defend, compound and
abandon any legal proceedings by on
against the company on its officers or
otherwise concerning the affairs of the
company and also to compound and
allow time for payment or satisfaction of
any claim or demands by or against the
Company.

118(6)86. In order to align with
the Companies Act
2017.

Subject to the provisions of Section
95, 10586, 182 and 108199 of the
OrdinanceAct to invest and deal with
any of the money of the company not
immediately required for the purposes
thereof upon such securities (not being
shares in this Company) and in such
manner as they think fit, and from time
to time to vary or realise such investment.

Subject to the provisions of Section 95,
105 and 108 of the Ordinance to invest
and deal with any of the money of the
company not immediately required for
the purposes thereof upon such
securities (not being shares in this
Company) and in such manner as they
think fit, and from time to time to vary
or realise such investment.

118(10)87. In order to align with
the Companies Act
2017.
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To execute in the name and on behalf
of the Company in favour of any Director
or other person who may incur or be
about to incur any personal liability for
the benefit of the Company such
mortgages of the Company's property
(present and future) as they think fit,
and any such mortgage may contain a
power of sale and such other powers,
convenient and provisions as shall be
agreed upon.

To execute in the name and on behalf
of the Company in favour of any Director
or other person who may incur or be
about to incur any personal liability for
the benefit of the Company such
mortgages of the Company's property
(present and future) as they think fit,
and any such mortgage may contain a
power of sale and such other powers,
convenient and provisions as shall be
agreed upon.

Subject to the provisions of Section
227218 of the OrdinanceAct before
recommending any dividends to set aside
portions of the profits of the Company to
form a Fund to provide for such pensions,
gratuities, or compensation; or to create
any providentProvident or Benefit Fund
in such or any other manner as the
Directors may deem fit.

Subject to the provisions of Section 227
of the Ordinance before recommending
any dividends to set aside portions of
the profits of the Company to form a
Fund to provide for such pensions,
gratuities, or compensation; or to create
any provident or Benefit Fund in such
or any other manner as the Directors
may deem fit.

118(14)89. In order to align with
the Companies Act
2017.

118(11)88. Correction of language.

To pay any interest, mark up or any other
financial expenses lawfully payable.

To pay any interest or any other financial
expenses lawfully payable.

118(18)90. To provide for mark up
in addition to interest.

Subject to Section 197184 of the
OrdinanceAct, to provide for the welfare
of any employee or employees of the
Company and the wives, widows and
famil ies or the dependents or
connections of such person, by building
or contributing to the buildings of houses
or dwellings or chawls, or by grants of
money, pensions, allowances, bonus or
other payments or by creating and  from
time  to  time  subscribing or  contributing
to prov ident  funds and other
associations, institutions, funds or trusts
and providing or subscribing or
contributing towards places of  instruction
and recreation, mosques, schools,
colleges, universities, hospitals and
dispensaries, medical and other
attendance and such other assistance
as the  Directors shall think fit; and to
subscribe to, contribute or otherwise to
assist or to guarantee money to
charitable, benevolent, religious,
scientific, national or other objects which
shall have any moral or other claim to
support or aid by the Company either
by  reason  of locality  or  operation  or
of public  and general utility or otherwise.

Subject to Section 197 of the Ordinance,
to provide for the welfare of any
employee or employees of the Company
and the wives, widows and families or
the dependents or connections of such
person, by building or contributing to the
buildings of houses dwellings or chawls,
or by grants of money, pensions,
allowances, bonus or other payments
or by creating and  from  time  to  time
subscribing or  contributing  to provident
funds and other associations, institutions,
funds or trusts and providing or
subscribing or contributing towards
places  of  instruction  and recreation,
mosques, schools, colleges,  universities,
hospitals  and  dispensaries,  medical
and other attendance and such other
assistance as the  Directors shall think
fit; and to subscribe to, contribute or
otherwise to assist or to guarantee
money to charitable, benevolent,
religious, scientific, national or other
objects which shall have any moral or
other claim to support or aid by the
Company either  by  reason  of locality
or  operation  or of public  and general
utility or otherwise.

118(24)91. In order to align with
the Companies Act
2017.

Before recommending any dividend, to
set aside out of the profits of the
Company such sums as they may think
proper for Depreciation Funds, Reserve
Fund or Sinking Fund or any special

Before recommending any dividend, to
set aside out of the profits of the
Company such sums as they may think
proper for Depreciation Funds, Reserve
Fund or Sinking Fund or any special

118(25)92. To improve language
and flexibility.
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fund to meet contingencies or to repay
debentures or debenture-stock, for special
dividends or for equalizing dividends or
for repairing, improving, extending and
maintaining  any  part  of the  property
of the  Company, and for such other
purposes (including the purposes referred
to in the preceding clause) as the
Directors may, in their absolute discretion
think conducive to the interest of the
Company, and to invest the several sums
so set aside or so much thereof as are
required to be invested upon such
investments (subject to the restrictions
imposed by the provisions of the
OrdinanceAct) as the Directors may think
fit and from time to time to deal with and
vary such investments and dispose of
and apply and expend all or any part
thereof for the benefit of the Company in
such manner and for such purpose as
the Directors (subject to such restrictions
as aforesaid) in the Companythink fit
notwithstanding that the matters to which
the Directors apply or upon which they
expend the same, or any part thereof,
may be matters to or upon which the
capital money of the Company might
rightly be applied or expended, and to
divide the Reserve Fund into such special
funds as the Directors may think fit, and
to employ the assets constituting all or
any of the funds, including the
Depreciation Funds, in the business of
the Company or in the purchase or
payment of debentures or debenture-stock
and that without being bound to pay
interest on the same separate from the
other assets,other investments with
power, however, to the Directors at their
discretion to pay or allow to the credit of
such fund interest at such rate as the
Directors may think proper.

fund to meet contingencies or to repay
debentures or debenture-stock, for special
dividends or for equalizing dividends or
for repairing, improving, extending and
maintaining any part of the  property of
the Company, and for such other
purposes (including the purposes referred
to in the preceding clause) as the
Directors may, in their absolute discretion
think conducive to the interest of the
Company, and to invest the several sums
so set aside or so much thereof as are
required to be invested upon such
investments (subject to the restrictions
imposed by the provisions of the
Ordinance) as the Directors may think fit
and from time to time to deal with and
vary such investments and dispose of
and apply and expend all or any part
thereof for the benefit of the Company in
such manner and for such purpose as
the Directors (subject to such restrictions
as aforesaid) in the Company
notwithstanding that the matters to which
the Directors apply or upon which they
expend the same, or any part thereof,
may be matters to or upon which the
capital money of the Company might
rightly be applied or expended, and to
divide the Reserve Fund into such special
funds as the Directors may think fit, and
to employ the assets constituting all or
any of the funds, including the
Depreciation Funds, in the business of
the Company or in the purchase or
payment of debentures or debenture-stock
and that without being bound to pay
interest on the same separate from the
other assets, with power, however, to the
Directors at their discretion to pay
or allow to the credit of such fund
interest at such rate as the Directors may
think proper.

118(27)93. (a) To appoint and at their discretion
remove or suspend managers,
secretaries, treasurers, officers, clerks,
agents and servants for permanent,
temporary or special services as they
may from time-to-time think fit, and to
determine their powers and duties and
fix their salaries or emoluments and to
require security in such instances and
to such amount as they think fit.

(a) To appoint  and  at discretion  remove
or suspend managers, secretaries,
treasurers, officers, clerks, agents and.
servants for permanent, temporary or
special services as they may from time
to time think fit, and to determine their
powers and duties and fix their salaries
or emoluments and to require security
in such instances and to such amount
as they think fit.

Correction of word
and removal of a
surplus / somewhat
incorrect sentence
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(c)From time to time and at any time to
establish any Local Boards or branch
offices and personnel for managing any
of the affairs of the Company in any
special locality in Pakistan or elsewhere
and to appoint any persons to be
members of any Local Boards, and to fix
their remuneration. And from time to time
and at any time delegate to any person
so appointed any of the powers,
authorities and discretions for the time
beinog vested in the Directors and to
authorise the. members for the time being
of any such Local Board, or any of them
to fill up any vacancies therein and to act
notwithstanding vacancies and any such
appointment or delegation may be made
on such terms, and subjects to such
conditions as the Directors may think fit
and the Directors may at any time remove
any person so appointed, and may annul
or vary any such delegation.

(c)From time to time and at any time to
establish any Local Boards or branch
offices for managing any of the affairs
of the Company in any special locality
in Pakistan or elsewhere and to appoint
any persons to be members of any Local
Boards, and to fix their remuneration.
And from time to time and at any time
delegate to any person so appointed
any of the powers, authorities and
discretions for the time being vested in
the Directors and to authorise the
members for the time being of any such
Local Board, or any of them to fill up
any vacancies therein and to act
notwithstanding vacancies and any such
appointment or delegation may be made
on such terms, and subjects to such
conditions as the Directors may think fit
and the Directors may at any time
remove any person so appointed, and
may annul or vary any such delegation.

(d) At any time and from time to time by
powers of attorney to appoint any person
or persons to be the attorney or attorneys
of the Company for such purposes and
with such powers, authorities and
discretions (not exceeding those vested
in and exercisable by the Directors under
these presents) and for such  period
and  subject to such conditions  as the
Directors  may from time to time think
fit and any such appointment (if the
Directors think fit) be made in favour of
the members or any of the members of
any localthe Board established as
aforesaid or in favour of any company
or the members, directors, nominees,
or managers of any company, or firm or
otherwise in favour of any fluctuating
body or persons whether nominated
directly or indirectly by the Directors,
and any such power of attorney may
contain such powers for the protection
or convenience of persons dealing with
such attorney as the Directors may think
fit, and may contain powers enabling
any such delegate or attorneys as
aforesaid to sub-delegate all or any of
the powers, authorities and discretion
for the time being vested in them.

(d) At any time and from time to time by
powers of attorney to appoint any person
or persons to be the attorney or attorneys
of the Company for such purposes and
with such powers, authorities and
discretions (not exceeding those vested
in and exercisable by the Directors under
these presents) and for such  period
and  subject to such conditions  as the
Directors  may from time to time think
fit and any such appointment (if the
Directors think fit) be made in favour of
the  members  or any of the  members
of any local Board established as
aforesaid or in favour of any company
or the members, directors, nominees,
or managers of any company, or firm or
otherwise in favour of any fluctuating
body or persons whether nominated
directly or indirectly by the Directors,
and any such power of attorney may
contain such powers for the protection
or convenience of persons dealing with
such attorney as the Directors may think
fit, and may contain powers enabling
any such delegate or attorneys as
aforesaid to sub-delegate all or any of
the powers, authorities and discretion
for the time being vested in them.

118(27)95. No local Board so
changed appropriately.

118(27)94. Improved in line with
practicalities.

(e) To delegate entrust to endand confer
from time to time upon the Secretary,
manager or managers of attorneys from
time to time such of the powers exercisable
by the Directors as they may think fit

(e) To delegate entrust to end confer
from time to time upon the Secretary,
manager or managers of attorneys from
time to time such of the powers exercisable
by the Directors as they may think fit

118(27)96. Correction of word and
removal of a surplus/
somewhat incorrect
sentence

COMPARATIVE ANALYSIS OF EXISTING
CLAUSE WITH THE PROPOSED AMENDMENT
ALONG WITH REASONS FOR THE CHANGE
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and may confer such powers for such
time and to be exercised for such objects
and purposes and upon such terms and
conditions and with such restrictions as
they think expedient and that they may
confer such powers either collaterally with
or the exclusion of and in substitution for
all or any of the powers of the Directors
in that behalf and may from time to time
revoke, withdraw, alter or vary all or any
of such powers.

and may confer such powers for such
time and to be exercised for such objects
and purposes and upon such terms and
conditions and with such restrictions as
they think expedient and that they may
confer such powers either collaterally with
or the exclusion of and in substitution for
all or any of the powers of the Directors
in that behalf and may from time to time
revoke, withdraw, alter or vary all or any
of such powers.

118(27)97. (f) To delegate all or any of their powers
to a Chief Executive or to a Managing
Director or to a Secretary as they may
from time to time think fit.

(f) To delegate all or any of their powers
to a Chief Executive or to a Managing
Director or to a Secretary as they may
from time to time think fit.

Concept of Managing
Director is not there in
the Act, term used is
Chief Executive.

98. CHIEF EXECUTIVE DIRECTORCHIEF EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR In order to align with
the Companies Act
2017.

99. Directors shall appoint any person,
including an elected Director, to be the
Chief Executive of the Company in the
manner provided in Section 198Sections
186 and 199187 of the OrdinanceAct for
a term not exceeding three years from the
date of appointment and may remove a
Chief Executive so appointed in the
manner provided in Section 202190 of the
OrdinanceAct. The terms and conditions
of appointment of Chief Executive shall
be determined by the Board of Directors.

Directors shall appoint any person,
including an elected Director, to be the
Chief Executive of the Company in the
manner provided in Section 198 and
199 of the Ordinance for a term not
exceeding three years from the date of
appointment and may remove a Chief
Executive so appointed in the manner
provided in Section 202 of the
Ordinance. The terms and conditions of
appointment of Chief Executive shall be
determined by the Board of Directors.

In order to align with
the Companies Act
2017.

119

100. An Executive Director shall, if he
ceaseceases to hold the office of Director
from any cause, ipso facto and immediately,
ceases to be an Executive Director.

An Executive Director shall, if he cease
to hold the office of Director from any
cause, ipso facto and immediately, cease
to be an Executive Director.

Correction of sentence.121

101. The remuneration of an Executive Director
or Director holding any office as is
mentioned in Article 120115 and 121116
may from time to time be determined by
the Board of Directors of the Company
and may be byway of fixed salary, or
commission or dividend, profit or turnover
of the Company or of any other company
in which the Company is interested, or by
participation in any such profits or by any
or all of those modes. The remuneration
of any such Director may include such
profits or by any or all of those modes (if
any) for himself or any dependents
(whether by pension, superannuation or
otherwise) after the termination of his office
as the Directors shall think proper. A
Director holding any such office as is
mentioned in Articles 120115 and 121116
shall not be precluded merely by reason

The remuneration of an Executive Director
or Director holding any office as is
mentioned in Article 120 and 121 may
from time to time be determined by the
Board of Directors of the Company and
may be byway of fixed salary, or
commission or dividend, profit or turnover
of the Company or of any other company
in which the Company is interested, or
by participation in any such profits or by
any or all of those modes. The
remuneration of any such Director may
include such profits or by any or all of
those modes (if any) for himself or any
dependents (whether by pension,
superannuation or otherwise) after the
termination of his office as the Directors
shall think proper. A Director holding any
such office as is mentioned in Articles
120 and 121 shall not be precluded

Due to make changes
(addition and deletion
of  c lauses),  the
corresponding articles
h a v e  b e e n
renumbered.
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of his office of Director from membership
of any superannuation or pension fund for
the time being established or supported
by the Company.

merely by reason of his office of Director
from membership of any superannuation
or pension fund for the time being
established or supported by the Company.

The Directors may from time to time
entrust to and confer upon the Chief
Executive or andan Executive Director
or  Executive Directors for the time being
such of the powers exercisable under
these presents by the DirectorDirectors
as they may think fit, and may confer
such powers for such time, and to be
exercised for such objects and purposes,
and upon such terms and conditions,
and with such restrictions as they think
expedient; and they may confer such
powers, either collaterally with, or to the
exclusion of, and in substitution for, all
or any of the powers of the Directors in
that behalf; and may from time to time
revoke, withdraw, alter or vary all or any
of such powers.

The Directors may from time to time
entrust to and confer upon the Chief
Executive or and Executive Director or
 Executive Directors for the time being
such of the powers exercisable under
these presents by the Director as they
may think fit, and may confer such
powers for such time, and to be exercised
for such objects and purposes, and upon
such terms and conditions, and with
such restrictions as they think expedient;
and they may confer such powers, either
collaterally with, or to the exclusion of,
and in substitution for, all or any of the
powers of the Directors in that behalf;
and may from time to time revoke,
withdraw, alter or vary all or any of such
powers.

123102. Correction of word and
removal of a surplus /
somewhat incorrect
sentence

The Directors shall provide for the safe
custody of the Seal and subject to the
provision herein before contained as for
the signature to certificates to title to
shares in the Company the Seal shall
never be used except by the authority
previously given of the Directors or a
Committee of the Directors and Two
Directors or one Director and the
Secretary at least shall sign every
instrument to which the Seal is affixed.
Provided nevertheless that any instrument
bearing the Seal of the Company and
issued for valuable consideration shall
be  b ind ing on the  Company
notwithstanding any irregularity of the
Directors issuing the same.

The Directors shall provide for the safe
custody of the Seal and subject to the
provision herein before contained as for
the signature to certificates to title to
shares in the Company the Seal shall
never be used except by the authority
previously given of the Directors or a
Committee of the Directors and Two
Directors at least shall sign every
instrument to which the Seal is affixed.
Provided nevertheless that any instrument
bearing the Seal of the Company and
issued for valuable consideration shall
be  b ind ing on the  Company
notwithstanding any irregularity of the
Directors issuing the same.

124103. To provide flexibility.

The Company may exercise the powers
conferred by Section 213203 of the
OrdinanceAct.

The Company may exercise the powers
conferred by Section 213 of the
Ordinance.

125104. In order to align with
the Companies Act
2017.

The Company shall make the requisite
Annual Returns in accordance with
Section 156the requirements of the
OrdinanceAct.

The Company shall make the requisite
Annual Returns in accordance with
Section 156 of the Ordinance.

126105. In order to align with
the Companies Act
2017.

Subject to the provisions of these presents
as the Reserve Fund and Depreciation
Fund, the net profits of the Company to
be divided in respect of any year or other
period shall be applied in the payment of
a dividend on the ordinary shares of the
Company, so that a fully paid-up share
shall entitle the holder with respect thereto

Subject to the provisions of these presents
as the Reserve Fund and Depreciation
Fund, the net profits of the Company to
be divided in respect of any year or other
period shall be applied in the payment of
a dividend on the ordinary shares of the
Company, so that a fully paid-up share
shall entitle the holder with respect thereto

127106. All shares are to be
fully paid-up.

COMPARATIVE ANALYSIS OF EXISTING
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to such portion of the distribution as the
amount paid thereon bears to the total
.amount of paid-up capital of the
Company..

to such portion of the distribution as the
amount paid thereon bears to the total
.amount of paid-up capital of the
Company.

130107. Subject to the provisions of Section
248240(2) of the OrdinanceAct, no
dividend shall be payable except out of
the profits of the Company of the year or
any other undistributed profits, and
dividend shall not carry interest as against
the Company.

Subject to the provisions of Section
248(2) of the Ordinance, no dividend
shall be payable except out of the profits
of the Company of the year or any other
undistributed profits, and dividend shall
not carry interest as against the
Company.

In order to align with
the Companies Act
2017.

133108. The Directors may subject to section
243 of the Act, retain any dividend to
the extent of the debts, liabilities or
engagements in respect of which any
money is due to the Company by a
member and may apply the same in or
towards the satisfaction of such debts,
liabilities or engagements.

The Directors may retain any dividend
to the extent of the debts, liabilities or
engagements in respect of which any
money is due to the Company by a
member and may apply the same in or
towards the satisfaction of such debts,
liabilities or engagements.

In order to align with
the Companies Act
2017.

134109. Dividend shall be paid within forty five
days of the date of the general meeting
in which it is approved or in the case of
interim dividend within forty five days of
the date of commencement of closing
of share transfer for purposes of
determination of entitlement of dividend
and where register of members is no.t
closed for 'such purpose, the date on
which such dividend is approved by the
Directors.Dividend shall be paid within
the periods specified in Section 242 and
243 of Act.

Dividend shall be paid within forty five
days of the date of the general meeting
in which it is approved or in the case of
interim dividend within forty five days of
the date of commencement of closing
of share transfer for purposes of
determination of entitlement of dividend
and where register of members is no.t
closed for 'such purpose, the date on
which such dividend is approved by the
Directors.

In order to align with
the Companies Act
2017.

135110. Any General Meeting declaring a
dividend may resolve that such dividend
be paid wholly or in part by the
distribution of specific assets and in
particular of paid-up shares, debenture
or other securities either of the Company,
or of any otherlisted company or in any
one or more such waysas may be
otherwise permitted by the Act.

Any General Meeting declaring a
dividend may resolve that such dividend
be paid wholly or in part by the
distribution of specific assets and in
particular of paid-up shares, debenture
or other securities either of the Company,
or of any other company or in any one
or more such ways.

In order to align with
the Companies Act
2017.

137111. TheSubject to Section 243 of the Act,
the Directors may retain the dividends
payable upon shares in respect of which
any person is under the Transmission
article entitled to become a member or
which any person under that article is
entitled to transfer, until such person
shall become a member in respect
thereof or shall duly transfer the same.

The Directors may retain the dividends
payable upon shares in respect of which
any person is under the Transmission
article entitled to become a member or
which any person under that article is
entitled to transfer, until such person
shall become a member in respect
thereof or shall duly transfer the same.

In order to align with
the Companies Act
2017.

139112. Despatch By post.Dispatch of Dividend.

Unless otherwise directed dividend shall
be paid by the Company 'in respect of

Despatch By post.

Unless otherwise directed dividend shall
be paid by the Company 'in respect of

In order to align with
the Companies Act
2017.

COMPARATIVE ANALYSIS OF EXISTING
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any share therein to the registered holder
of such share or to his order by cheque
or warrant sent through the registered
post to the registered address of the
member or, in the case of joint-holders to
the registered address of that' one whose
name stands first on the Register in respect
of the joint holding or to such bankers or
financial institutions the member or such
joint-holders, as the case may be may
direct, and every cheque or warrant so
sent shall e made payable to the order of
such bankers or financial institution entitled
or such joint-holders, as the case may be.
Several executors or administrators of a
deceased member in whose sole name
any shares shall stand, shall for the
purposes of this clause be deemed to be
joint-holders thereof.through electronic
mode directly into the bank account
designated by the shareholders or in any
other manner permitted by law.

any share therein to the registered holder
of such share or to his order by cheque
or warrant sent through the registered
post to the registered address of the
member or, in the case of joint-holders
to the registered address of that' one
whose name stands first on the Register
in respect of the joint holding or to such
bankers or financial institutions the
member or such joint-holders, as the
case may be may direct, and every
cheque or warrant so sent shall e made
payable to the order of such bankers or
financial institution entitled or such joint-
holders, as the case may be. Several
executors or administrators of a deceased
member in whose sole name any shares
shall stand, shall for the purposes of this
clause be deemed to be joint-holders
thereof.

All dividends unclaimed. for one year
after having been declared may or
unpaid shall be invested or otherwise
made usedealt with in accordance with
Section 244 of by the Directors for the
benefit of the Company until claimedAct.

All dividends unclaimed. for one year
after having been declared may be
invested or otherwise made use of by
the Directors for the benefit of the
Company until claimed.

140113. In order to align with
the Companies Act
2017.

Whenever such a resolution as aforesaid
shall have been passed the Directors shall
make all appropriations and applications
of the undivided profits resolved to be
capitalized thereby, and all allotments and
issue of fully-paid shares, debentures or
other securities if any and generally shall
do all acts and things required to give effect
thereof by payment in cash or otherwise
as they think fit for the case of shares,
debentures or other securities becoming
distributable in fractions, and also to
authorise any person to enter on behalf of
all the Members entitled thereto into an
agreement with the Company providing for
the allotment to them respectively credited
as fully paid-up, of any further shareshares,
debentures or other securities to which
they may be entitled upon such
capitalization, and any agreement made
under such authority shall be effective and
biding on all such Members. However,
fractional shares shall not be offered and
all fractions less than a share shall be
consolidated and disposed of by the
Company and the proceeds from such
disposition shall be paid to a charitable
institution approved by the Board.

Whenever such a resolution as aforesaid
shall have been passed the Directors
shall make all appropriations and
applications of the undivided profits
resolved to be capitalized thereby, and
all allotments and issue of fully-paid
shares, debentures or other securities
if any and generally shall do all acts and
things required to give effect thereof by
payment in cash or otherwise as they
think fit for the case of shares,
debentures or other securities becoming
distributable in fractions, and also to
authorise any person to enter on behalf
of all the Members entitled thereto into
an agreement with the Company
providing for the allotment to them
respectively credited as fully paid-up, of
any further share debentures or other
securities to which they may be entitled
upon such capitalization, and any
agreement made under such authority
shall be effective and biding on all such
Members.

142114. All shares are fully
paid-up, and to give
proceeds of fractional
shares to Charity.

COMPARATIVE ANALYSIS OF EXISTING
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The Directors shall in conformity with
Section 230 of the Ordinances, cause to
be kept proper books of account with
respect to: as required by the Act.

(d) all sums of money received and:
expended by the Company and the
matters in respect of which the
receipts and expenditure takes
place;

(e) all sales and purchases of goods
by the Company;

(f)(d)all the assets and liabilities of the
Company

The Directors shall in conformity with
Section 230 of the Ordinances, cause to
be kept proper books of account with
respect to:

(a) all sums of money received and:
expended by the Company and the
matters in respect of which the
receipts and expenditure takes
place;

(b) all sales and purchases of goods
by the Company;

(c) all the assets and liabilities of the
Company

144116. The books of account shall be kept at
the registered office of the company or
at such other place as the Directors think
fit, and shall be open to inspection by the
Directors during the business hours.

The books of account shall be kept at
the office of the company or at such
other place as the Directors think fit, and
shall be open to inspection by the
Directors during the business hours.

In order to align with
the Companies Act
2017.

143115. In order to align with
the Companies Act
2017.

145117. The books of account relating to a
period of not less than ten financial
years immediately preceding the
currenta financial year shall be preserved
by the Company in good order.

The books of account relating to a period
of not less than ten years immediately
preceding the current year shall be
preserved by the Company in good
order.

In order to align with
the Companies Act
2017.

147118. Profit and loss Account and Balance Sheet.

The  Directors  shall  as  required   by
Section  233·  to  237  and   240  of the
Ordinance cause to be prepared and to
be laid before the Company in General
Meeting such profits and loss accounts
income and expenditure accounts,
balance sheets and reports as are
referred to in those Sections.

In order to align with
the Companies Act
2017.

148119. Preparation of profit and loss account.
Financial Statements.

The profit and loss accountFinancial
Statements shall in addition to the matters
referred to in sub- section (1) of Section
234225 of the OrdinanceAct, be so made
out as to disclose clearly the operating
results of the Company during the
financial year covered by the accountthem
and shall show, arranged under the most
convenient heads, the amount of gross
income, distinguishing the several sources
from which it has been derived, and the
amount  o f  gross expendi ture
distinguishing the expenses of the
establishment, salaries, and other like
matters as may be otherwise required

Preparation of profit and loss account.

The profit and loss account shall in
addition to the matters referred to in sub-
section (1) of Section 234 of the
Ordinance, be so made out as to disclose
clearly the operating results of the
Company during the financial year
covered by the account and shall show,
arranged under the most convenient
heads, the amount of gross income,
distinguishing the several sources from
which it has been derived, and the amount
of gross expenditure distinguishing the
expenses of the establishment, salaries,
and other like matters. Every item of
expenditure fairly chargeable against the
year's income shall be brought into

In order to align with
the Companies Act
2017.

Profit and loss Account and Balance Sheet.

Financial Statements.

The  Directors  shall  as  required   by
Section  233·  to  237 223, 225, 228, 229
and 240 231 of the OrdinanceAct cause
to be prepared and to be laid before the
Company in General Meeting such profits
and loss accounts income and
expenditure accounts, balance sheets
and reportsFinancial Statements as are
referred to in those Sections.
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by law. Every item of expenditure fairly
chargeable against the year's income
shall be brought into account, so that a
just balance of profit and loss may be
laid before the meeting, and in cases
where any items of expenditure which
may in fairness be distributed over several
years has been incurred in any one year,
the whole amount of such item shall be
stated, with the addition of the reasons
why only a portion of such expenditure
is charged against the income of the year.

account, so that a just balance of profit
and loss may be laid before the meeting,
and in cases where any items of
expenditure which may in fairness be
distributed over several years has been
incurred in any one year, the whole
amount of such item shall be stated, with
the addition of the reasons why only a
portion of such expenditure is charged
against the income of the year.

A balance sheet shall be made out in
every year and laid before the Company
in General Meeting made up to a date
not more than sixfour months before
such meeting. The balance sheet shall
be accompanied by a report of the
Directors as to the state of the
Company's affairs, and the amount (if
any) which they recommend to be paid
by way of dividend, and the amount (if
any) which they propose to carry to a
reserve fund.

A balance sheet shall be made out in
every year and laid before the Company
in General Meeting made up to a date
not more than six months before such
meeting. The balance sheet shall be
accompanied by a report of the Directors
as to the state of the Company's affairs,
and the amount (if any) which they
recommend to be paid by way of
dividend, and the amount (if any) which
they propose to carry to a reserve fund.

149120. In order to align with
the Companies Act
2017.

Copies of Balance Sheet and Report
Financial Statements to be posted to
persons entitled.

A copy of the balance sheet and
reportFinancial Statements shall, not
less than Twenty-one days previously
to(or such other period as may be
prescribed under law) before the meeting
be sent to the persons entitled to receive
notices of General Meetings in the
manner in which notices are to be given
hereunder.

Copies of Balance Sheet and Report to
be posted to persons entitled.

A copy of the balance sheet and report
shall, not less than Twenty one days
previously to the meeting be sent to the
persons entitled to receive notices of
General Meetings in the manner in which
notices are to be given hereunder.

150121. In order to align with
the Companies Act
2017.

The Directors shall in all respects comply
with the provisions of Sections 230, 233
to 243220, 223, 225 and 245237 of the
OrdinanceAct or any statutory
modification thereof for the time being
in force.

The Directors shall in all respects comply
with the provisions of Sections 230, 233
to 243 and 245 of the Ordinance or any
statutory modification thereof for the
time being in force.

151122. In order to align with
the Companies Act
2017.

Auditors shall be appointed and their
duties regulated in accordance with
Section 252246 to 255 249 of the
OrdinanceAct.

Auditors shall be appointed and their
duties regulated in accordance with
Section 252 to 255 of the Ordinance.

152123. In order to align with
the Companies Act
2017.

A notice may be given by the Company
to any member either personally or by
sending it by post to him to his registered
address or (if he has no registered
address in Pakistan) to the address, if
any, within Pakistan supplied by him to
the Company for giving of notices to him.

A notice may be given by the Company
to any member either personally or by
sending it by post to him to his registered
address or (if he has no registered
address in Pakistan) to the address, if
any, within Pakistan supplied by him to
the Company for giving of notices to him.

153(a)124. In order to align with
the Companies Act
2017.

COMPARATIVE ANALYSIS OF EXISTING
CLAUSE WITH THE PROPOSED AMENDMENT
ALONG WITH REASONS FOR THE CHANGE
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Where a notice is sent by post or courier,
service of the notice shall be deemed to
be effected by properly addressing,
prepaying and posting a letter containing
the notice and unless the contrary is
proved, to have been effected at the time
at which the letter would be delivered in
the ordinary course of post / courier.

Where a notice is sent by post, service
of the notice shall be deemed to be
effected by properly addressing,
prepaying and posting a letter containing
the notice and unless the contrary is
proved, to have been effected at the time
at which the letter would be delivered in
the ordinary course of post.

Members resident abroad.

If a member has no registered address
in Pakistan and has not supplied to the
Company an address within Pakistan
for the giving of notices to him, a notice
addressed to him or to the shareholders
generally and advertised in a newspaper
circulating in the Province in which the
Registered Office of the Company is
situated and in the manner provided in
Article 159 here of shall be deemed to
be duly given to him on the day on which
the advertisement appears.

Members resident abroad.

If a member has no registered address
in Pakistan and has not supplied to the
Company an address within Pakistan
for the giving of notices to him, a notice
addressed to him or to the shareholders
generally and advertised in a newspaper
circulating in the Province in which the
Registered Office of the Company is
situated and in the manner provided in
Article 159 here of shall be deemed to
be duly given to him on the day on which
the advertisement appears.

154126. Notice requirement
appropriately covered
elsewhere and in the
law.

153(b)125. In order to align with
the Companies Act
2017.

A notice may be given by the Company
to the persons entitled to a share in
consequence of the death or insolvency
of a member by sending it through the
post or courier in a prepaid letter
addressed to them by name or by the
title or representatives of the deceased,
or assignees of the insolvent, or by any
like description, at the address (if any)
in Pakistan supplied for the purpose by
the persons claiming to be so entitled,
or until such an address has been so
supplied by giving the notice in any
manner in which the same might have
been given if the death or insolvency
had not occurred.

A notice may be given by the Company
to the persons entitled to a share in
consequence of the death or insolvency
of a member by sending it through the
post in a prepaid letter addressed to
them by name or by the title or
representatives of the deceased, or
assignees of the insolvent, or by any
like description, at the address (if any)
in Pakistan supplied for the purpose by
the persons claiming to be so entitled,
or until such an address has been so
supplied by giving the notice in any
manner in which the same might have
been given if the death or insolvency
had not occurred.

156127. In order to align with
the Companies Act
2017.

Subject to the provisions of Article 161155
hereof, Notice of every General Meeting
shall be given in such manner herein
authorised to (a) every member of the
Company except those members who
having no registered address within
Pakistan have not supplied to the
Company an address within Pakistan
for the giving of notices to them, and (b)
every person entitled to a share in
consequence of the death or insolvency
of a member who but for his death or
insolvency would be entitled to a share
in consequence of the death or insolvency
of a member who but for his death or
insolvency would be entitled, to receive
notice of the meeting, and (c) the auditors
of the Company., and (d) every Director.

Subject to the provisions of Article 161
hereof, Notice of every General Meeting
shall be given in such manner herein
authorised to (a) every member of the
Company except those members who
having no registered address within
Pakistan have not supplied to the
Company an address within Pakistan
for the giving of notices to them, and (b)
every person entitled to a share in
consequence of the death or insolvency
of a member who but for his death or
insolvency would be entitled to a share
in consequence of the death or
insolvency of a member who but for his
death or insolvency would be entitled,
to receive notice of the meeting, and (c)
the auditors of the Company.

157128. In order to align with
the Companies Act
2017.
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Any notice required to be or which may
be given by advertisement shall be
advertised once in one English language
daily newspaper and one Urdu language
daily newspaper circulating in the
Province in which the Stock Exchange
in which the Company is listed is
situated.having wide circulation.

Any notice required to be or which may
be given by advertisement shall be
advertised once in one English language
daily newspaper and one Urdu language
daily newspaper  circulating in the
Province in which the Stock Exchange
in which the Company is listed is situated.

159129. In order to align with
the Companies Act
2017.

On any sale of the undertaking of the
Company, the Directors or the Liquidator
in a winding up may, if authorised by
special Resolution, accept fully paid or
partly paid-up shares, debentures or
securities of any other company,
whether  incorporated in Pakistan or not,
either then existing or to be formed for
the purchase in whole or in part of the
property of the Company, and the
Directors (if the profits of the Company
permit), or the Liquidator (in winding-
up), may distribute such shares,
debentures or securities or any other
property of the Company amongst the
members without realisation or vest the
same in trustees for them, and any
special Resolution may provide for the
distribution or appropriation of the cash,
shares, debentures, securities, benefits
or property otherwise than in accordance
with the strict legal rights of the
members or contributories of the
Company, and for the valuation of any
such securities or property at such price
and in such manner as the meeting may
approve, and all holders of shares shall
be bound to accept and shall be bound
by any valuation or distribution so
authorised, and waive all rights in relation
thereto, save only in case the Company
is proposed to be or is in the course of
being wound up, such statutory rights
(if any) under Section 367356 of the
OrdinanceAct as are Incapable of being
varied or excluded by these Articles.

On any sale of the undertaking of the
Company, the Directors or the Liquidator
in a winding up may, if authorised by
special Resolution, accept fully paid or
partly paid-up shares, debentures or
securities of any other company,
whether incorporated in Pakistan or not,
either then existing or to be formed for
the purchase in whole or in part of the
property of the Company, and the
Directors (if the profits of the Company
permit), or the Liquidator (in winding-
up), may distribute such shares,
debentures or securities or any other
property of the Company amongst the
members without realisation or vest the
same in trustees for them, and any
special Resolution may provide for the
distribution or appropriation of the cash,
shares, ·debentures, securities, benefits
or property otherwise than in accordance
with the strict legal rights of the members
or contributories of the Company, and
for the valuation of any such securities
or property at such price and in such
manner as the meeting may approve,
and all holders of shares shall be bound
to accept and shall be bound by any
valuation or distribution so authorised,
and waive all rights in relation thereto,
save only in case the Company is
proposed to be or is in the course of
being wound up, such statutory rights
(if any) under Section 367 of the
Ordinance as are Incapable of being
varied or excluded by these Articles.

In order to align with
the Companies Act
2017.

164130.

Every Director, the Secretary, Manager,
Auditor,  Trustee, Member of a
Committee, Officer, servant, agents,
accountant or other person employed
in the business of the Company shall, if
so required by the Directors before
entering upon his duties, sign a
declaration pledging himself to observe
strict secrecy respecting all transactions
of the Company with its customers and
the state of accounts with individuals
and in matters relating thereto, and shall

Every Director, the Secretary, Manager,
Auditor,  Trustee, Member of a
Committee, Officer, servant, agents,
accountant or other person employed
in the business of the Company shall, if
so required by the Directors before
entering upon his duties, sign a
declaration pledging himself to observe
strict secrecy respecting all transactions
of the Company with its customers and
the state of accounts with individuals
and in matters relating thereto, and shall

To tighten confiden-
tiality clause.

165131.

COMPARATIVE ANALYSIS OF EXISTING
CLAUSE WITH THE PROPOSED AMENDMENT
ALONG WITH REASONS FOR THE CHANGE
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by such declaration pledge himself not
to reveal any of the matters which may
come to his knowledge in the discharge
of his duties except when required so
to do so by the Directors or by any
meeting or by a Court of Law and except
as far as may be necessary in order to
comply with any of the provisions in
these Articles.

by such declaration pledge himself not
to reveal any of the matters which may
come to his knowledge in the discharge
of his duties except when required so
to do so by the Directors or by any
meeting or by a Court of Law and except
as far as may be necessary in order to
comply with any of the provisions in
these Articles.

Subject to the provisions of Section
194180 of the OrdinanceAct every
Director of the Company, the Secretary,
Manager and other officers or employees
of the Company shall be indemnified by
the Company and it shall be the duty of
the Directors of the Company to pay out
of the funds of the Company all costs,
losses and expenses ( including travelling
expenses) which any such Director,
Secretary, Manager, Officer or other
employee may incur or become liable to
by reason of any contract entered into or
act or deed done by him as Director,
Secretary, Manager, Officer or other
employee in the discharge of his duties.

Subject to the provisions of Section 194
of the Ordinance every Director of the
Company, the Secretary, Manager and
other officers or employees of the
Company shall be indemnified by the
Company and it shall be the duty of the
Directors of the Company to pay out of
the funds of the Company all costs,
losses and expenses ( including travelling
expenses) which any such Director,
Secretary, Manager, Officer or other
employee may incur or become liable to
by reason of any contract entered into or
act or deed done by him as Director,
Secretary, Manager, Officer or other
employee in the discharge of his duties.

In order to align with
the Companies Act
2017.

167(a)132.

Subject as aforesaid every Director,
Secretary, the Manager, Auditor or any
other officer of the Company shall be
indemnified against any liability incurred
by him as. Director, Secretary, Manager,
Auditor or officer in defending any
proceedings whether civil or criminal in
which judgement is given in his favour or
in which he is acquitted or in connection
with any application under Section
488492 of the OrdinanceAct in which
relief is given to him by the Court.

Subject as aforesaid every Director,
Secretary, the Manager, Auditor or any
other officer of the Company shall be
indemnified against any liability incurred
by him as. Director, Secretary, Manager,
Auditor or officer in defending any
proceedings whether civil or criminal in
which judgement is given in his favour or
in which he is acquitted or in connection
with any application under Section
488492 of the OrdinanceAct in which
relief is given to him by the Court.

In order to align with
the Companies Act
2017.

167(b)133.

Subject to the provisions of Section
194180 of the OrdinanceAct, no Director,
Secretary, Manager, auditor or other
officer of the Company shall be liable for
the act, receipts, neglect or default of any
other Director or officer or for joining in
any receipt or other act of for conformity
or for any loss or expenses happening
to the Company through the insufficiency
or deficiency of title to any property
acquired  by order of the Directors for or
on behalf of the Company or for the
insufficiency or deficiency of any security
in or upon which any of the moneys of
the Company shall be invested or any
loss or damage arising from the
bankruptcy, insolvency or tortious act of
any person with whom any money,

Subject to the provisions of Section 194
of the Ordinance, no Director, Secretary,
Manager, auditor or other officer of the
Company shall be liable for the act,
receipts, neglect or default of any other
Director or officer or for joining in any
receipt or other act of for conformity or
for any loss or expenses happening to
the Company through the insufficiency
or deficiency of title to any property
acquired  by order of the Directors for or
on behalf of the Company or for the
insufficiency or deficiency of any security
in or upon which any of the moneys of
the Company shall be invested or any
loss or damage arising from the
bankruptcy, insolvency or tortious act of
any person with whom any money,

In order to align with
the Companies Act
2017.

168134.

COMPARATIVE ANALYSIS OF EXISTING
CLAUSE WITH THE PROPOSED AMENDMENT
ALONG WITH REASONS FOR THE CHANGE
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securities or effects shall be deposited
or for any loss occasioned by an error of
judgement, omission, default or oversight
on his part or for any other loss, damage,
or misfortune whatever which shall
happen in the execution of the duties of
his office or in relation thereto, unless
the same happen through the wilful
default and neglect of such Director,
Secretary, Manager, auditor or other
officer of the Company.

securities or effects shall be deposited
or for any loss occasioned by an error of
judgement, omission, default or oversight
on his part or for any other loss damage,
or misfortune whatever which shall
happen in the execution of the duties of
his office or in relation thereto, unless
the same happen through the wilful
default and neglect of such Director,
Secretary, Manager, auditor or other
officer of the Company.

Notice of any resolution for winding up
a company voluntarily shall be given by
the company within ten days of the
passing of the same by advertisement
in the official Gazette, and also in a
newspaper circulating in the Province.
where the registered office of the
company is situated and such notice
shall also be published at least in one
issue of a daily newspaper in the English
language and a daily newspaper in the
Urdu language having wide circulation
in the Province in which the Stock
Exchange on which it is listed is situated
and a copy thereof shall be sent to the
Registrar immediately thereafter.

Notice of any resolution for winding up
a company voluntarily shall be given by
the company within ten days of the
passing of the same by advertisement
in the official Gazette, and also in a
newspaper circulating in the Province.
where the registered office of the
company is situated and such notice
shall also be published at least in one
issue of a daily newspaper in the English
language and a daily newspaper in the
Urdu language having circulation in the
Province in which the Stock Exchange
on which it is listed is situated and a
copy thereof shall be sent to the
Registrar immediately thereafter.

In order to align with
the Companies Act
2017.

169135.

Any provision of the Articles contrary to
or inconsistent with the Listing Rules of
the Karachi/LahorePakistan Stock
Exchanges Exchange shall be deemed
to stand revoked or amended to bring
them in conformity with the Listing Rules.

Any provision of the Articles contrary to
or inconsistent with the Listing Rules of
the Karachi/Lahore Stock Exchanges
shall stand revoked or amended to bring
them in conformity with the Listing Rules.

In order to align with
the Companies Act
2017.

172136.

NB: Existing clause numbers of the Articles of Association of the Company will be renumbered in the proposed
Articles of Association due to addition / deletion of the clauses.
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DYNEA PAKISTAN LIMITED
406, Parsa Tower Block 6,
PECHS, Shahrah-e-Faisal,
Karachi.

FORM OF PROXY

THIRTY NINTH ANNUAL GENERAL MEEING

I/We _______________________________________________________________ of ______________________

being a member(s) of DYNEA PAKISTAN LIMITED and a holder of ______________________________________

_________________________ ordinary shares as per Share Register Folio No. _____________________________

or CDC Participant ID No. __________________________________ Account No. ___________________________

Hereby appoint _______________________________________________________ of ______________________

Who is also member of DYNEA PAKISTAN LIMITED Vide Folio No. ______________________________________

or CDC Participant ID No. __________________________________ Account No. ___________________________

or failing him / her ____________________________________________________ of______________________

who is also member of DYNEA PAKISTAN LIMITED Vide Folio No. ______________________________________

or CDC Participant ID No. __________________________________ Account No. ___________________________

as my / our proxy in my / our absence to attend and vote for me / us and on my / our behalf at the Thirty Ninth
Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held Thursday, October 21, 2021 at 1:00 PM and at any
adjournment thereof.

As witness my / our hand / seal this _________________________________ day of ________________ 2021

Witness Witness

Name Name

Address Address

(Signature) (Signature)

SIGNATURE OF MEMBER(S)

Please affix
Rs. 5/-

Revenue Stamp

NOTES:

1. This proxy form duly completed and signed must be received at the Registered Office of the Company, Office No. 406, Parsa Tower, Plot
No. 31/1/A, Block-6, P.E.C.H.S., Shahrah-e-Faisal, Karachi-75400, Not less than 48 hours before the time of holding of the Meeting.

2. No person shall act as proxy unless he / she himself / herself is a member of the Company. Except that a corporation may appoint a person
who is not a member.

3. If a member appoints more than one proxy and more than one instruments of proxy are deposited by a member with the Company, all
such instruments of proxy shall be rendered invalid.

FOR CDC ACCOUNT HOLDERS / CORPORATE ENTITIES
In addition to the above the following requirements have to be met:

a) The proxy form shall be witnessed by two persons whose names, addresses and CNIC numbers shall be mentioned on the form.
b) Attested copy of CNIC or the passport of the beneficial owners shall be furnished with the proxy form.
c) The proxy shall produce his / her original CNIC or original passport at the time of the meeting.
d) In case of corporate entity, the Board of Directors’ resolution / power of attorney with specimen signature shall be submitted (unless it has

been provided earlier) along with proxy form to the Company.

The Secretary
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